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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
TEMBRE

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the past
five years, as extracted from the published consolidated financial
statements for the financial years ended 31 December 2019, 31
December 2018, 31 December 2017 and the prospectus of the

Company dated 29 June 2017 is set out below:

TXEHIAEERBERFONESE EE
LEBEEME DEEBEE-_Z—NFT
—Az=Zz+—8 - ZF2—N\F+—_A=+—
BR-_ZE—+E+_A=+—B L0 EHF
EHNEAMNGAEMBEBRERURARRE B
HA-ZEZ—+FNA-+THLBENERER:

For the year ended 31 December

BE+-A=1T—-HLEE

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
—E-hE —2-N\FE =ZE—+tF ZZE—RF ZT—hF
RM RM RM RM RM
BRARSE FRALSH SRELSEH BRALRSE BRAESH
Restated
57
Results (Audited) ¥& (K& &)
Revenue W s 68,327,729 79,989,035 96,231,559 89,795,056 78,343,631
(Loss)/Profit before & 4 A
taxation (B548), % | (2,200,758) 8,904,163 4526509 18238315 18,357,943
Income tax credit/  Fr/E i
(expense) GES) 345,590 (2,609,280)  (4,337,899)  (4,881,014)  (4,735,708)
(Loss)/Profit for the 4 py (f548)
year gl (1,864,168) 6,294,883 188,700 13,357,301 13,622,235
Attributable to: LA AL FELh
Equity shareholders 7K A &) # %5
of the Company [i% 5 (1,844,444) 6,295,729 188,700 13,357,301 18,622,235
As at 31 December
R+=-—BA=+—H
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
—E-NF —E-N\F e ZE—RF —E—hF
RM RM RM RM RM
BRAZSE SRATSEH BRARSE BRALSE BSRELSH
Restated
=7
Assets and liabilities EE R & &
(Audited) (RE®)
Total assets BEERE 167,084,721 141,812,902 138,468,975 73,995,833 78,713,244
Total liabilities BEERE 46,839,641 19,058,746 17,992,376 20,608,877 31,986,660
Net assets BEFE 120,245,080 122,754,156 115,476,599 53,386,956 46,726,584

The financial information for 2017 has been restated to take into account the effects of *

International Financial Reporting Standard 15.
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CORPORATE INFORMATION (continued)
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CORPORATE STRUCTURE
ACEY: !

Jurisdiction of Incorporation: S&P International

ML AR Holding Limited
S RERRAT

Cayman Islands

MEiHS

British Virgin Islands
KEBEZES
Hong Kong

’ SP Coco Limited

Malaysia
FRAEE
Singapore
N3

Thailand
ZRE

LR N 2 I R 4

100% 100% 90.6%

S&P (Hong Kong) Limited S&P Food Pte Ltd M. Ace (Thailand) Co., Ltd.

100% 100% 100%

Shifu Ingredients Sdn Bhd Edaran Bermutu Sdn Bhd

Radiant Span Sdn Bhd

Rasa Mulia Sdn Bhd

100% 100%

Meridian Ace Sdn Bhd S&P Industries Sdn Bhd

Stancodex Sdn Bhd
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Dear Valued Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors (“Directors”) of S&P International
Holding Limited (“Company” or “S&P International”), | present to you
the annual report of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively, “S&P
Group” or “Group”) for the financial year ended 31 December 2019
(“FY2019").

The Group is engaged principally in manufacturing and distribution of
coconut-based food products. Coconut products in both powder and
milk form are traditionally consumed as an ingredient for preparation of
curry-based food, pastry, biscuits and desserts, particularly in the Asian
countries. In some countries, coconut milk is consumed as a key
component of people’s dietary habits. Lately, coconut-based beverage
has become increasingly popular over traditional carbonated beverages.

INDUSTRY OVERVIEW AND BUSINESS
OUTLOOK

2019 has been a challenging year for businesses worldwide. We expect
the global economy to remain lacklustre with the on-going trade war
between China and the United States of America since 2019, which has
yet to come to a conclusion coupled with the outbreak of the novel
coronavirus disease (COVID-19) during the early months of 2020, which
has affected over 100 countries worldwide. Thus, it has set a challenging
global business environment for the foreseeable future.

Nonetheless, we remain optimistic that consumption of coconut based
products will continue to grow. The growing consumer trend for vegan
food products augurs well for the coconut based product industry as
coconut may be applied into wide array downstream food products.
Demand for coconut products is further bolstered by the increasing
recognition of the nutritional benefits of coconut and related products.

GROUP BUSINESS DIRECTION

Despite the challenging economic backdrop, the Group continues to be
committed to producing coconut products of the highest quality and to
be the preferred global supplier of coconut food products.

In tandem with the positive outlook of the coconut products industry, the
Group continues to execute its strategy aimed at widening its range of
coconut products as well as marketing and branding the Group’s
branded products.

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EREE

EHHRR

AANERRBLEEBERAA(EXQFIHK
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT (continued)
FERE @)

The management team places significant emphasis on research and
development (“R&D”) efforts as well as production capabilities to cater
for the market demand for coconut products in liquid form. In this regard,
the Group has installed and commissioned a state-of-the-art ultra-high-
temperature (“UHT”) liquid production facility which will commence
commercial production by the second quarter of 2020. This enables the
Group to respond effectively to the fast-growing domestic and export
market.

As part of the Group’s long term growth strategy, the management team
recognises the need to build strong in-house brands. In this regard,
aggressive efforts and investment on brand building through a rebranding
exercise as well as appointment of aggressive distributors, specialised in
their own segments, to extend our market reach. Furthermore, we shall
continue to tap on digital platforms to enhance brand recognition of the
Group.

The Group will continue to put emphasis on product innovation through
R&D efforts as well as widen our distribution channels in fast rising
consumption and under-represented countries progressively in the
coming years. Presently, our products are exported to more than 40
countries worldwide. We believe that the export market will continue to
be the main source of the Group’s revenue growth.

As a responsible corporate organisation, we are committed to creating
value for the communities in which we operate in a sustainable and
environmentally friendly manner. In this regard, we utilize renewable
energy resources, including deployment of a biomass boiler (to replace
fossil fuels), recycling and reuse of by-products.

In short, we believe, with the benefit of the plant expansion, enhanced
supply chain arrangement and management processes, and focused
marketing strategies developed, the Group is well positioned to grow and
take advantage of the positive industry outlook in the foreseeable future.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT (continued)

POTENTIAL EFFECTS OF COVID-19 ON OUR
GROUP

On 16 March 2020, the Government of Malaysia announced the
implementation of the Movement Control Order (the “MCQO”) from 18
March 2020 until 31 March 2020 throughout Malaysia. On 25 March
2020, the Government of Malaysia further announced the extension of
the MCO for additional two weeks from 1 April 2020 to 14 April 2020.
This is an effort to contain the spread of COVID-19. During this time, all
offices and business premises are ordered to be closed, but with certain
exemptions. As our Group is principally involved in one of the exempted
sectors, i.e. food supply, we have continued our factory operations since
18 March 2020 and up to the date of this annual report. However, all
office staff are encouraged to work from home.

Such MCO resulting from the onset of COVID-19 pandemic, and also
similar measures enforced by various governments in the markets where
the Group operates, may create challenges to the Group’s operations
which, amongst others, are our supply chain, factory operations, and
customer ordering processes. Efforts will be made by the Directors to
mitigate potential challenges that may arise in order to minimise any
disruptions to our business operations.

In compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the Directors will make the
necessary announcements if they become aware of any circumstances
which may adversely affect the financial and operational performance of
the Group.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

FY2019 has been anything but a challenging year for the Group. Low raw
coconut price in 2019 had attracted many new competitors to enter into
the coconut products industry. Price and market competition ensued
from the increased supply of coconut products, particularly coconut
cream powder, thus affecting the Group’s revenue. Corrective actions
had been initiated to retain our customers and are now beginning to take
effect. The management team was also actively engaged in the
rebranding exercise and change in distributor for our in-house coconut
product brands. Such rebranding exercise has contributed to the
increases in selling and distribution, and administrative costs.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT (continued)
FERE @)

The Group’s revenue was approximately RM68.3 million for FY2019,
representing a decrease of approximately 14.6%, or RM11.7 million,
when compared with that of approximately RM80.0 million for the
financial year ended 31 December 2018 (“FY2018”). The decrease in
sales was largely attributed to a drop in sales volume of coconut related
products due to the effects of the above.

The Group’s cost of sales decreased by approximately 3.7%, or RM2.0
million, from approximately RM54.2 million for FY2018 to approximately
RM52.2 million for FY2019. The cost of sales decreased
disproportionately with the reduction in sales due to () the increase in
average cost of coconuts imported and (i) the lower production volume
in FY2019 as compared to that in FY2018, resulting in higher cost of
production per unit. Total gross profit for FY2019 decreased by
approximately 37.4%, or RM9.6 million when compared with that for
FY2018.

Further explanation of our Group’s financial performance of FY2019 is
provided in the 'Management Discussion and Analysis’ section of this
annual report.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of my fellow Directors, | would thank all our staff in S&P Group
for their devotion and faithful commitment in making the Group’s
achievements in 2019 despite the abovesaid challenges.

| would also like to extend my gratitude to our valued customers,
business associates and government bodies for their steadfast support.
To our shareholders, we thank you for your confidence in S&P
International. We shall commit ourselves to creating sustainable
shareholder value and solid financial performance in the years ahead.
Last but not least, my heartfelt appreciation also goes to my fellow
Directors for their guidance, advice and insight in steering the Group
forward.

Mr. Tang Koon Fook
Chairman and Executive Director
Hong Kong, 27 March 2020
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

CHAIRMAN AND EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Tang Koon Fook (“Mr. Tang”), aged 57, was appointed as our
Director on 10 November 2016 and became our Chairman and Executive
Director on 22 March 2017. He is also the Chairman of the Nomination
Committee as well as a member of the Remuneration Committee, and a
director of various subsidiaries of our Company. He is primarily
responsible for the overall management, strategic planning and the day-
to-day business operations and financial management of our Group since
its establishment.

Mr. Tang has more than 20 years of experience in the food industry. Mr.
Tang joined Carrier (Malaysia) Sdn. Bhd., an air-conditioning company,
as a credit assistant in January 1986 and last served as a credit officer in
January 1990, where he was responsible for credit control. From
November 1991 to January 1995, he was the accountant and credit
controller of Jasa Kita Trading Sdn. Berhad (a subsidiary of Jasa Kita
Berhad), an investment holding company and was listed on the stock
exchange of Kuala Lumpur (stock code: 8648), where he was responsible
for credit control and account management. From June 1995 to
December 1997, Mr. Tang was the chief executive officer of Angkatan
Hebat Sdn. Bhd., a fleet management service provider in Malaysia, where
he was responsible for the overall management. From January 1998 to
December 2007, Mr. Tang worked in S&P Food Industries (M) Sdn. Bhd.
(“S&P Food Industries”), the business predecessor of our Group, as the
general manager and managing director, where he was in charge of the
food manufacturing operations.

Mr. Tang received a master’s degree of business administration (banking
and finance) from the University of Hull, England in July 1991. He is the
sole director of TYJ Holdings Limited, a substantial shareholder of the
Company.

MANAGING DIRECTOR AND EXECUTIVE
DIRECTOR

Mr. Lee Sieng Poon (“Mr. Lee”), aged 60, was appointed as our
Director on 10 November 2016 and became our Managing Director and
Executive Director on 22 March 2017. He is also the Chairman of the
Sanctions Oversight Committee and a director of various subsidiaries of
our Company. He is primarily responsible for the overall management,
sales and marketing, research and development, day-to-day
management of the sales and marketing and maintenance of customer
relationship of our Group since its establishment.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)
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Mr. Lee has over 35 years of experience in the food industry. From
September 1984 to October 1987, Mr. Lee was the financial executive of
S&P Food Industries, where he was responsible for preparation of the
management accounts, planning, sourcing and liaison with the suppliers.
From October 1992 to January 2008, he was the executive director of
S&P Food Industries, where he was responsible for the sales and
marketing and factory operations.

Mr. Lee studied in Sandford Park High School, Ireland until 1978. He is
the sole director of Trinity Holdings Limited, a substantial shareholder of
the Company.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Yap Boon Teong (“Mr. Yap”), aged 53, was appointed as our
Executive Director on 22 March 2017. Mr. Yap is a director of S&P
Industries Sdn. Bhd. (“S&P Industries”), a key operating subsidiary of the
Company, and also its general manager of the plant and technical
division. He is primarily responsible for the implementation of new
projects and provides technical support to factory operations of our
Group.

Mr. Yap has over 25 years of experience in the food industry. From
January 1996 to March 1998, Mr. Yap last served as the production
manager of Dan Kaffe (Malaysia) Sdn. Bhd., a coffee manufacturer,
where he was responsible for overall production. From April 1998 to
August 1998, Mr. Yap worked as the factory manager of S&P Food
Industries, where he was responsible for overseeing the production and
packing department, quality assurance department, purchasing and
warehouse department and maintenance department.

Mr. Yap received a bachelor of technology (with honours) in the field of
food technology from the Universiti Sains Malaysia in August 1991.

Ms. Wong Yuen Lee (“Ms. Wong”), aged 45, was appointed as our
Executive Director on 22 March 2017. Ms. Wong is also a member of the
Sanctions Oversight Committee. Ms. Wong is a director of S&P
Industries, a key operating subsidiary of the Company. She joined S&P
Industries on 1 January 2008 as an executive secretary and was
promoted as the human resources manager in January 2011. She has
been the general operations manager of S&P Industries since March
2015. She is responsible for human resources and information
technology matters and supervising the compliance department.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)

Ms. Wong has over 15 years of experience in the food industry. Prior to
joining our Group, Ms. Wong worked as the retail operations executive of
Zitron Enterprise (M) Sdn. Bhd., a mobile phone distributor, from
November 1999 to July 2004, where she was responsible for retalil
operations and customer service. From December 2004 to December
2007, Ms. Wong was an executive secretary of S&P Food Industries,
responsible for secretarial and administrative work.

Ms. Wong received a bachelor of arts degree from the Universiti Putra
Malaysia in July 1998.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Fung Che Wai Anthony (B&{&) (‘Mr. Fung’), aged 51, was
appointed as our independent non-executive Director (the “INED”) on 8
June 2017. Mr. Fung is also the Chairman of the Audit Committee. He is
responsible for providing independent advice to our Board.

Mr. Fung has extensive experience in accounting and corporate finance.
From August 1992 to September 1999, he successively served as a staff
accountant, semi senior accountant, senior accountant and manager in
the Hong Kong offices of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, where he was
mainly responsible for audit planning and control. From October 1999 to
August 2007, Mr. Fung was a director of Winsmart Consultants Limited (34
R EREM AR A R]), a financial consulting company, where he was
responsible for advising the clients on corporate finance and investor
relations related matters. From January 2008 to August 2010, Mr. Fung
was the vice president of NagaCorp Limited (& 5ZRAERAT), a
licensed casino listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) (stock code: 3918), where he was responsible for
the development of investor relations procedures, policies and strategies
for the company and liaison with investors as well as securities analysts.
From January 2011 to July 2014, Mr. Fung was the chief financial officer
and company secretary of Zall Development (Cayman) Holding Co., Ltd. (&
MR FES)PIERER L F) (now known as Zall Group Ltd. (FREEK
AR T]), a property developer listed on the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 2098), where he was responsible for financial and compliance
matters. From July 2014 to April 2017, Mr. Fung was the chief financial
officer and company secretary of Kong Sun Holdings Limited (T |LI#% 8%
AR 7]), a solar power plants investor and operator listed on the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 0295), where he was responsible for overall
financial operation, company secretarial matters and investor relations.
From September 2014 to April 2017, Mr. Fung was an independent
supervisor of Chery HuiYin Motor Finance Service Co., Ltd. (B Rk A
E S FRHD AR A F]), an automobile finance joint venture, where he was
responsible for monitoring the company’s operations as a member of the
board of supervisors.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)
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Mr. Fung has been an independent non-executive director of FY Financial
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. (ZREbEFAE(RYINBRR AR, a financial services
company listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 8452), since
April 2017, responsible for supervising and providing independent advice
to the board of directors. Since May 2017, Mr. Fung has been the chief
financial officer of Beijing Enterprises Urban Resources Group Co., Ltd. (1t
i T A R EE AR A R]), responsible for the overall financial and
investor relations matters.

Mr. Fung was admitted as a fellow member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants in the United Kingdom (“UK”) and the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants in October 2001 and
September 2005, respectively. Mr. Fung received his bachelor’s degree
in accountancy from Hong Kong Polytechnic University in October 1992.

Mr. Chong Yew Hoong (“Mr. Chong”), aged 65, was appointed as our
INED on 8 June 2017. Mr. Chong is also the Chairman of the
Remuneration Committee and a member of each of the Audit Committee
and the Nomination Committee. He is responsible for providing
independent advice to our Board.

Mr. Chong served as the partner of the advisory services division and the
project consultant of Ernst and Young Vietnam Limited from October
2007 to December 2010 and from January 2011 to June 2011,
respectively. From September 2011 to July 2014, he served as a
member of the Council of Members and a member of Council of Risk
Management Committee of Hong Leong Bank Vietnam Limited.

Mr. Chong has been a director of Tom Chong Business Advisory
Services Sdn. Bhd., a company principally engaged in the provision of
corporate restructuring, financial planning and executive training services,
since August 2011 and the director of Delta 5 Group Sdn. Bhd., a
company principally engaged in the provision of enterprise resource
planning implementation and consulting services, since May 2014. He
has also been a director of Finsoft Consulting Sdn. Bhd., a company
principally engaged in the provision of enterprise resource planning
software and services, since January 2017.

Mr. Chong was admitted as a certified public accountant of the Malaysia
Association of Certified Public Accountants in April 1982 and a member
of Malaysia Institute of Accountants in May 1985. Mr. Chong took a joint
examination organised by the University of Cambridge, in collaboration
with the University of Malaya, and obtained a Higher School Certificate,
incorporating a General Certificate of Education, in December 1975.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)

Mr. Ng Hock Boon (“Mr. Ng”), aged 58, was appointed as our INED on
8 June 2017. Mr. Ng is also a Member of each of the Audit Committee,
the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee. He is
responsible for providing independent advice to our Board.

Mr. Ng has over 21 years of experience in company secretarial services.
From October 1993 to August 1996, he worked as an assistant manager
of corporate planning of Arab-Malaysian Merchant Bank Berhad, where
he assisted in the provision of group corporate planning. From May 1998
to June 1999, Mr. Ng was the assistant general manager of Tru-Mix
Concrete Sdn. Bhd., a concrete manufacturer, where he was responsible
for assisting the general manager. From May 2001 to May 2005, Mr. Ng
was the corporate affairs and company secretary of Shanghai Chong Kee
Construction Sdn. Bhd., a company which principally engages in interior
design and fitout works. From April 2005 to July 2011, he was the
personal assistant to the managing director of Shanghai Chong Kee
Furniture and Construction Private Limited.

Mr. Ng completed a company secretarial course of The Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and Administrators in England in February 1985.
Mr. Ng was re-elected as an Associate of The Malaysian Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and Administrators in January 2017. He received a
diploma in commerce (business management) from Tunku Abdul Rahman
College in Malaysia in June 1985 and a master’s degree of business
administration from The Cranfield Institute of Technology in England in
June 1998.
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CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

Mr. Eugene Kang Hong Ngee (“Mr. Kang”), aged 48, has been our
Chief Financial Officer since 1 May 2018 and is primarily responsible for
finance, accounting and taxation matters of the Group.

Mr. Kang has accumulated over 20 years of experience in financial audit,
corporate finance and commercial finance and accounting. He started his
career in 1995 as an audit associate in Price Waterhouse, Malaysia
before progressing to the position of Assistant Manager in 2000.
Subsequently, he joined Alliance Merchant Bank Berhad in 2000 and
HwangDBS Investment Bank Berhad in 2003, and worked in their
respective corporate finance departments. During that period, he was
involved in various projects, including initial public offerings, equity fund
raising and mergers and acquisitions. In 2008, Mr. Kang joined
Rubberflex Sdn Bhd, a Malaysian rubber-based product manufacturer
and exporter, as its director and chief financial officer, where he was
responsible for finance, accounting, taxation and corporate matters.

Mr. Kang completed his examinations of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants of the United Kingdom (“ACCA”) in 1995, and was
admitted as an Associate in 1998, and subsequently became a fellow of
the ACCA in 2003. He is also a member of the Malaysian Institute of
Accountants.

R&D GENERAL MANAGER

Ms. Chew Mun Tho (“Ms. Chew”), aged 51, has been our research
and development (R&D) general manager since 1 March 2016 and is
primarily responsible for the management of our R&D and providing
technical support to our customers.

Ms. Chew has over 11 years of experience in the food industry. From
September 1994 to August 2014, Ms. Chew worked as a R&D manager
of Cadbury Confectionery Malaysia Sdn. Bhd., a company which
produces snack foods, where she was responsible for the overall
management of R&D.

Ms. Chew received a bachelor of technology degree from the University
of Science in Malaysia in August 1992.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)

DIRECTOR OF SALES AND MARKETING

Ms. Jamie Loh Yee Leng (“Ms. Loh”), aged 57, is the Director of Sales
& Marketing since 23 March 2019 and she is responsible for the strategic
sales planning and marketing strategy of our company branded products
in the domestic and international markets.

Ms. Loh has over 25 years of sales and marketing management
experience in the fast moving consumer goods (‘FMCG”) industry. From
May 1995 to September 2014, Ms. Loh held various management
positions within the GBA Group of Companies. During that period, Ms.
Loh’s role included the new start-up of GBA Corporation (Singapore) Pte.
Ltd. from 1 March 2004 to 31 May 2006 and Allbrand Global Sdn. Bhd.
from June 2010 to February 2013. As the General Manager in both the
wholly-owned subsidiary companies of GBA Corporation Sdn. Bhd., she
was responsible for the sales, marketing and distribution of internationally
known FMCG brands.

In March 2013, Ms. Loh was reassigned to GBA Corporation Sdn. Bhd.
as a Deputy General Manager and concurrently held the position of a
Country Manager, under Ferrero S.E.A. from June 2013 to September
2014 for Ferrero branded business in Malaysia. From October 2015 to
March 2019, Ms. Loh joined HACO Asia Pacific Sdn. Bhd., a subsidiary
of HACO AG, renowned for producing premium quality coffee and
innovative foodservice products. She was the head of international and
domestic sales and marketing, for both industrial and retail segment.

Ms. Loh holds a Diploma in Business & Management from Segi College,
Malaysia in March 2008 and a Master of Business Administration (General
Management) from University of Southern Queensland, Australia in July
2009.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

BRiE #HERERERE

ABOUT THIS REPORT

This is the Environmental, Social and Governance (‘ESG”) Report (the
“Report”) of S&P International Holding Limited (“S&P” or the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively known as the “Group” or “We”). This
report addresses a range of material impacts on the Group, outlining our
sustainability approaches and disclosing our ESG performances during
the period from 1 January 2019 to 31 December 2019 (the “Reporting
Period”).

Unless otherwise stated, this Report mainly focuses on our core
businesses in the manufacturing and distribution of coconut cream
powder, low fat desiccated coconut, coconut milk and other related
products in Malaysia, i.e. the headquarters (the “HQ”) and our plant in
Perak (the “Perak Plant”), which account for the majority of our total
revenue during the Reporting Period.

In preparation of this Report, we have adhered to the Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide (“ESG Guide”) set out in
Appendix 27 issued by the Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited
to disclose our sustainability issues in material aspects during the
Reporting Period. It is recommended to read this Report in conjunction
with the “Corporate Governance Report” included in this Annual Report,
regarding the Corporate Governance measures.

We treasure every valuable opinion of our stakeholders. If you have any
opinions about this report and our sustainability performances, please do
not hesitate to send your feedback to us at info@spfood.com.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

ABOUT S&P

Being one of the global major brands among the coconut cream powder
industry, we are committed to producing the highest quality products.
We are passionate to deliver quality coconut food products with their
natural flavour and nutritional attributes being presented in a convenient
form to the world whilst being committed to achieve superior results and
share the success with all parties involved.

Core Values:

Teamwork

Bis

Striving for
Excellence

SR

Loyalty, Trust and
Respect

BH - FEREE

and Innovation

TEE B R AIH

Dedicated to Quality:

° World-class technology for the freshest taste

° Systematic manufacturing processes

° Technological investments

o Uncompromising quality control

In order to fulfil the diverse needs and requirements of our customers in
different market sectors, we offer our customers with a variety of
products under our different brands, namely “Santan”, “Cosip”, “Kerra”

and “Rasa Enak”. Through continuous innovation and refinement, it
assists us to maintain steady and excellence product quality.
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e

iving the Hallmarks
of Great Leadership
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Passion for our
Customers
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

BE HERERRE®

During the Reporting Period, we are engaged in manufacturing and
distribution of food products, such as coconut cream powder, low fat
desiccated coconut, non-diary creamer, rice dumplings (ketupat) and
toasted coconut paste (kerisik), etc. Our footprints cover more than 40
countries, to provide our products to OEM customers, distributors,
industrial customers, trading companies and wholesaler customers all
over the world.

America

=M

South
America

mEM

During the manufacturing process of coconut powder, we extracted
natural coconut milk from selected fresh coconuts by spray drying. This
way not only secures the natural taste of coconut cream in an instant and
convenient form, but also provides a versatile and easy to store product
for our customers. Therefore, our coconut cream powder become our
best-selling products, and is widely used as a cooking ingredient in
South-east Asian and Middle Eastern cuisine.

In late 2019, we further enhanced our factory and started a new
production line for our new product — coconut milk. The coconut milk
are first filtrated to remove all shredded coconut pulp. They are then
preserved by the ultra-high-temperature process whereby the milk is
rapidly heated to a very high temperature and cooled down. This
technology can kill off harmful bacteria while retaining the maximum
nutrients and natural flavor of coconut milk. The processed coconut milk
is then stored at the aseptic tank before packaging to ensure that our
product is hygienic and fresh with long shelf life. Coconut milk product
will be launched in the first half of 2020.

RHEHE RARERAEERDHE O
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Oceania

KFEM
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Em BZRARRBED LRI
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FRHER — MPNFTEER - & LB
MBBABRENBRME ARECBES
BTERE BHHRENBRETSEE
WARA - ZERMAIRISLEEHARE - BER
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

Sustainability Approach

Sustainability is an integral part of our growth and development,
meanwhile, it is deeply embedded in our daily operation. During the
Reporting Period, our unwavering commitment to investment in people
together with the coordinated strategy of brand building has helped
maintained our market leader position in the food and beverage industry
and paved the way towards achieving the long-term success of the
Group. We are committed to creating value and enriching our effort on
the environment and society in which we operate through the following 5
sustainability values.

BE HERERBE®

AEFERRER

ARBEEREBMERBEZER A LR
M EMAREZES -RNMEHMH - R,
PMEEHMREAT  NEREZRNWHA
KES BRMALEEREZRTREMMA - X
BAKERERNETER - LABEBN
THERAFKEEREER BOREEEY
HBEMEBAENRERLEERAES R
5 o

Environmental Protection R EIR1E

People Orientation WA A &7

Quality Control BE£=H|

SUSTAINABILITY VALUES
AEERRER

Supply Chain Management {i & &2

Community Investment ttE&E

Our sustainable growth and success lie in our commitment and
perseverance in constantly providing quality food and service to our
customers. We pursue to understand and satisfy our customers’ needs
through our daily operation.

Sustainability governance

We are committed to continually improving our sustainability governance
practice.

The Board of Directors is responsible for the oversight of the Group’s risk
management activities. Through its Audit Committee, which is further
supported by compliance department and internal audit, it supervises the
risk management of the entire Group.

All material risks, which is inclusion of ESG-related risks, are addressed
by the Board of Directors. Identified risks are prioritized and further
mitigation actions will be taken to those issues with higher risks.
Compliance Department are then responsible for monitoring the
implementation of mitigation measures.

LEMERNT —ZE—NFFER

B8O THBAEERHEEBERM IR
B ARAREBTERSREREKINE
#o-RMEABELNEIHUET 7 MFE
EPHHE -

ARERRER
BRMBARBARATHBEEREAHH -

EFRAREEALENAREREDY -
EEGEBABHERT EAA KB
RABERBIINE— SRS BERE
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EXEeRERERRRR HEehEAM
FEREANAEEARRER- - &5 # &
BAERELEE RALSEHRARKEH
FHRRBGE — FRERBREE - A 5 AP
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BRE #E8RERRE®

Thus, the Environmental Regulatory compliance Monitoring Committee
(ERCMC), which is chaired by an executive director, is set up and
responsible for provide further assistance on establishing environmental-
related policy and monitoring work. It is supported by Environmental
Performance Monitoring Committee (EPMC). EPMC reports to ERCMC
on a regular basis and enforce Group sustainability policy and activities.

Stakeholder engagement

We believe that understanding the views of our stakeholders lays a solid
foundation to the long-term growth and success of the Group. We
develop multiple channels to a broad spectrum of stakeholders in order
to provide them with the opportunity to express their views on our
sustainability performance and future strategies.

To reinforce mutual trust and respect, we are committed to maintaining
enduring communication channels, both formally and informally, with
stakeholders to better shape our business strategies in order to respond
to their needs and expectations, anticipate risks and strengthen key
relationships.

Employees, customers, business partners, shareholders, suppliers,
government and the community are our key stakeholders. To solicit
feedback from our key stakeholder groups, we conducted an online and
paper survey during the Reporting Period. In accordance with the survey,
we have defined the priority aspects with the largest impact on our
business and stakeholder businesses through the materiality assessment.

We mapped the results of our materiality assessment onto a matrix to
reflect the relative importance and impact of the issues to our
stakeholders and our business. We strive to review these issues
continuously in order to improve our sustainability performance. The
materiality matrix also serves as an underlying basis for the structure of
the Report.

Materiality Matrix
EEMEE

At RAREXRIBHATESTEETR
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

Our Key Focus Areas

RE HEREBRBRE®

EMWEZEEITHEHE

Employee-related
issues

EEHBRSEE

Environmental Protection
and Green Operation

BRERZREOEE

Operating Practices

ZERH

Product and Service = Community
Responsibility Contribution
EmRRESEE #H &5 #

1. Diversification and
Anti-discrimination

ZAL R RIEAR

2. Turnover Rate
MR

3. Occupational Safety
and Health
W2 EER

4. Training and
Development
Bl kR

5. Child and Forced
labour
ETRRHST

6. Employment
Relationship/
Communication

EREBE ER
7. Employee Benefits/

Recreation

EERF,BE

HMEEBERLT

—=—

16. Supplier Selection
Process

HEMEERRF

8. Sewage Disposal

BIRBE IR

9. Greenhouse Gas

Emissions 17. Anti-Fraud and
BERBIEW Corruption
RBFRRES
10. Air Emissions
[ RN 18. Business Continuity

Plan
11. Treatment of Hazardous 278354 1 5+ 21
and Non-Hazardous
Wastes
BEERBEZEEYD
ropid

12. Energy and Water

Conservation
£ 8E i 7K
13. Natural Resources
KAER
14. Supplier Environmental
and Social Assessment
HERRB R GG

15. Carbon Trading System

R 58 %

NEEH

19. Product Quality 24. Participation in

EnE=s Volunteer Activities
2MEREEY
20. Complaints Handling
HFRIE 25. Donations
BR

21. Intellectual Property
B ENE

22. Customer Privacy

EF R

23. Research and
Development

it 3%
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RE HERERRE @

PRODUCT QUALITY AND SAFETY

Quality Control

In S&P, we treat high food quality and safety as the backbone of the
customer journey and a fundamental pre-requisite in achieving customer
satisfaction. We are committed to make products which are authentic,
safe to consume, of high quality and satisfy customer requirements. An
in-house chemical and microbiological testing laboratory has been set up
to conduct quality checking on the incoming materials in accordance with
different certification systems. These testing processes are critical in
identifying any incoming materials that do not meet our quality standards.
Our production system is fully automated and centrally monitored, which
allows us to deliver high quality products to our customers consistently.

The Group has been accredited with certifications and standards related
to quality management and food safety. They include Hazard Analysis
and Critical Control Point (HACCP), ISO 22000:2005 food safety
management, MS 1480:2007 Malaysian Food Safety Standard and I1ISO
9001:2015 Quality management. Moreover, our products have been
certified HALAL and KOSHER, allowing us to sell our products to
customers in different ethnic communities. These certifications provide
our customers confident in our quality and standard upon consumption.
During the Reporting Period, we are not aware of any non-compliance
with the applicable laws and regulations including but not limited to the
Malaysia’s Food Hygiene Regulations 2009, Food Act 1983 (act 281) and
Food regulations 1985.

Apart from the above-mentioned certifications, the information relating to
the material licences, permits and certificates required in conducting our
business during the Reporting Period are as follow:

° Manufacturing license (Issued by Ministry of International Trade and
Industry of Malaysia)

° Food premises license (Issued by Ministry of Health of Malaysia)
° Food establishment licence (Issued by Teluk Intan Municipal
Council)

° Permit of scheduled controlled goods (Issued by Ministry of
Domestic Trade, Co-operatives and Consumerism)

° Industry and trading licence (Issued by Teluk Intan Municipal
Council & Petaling Jaya Municipal Council)

MERLEBRNEAMEERLRE2/REFIK
RO TEERBEEWEENLRK
fFeRMBONEEANSE TERBEENE
mARBREEP®R - RABRLEBRM
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

° Business licence (Issued by Petaling Jaya Municipal Council & Batu
Pahat Municipal Council)

o Food establishment licence (Issued by Petaling Jaya Municipal
Council)

Pre-production phase (packaging and raw materials)

All incoming raw materials are gone through our quality assessment
before use. Coconuts and white kernels are checked in respect of their
weight, acidity level, physical appearance and odour. For other raw
ingredients, they are checked based on their certificates or labels
prepared by the suppliers to ensure that they match with the description
of goods ordered, physical condition, moisture content and
manufacturing date. For food packaging material, swab tests and
microbiological analysis will be conducted. If any products are found to
be problematic, they would be managed separately.

Production phase (intermediate products)

Mixing of
Intermediate
Products

BRE HERERRE @

o & F ¥ BR( M Petaling Jaya Municipal
Council X Batu Pahat Municipal Council 28
)

o B M ¥ IR (F Petaling Jaya Municipal
Council 78 #)

SERRER(BEREME)
FREAERMENMEREBBERMANE
EFEH-ABFERAHANE  RMAER
TEE BRE HNBEREK- pLEMERT
ErEMERBEHERRENLCRES B
FETRE AMREMTBEM 3 I
EmEHEHYERR S KERREAH-
BRRMEEMHAMNS  RMAGETHATH
BRI EY ST ER A EMRFER
2R T AR -

SERER(FEER)

e Sampling tests are carried out to assess the acidity levels

s ch RS = 5 by chemical analysis, in order to monitor the consistency and

quality of our products.

ETCEDTRBEMESSR  UEERMAERN —BMHEREER -

Pasteurisation
Stage

fd
BLE temperature regularly.

HEER BB R R S T E B R

Sieving of
Semi-finished

Products

The spray dryer operator monitors the pasteurisation

/a8 B == 3\ B
13/!%-13/11112 ©

Products are scanned by the metal detector to ensure the

MRS S powder does not contaminate of any metal fragments.
EmBRESBRAUNRER  UERBATSZEMTEBHERTE -

LEMERNT —ZE—NFFER
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BRE #E8RERRE®

Post-production phase (finished products)

For finished products, a final comprehensive test will be conducted by
our Quality Control Department. Random sampling checks and physico-
chemical analysis are carried out on various aspects, including acidity
and moisture levels, density, solubility, carbohydrate, protein and fat
content, and presence of ash. A final microbiological test is also carried
out to examine any presence of bacteria and pathogens, such as E.coli,
coliform, salmonella, yeast and mould.

Food packaging plays a vital role in preserving food throughout the
distribution chain. For the packaging of our finished products, we use
different kinds of packaging materials, including PE bag, Woven Bag,
Kraft Paper, Carton Box and Aluminium Foil. We have approximately 230
types of packaging materials purchased from suppliers with good
credentials. In order to ensure they are readily available and maintained at
an ideal level, we keep track on all incoming and outgoing inventories.

SEEABR(BEER)

REAmMNE  BEEHHLPIKETHRR
2 EOA L - 05k % 8 7 T 1T BE A A AR
EREAIN BEBRERSKE =E -
BEE -WRXKEEY EREREHEE
URERE - RIS ETREREDR
O BREBAFEANKBRRERE  KBRE -
YJF'EJEEH T B I B 5 AR TR B2

o

EmBEERER fﬁfﬁﬂiﬂ&ﬁﬁﬁzuu
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FrEFEMRANRRL -

=

g 1Fﬁ

2019 2018 2017 Unit
“E-hF —T)\F -T—LF B
Total Packing Materials used for Finished Products 603.57 711.85 733.10  tonnes
B TR B M EHEE NI
Metal 166.41 186.00 202.10  tonnes
Gl N
Paper 415.32 500.54 500.60  tonnes
4R N
Plastic 17.19 20.13 tonnes
B N
30.40
Others' 4.65 5.18 tonnes
Hb N
Total Packing Materials used for Finished Products 0.14 0.16 0.12  tonnes/tonne of
Production Unit
R MTBEREMEEE AWE N WA A EE BB AL
1 Others mean Woven Bag used in 2018 & 2019 and woven and plastic bag 1 HiER =T - \FLR=ZE—NFFEAN
used in 2017. BERXREN _T-—LFERANRERRE
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

ENVIRONMENT

Under the trend of low-carbon and energy-saving development, the
Group does not aware of any non-compliance with relevant national laws
and regulations related to environmental protection in Malaysia, including
Environmental Quality (Industrial Effluent) Regulations, Environmental
Quality (Clean Air) Regulations & Environmental Quality Act.

We incorporate the energy conservation and low-carbon concept into
every aspect and continue to optimize use of resources. Facing the
evolvement of regulatory requirement and the rising expectation of
stakeholders on environmental issues, we had established a systematic
and quantitative approach to manage our environmental emissions and
resources.

We have appointed an independent registered energy service company
to conduct Energy Audit during the Reporting Period. In order to secure
the improvement of energy management for the good energy saving
investment, there are six energy conservation measures identified. They
include:

(1)  Air leakage management on the Compressor;

(2)  Maintenance and comprehensive cleaning on the Pump;

(8)  Improvement on Sustainable Energy Management System;

(4)  Comprehensive maintenance on the Chiller;

(6)  Excess air improvement on the Boiler; and

(6) Resized and retrofit to High Efficiency Motor

All of these measures will be implemented by stages. We believe we will
be able to reduce the energy consumption by around 10% after

implementing these energy conservation measures.

During the Reporting Period, we purchased water from municipal water
supply and faced no difficulties in sourcing water.

MEEBMERAT —Z-NEFFR

RE HEREBRBRE®
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RE HERERRE @

The following table shows the environmental KPI during the Reporting

TRIVRR S B A RIR @ RE RS

Period:
2019 2018 2017 Unit
—E-NF CT)\F —T—F B
Air Emission
BER¥ENE
Nitrogen Oxide (NO,) 4.84 4.30 7.92  tonnes
AEALY(NOY NI
Sulphur Oxide (SO,) 0.89 0.75 1.05  tonnes
a1k (S0, NI
Particulate Matter (PM)? 64.52 13.51 18.89  tonnes
8% FERL(PM)? NI
GHG Emissions
BERBHEME
Total GHG Emissions 9,915.06 8,838.95 11,727.29  tonnes of CO,e
BERBYERES A —ALRE =
Gross GHG Emissions (Scope 1) 304.12 296.56 394.43  tonnes of COe
mBERBHNE (BHE1) N —EREE
GHG Emissions (Scope 2) 1,718.82 1,685.93 1,905.33  tonnes of CO,e
BERBHNE (BE2) AW LIRE 2
GHG Emissions (Biogenic) 7,892.11 6,856.46 9,427.53  tonnes of CO,e
BERBHME (EWR) A ZALRE =
Total GHG Emissions Intensity 2.33 1.93 1.93  tonnes of CO,e/tonne of
Production Unit
BRERBHNEETE AW B LIRE &
AMEAEEN
Energy
BE R
Total Energy Consumption 26,028.34 22,261.27 30,300.86  MWh
R EREE JK B B
Purchased Electricity 2,476.69 2,275.20 2,571.30  MWh
BE KBS
Diesel 1,149.97 1,236.51 1,627.27  MWh
e JK FL B
Biomass 22,401.67 18,749.56 26,202.29 MWh
EME JK B
Energy Consumption Intensity 6.11 4.87 4.98  MWh/tonne of Production Unit
BERERTE JKELEF, AR A EE B AL
2 The significant increase in PM emission in 2019 is due to the update of 2 RZZT—NF - BZERBERE KB M

emission factor in 2019.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)
RE #HEREREBE @

2019 2018 2017 Unit
—E-NEF ZF-N\F ZET—+tF EBf

Water
7K
Total Water Consumption 104,769.00 94,803.00 98,567.00 m®
BIEKE SR
Water Consumption Intensity 24.60 20.75 16.19  m?®tonne of Production Unit
K% E MK AMEEEEN
Hazardous Waste
BEEEY
SW 409 1.13 0.50 0.52  Tonnes
SW 409 Nl
Hazardous Waste Intensity 0.27 0.11 0.08  kg/tonne of Production Unit
EEREDEE Fr/AMEEBL
Non-Hazardous Waste®
BEBRED®
Total Non-Hazardous Waste 653.60 523.99 1,130.30 tonnes
BEEEVEE N

Plastic 30.74 25.56 35.15  tonnes

B NI

Paper 19.24 7.38 24.44  tonnes

i NI

Rejected coconut 505.37 406.44 1,070.71  tonnes

TABBT Al

Other General Waste* 98.25 84.61 N/A  tonnes

Hbh—fREED @A ANE
Non-Hazardous Waste Intensity 0.15 0.11 0.19  tonne/tonne of Production Unit
BEBEEMEE AWE, AW A EE B AL

3 Regarding the Non-Hazardous Waste, the amount disclosed for Plastic, Paper 3 REEEEYNE  IRENZE KER

and Rejected Coconut are related to the quantity recycled or reused, while the
Other General Waste, which is residual ash and office and plant general waste,

are disposed of.

4 We have started collecting and reporting other general waste data since 2018.

MEEBMERAT —Z-NEFFR

RAGRBFHEBERKLENBHRER
BA T E b — A% BE 2 W (BD 5 DA Tl &
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RE HERERRE @

Emission Management

The Group continues to step up efforts for control of air emission and
effluent discharge, so as to minimize pollution arisen during operation.

In the Reporting Period, we have upgraded our sewage treatment plant
for the sake of the business growth. All effluent is treated before
discharge by passing through clarifying pond, aeration pond, trickling
tower and oil trap.

R ER

REB BB IMA N E S R 8B &5 K
B UWEERVELHHEELMNISR -

RmEHE SERERBKER  RFAEISK
RRIEMAET T AR PTBISKESRAT S
BB B BRI RIS NIRRT
BR T2 o

In accordance with Environmental Quality (Industrial Effluent) Regulation
2009, no parties shall discharge effluent to water body beyond the
designated condition. In order to perform closely monitoring on the
discharge level, we conduct effluent analysis twice a month, with the use
of analysis parameters including Chemical Oxygen Demand (COD),
Biochemical Oxygen Demand (BOD) and pH. During the Reporting
Period, we are not aware of any non-compliance with all applicable laws
and regulations in regard to sewage discharge.

The Group’s main air and greenhouse gas emission is generated from
the operation of biomass boiler, use of diesel forklift and purchased
electricity. In this regard, we had adopted smoke density meter to
monitor the air emission regularly. Moreover, we had entrusted third party
laboratory to conduct Isokinetic stack sampling and air emission
monitoring regularly so as to comply with the requirements of
Environmental Quality (Clean Air) Regulations 2014.

BB(ZZZENFRBLEE(TEFK)R
By - A ADE 5K EEREB TR
SEY KBS o B ) BE R BEROK F - R AIE A
L2 FH 2 (COD)  £1bF & = (BOD) & I i
BEEHS 248 5EAETRRSKD
Mo RIEME BMABRIMNERBH
SKBERAM T A EAERRERIBR

AEBENETEZRLBREREBHENREKR
EMERBENEE B XENERME
Bepltms  RFEREFZENESRT
MBS AR BRI - N BRPIREE=ZTE
BRETHETSREBRELRRBHMNE
A LNEHKCZE-NFEFREEE(RFZE
R RBIDEI RN -
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

To strengthen our monitoring process, we had installed a Continuous
Emission Monitoring (CEM) System at our key emission exhaust. This
system helps to monitor multiple gas species simultaneously and reduce
the number of workforces for monitoring. If there is any abnormal result
noted, an ERCMC meeting will be held immediately to identify and adopt
the rectification measures as soon as practicable.

Waste Management

Our hazardous waste is mainly produced during the production process,
including disposed containers, bags or equipment contaminated with
chemicals, pesticides, mineral oil or scheduled wastes, which its
hazardous waste code is SW409 as stated in the Environmental Quality
(Scheduled Wastes) Regulations 2005. It is stored in an individual cabin
which is separated from other non-hazardous wastes. All hazardous
wastes are placed on pallet to avoid contact with the floor. A qualified
third party is responsible for the collection and handling those hazardous
wastes on a regular basis.

Industrial effluent is the primary waste generated from our production
process at Perak Plant. It is generated from our Clean-in-place (CIP)
system, which discharges nitric and caustic acid, and generated from the
process of cleaning our white kernels. We treat the industrial effluent with
our on-site industrial effluent treatment plant carefully before discharge.

During the combustion of coconut shells, residual ash is generated from
the biomass boiler. It would be collected together with other general
waste by a third party for disposal and recycling. To monitor the ash
generation, a monitoring system is installed as requested by the
Department of Environment in Malaysia. Also, the biomass boiler is
examined by the Department of Environment and the Department of
Occupational Safety and Health in Malaysia every year.

Mitigation Measures

By formulating the system for energy utilization and implementing
measures on energy conservation and emission reduction, the Group
continues to improve energy efficiency and push forward low-carbon
operation:

Energy-saving

° Give priority to cooling equipment with lower energy consumption
and highly efficient electronic appliances

° Use natural light in office as far as possible

° Advocate the application of energy-saving lamps

° Use teleconference or email instead of overseas business trips

° Remind employees to turn off all air-conditioners and power supply
during the non-office hours

MEEBMERAT —Z-NEFFR

RIE - HERERRS @
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BRE #E8RERRE®

Water conservation
° Give priority to water-saving equipment and products in the office
area

o Promote the water saving idea to all staffs

° Place the poster with the reminder of “Conserve water” near the
taps of each water supply system, such as canteen area, sinks, etc

° Install water-saving taps and sanitary fittings and properly design
the water supply and drainage systems

Reduction of paper use
° Adopt electronic document filing system

° Promote the use of electronic communication means for
announcement publishing, event reporting, recommendation
solicitation and feedback

° Promote the reuse of file folders, envelopes and other stationery

Others
o Hold “Environmental Day” to share knowledge, tips and information
on environment protection through fun games and video sharing

° Share tips on saving the environment to all employees by email on
a monthly basis

° Encourage employees to bring their own cups and tableware, and
avoid using disposable utensils or plastic containers

While highlighting management of energy conservation and emission
reduction in operation, we strive to minimize wastes and extend the
waste life cycle by implementing different waste reduction measures.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

In order to reduce waste production, we pay great effort to fully utilize
every single coconut. By adopting the waste-to-energy technology, we
use biofuel as our main fuel instead of fossil fuel since 2013. We collect
and burn the coconut shells and woodchips as bio-fuel for our biomass
boiler to produce heat. With the introduction of biomass boiler and the
combustion of coconut shells, we have reduced fuel costs to a great
extent.

We are committed to advocating the green and low carbon concept to
our stakeholders. Thus, we have initiated the awareness program on
environmental policies at our HQ and Perak Plant since last year. We
share environmental policies and data analysis review at the billboard and
entrance. We also encourage our employees to participate in the training
regarding environmental protection held by the Department of
Environment in order to raise their environmental protection awareness.
We strive to promote the low carbon, green, sustainability and other
environmental protection concepts to the public. We also encourage the
public to reduce waste by adopting recyclable carton package. Customer
can recycle the package by merely flattening it and send it to the nearest
collection centre.

OUR PEOPLE

We adhere to the business philosophy of “people-oriented”, and
recognizes that employees and communities are fundamental to the
substantial development of the Group.

We are dedicated to providing our employees with a safe working
environment, attractive compensation and benefits, adequate training
and career advancement, where continuous benchmarking to our current
mechanism, so that every employee can grow with us.
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BE HERERRE®

Staff Overview

We are convinced that success depends entirely on the enthusiasm and
excellence of our staff. As of 31 December 2019, the Group employs a
total of 319 employees, detailed classifications are as follow:

By Gender
RIEBIEI D

ETHME

BFFEE K2 BAABRMEBER LG
MEI - BHEZ_Z—hL&F+_A=+—
H AEEBAHLEMAIZES  HAHHE
R

By Employment Type*
ZRERERLES"

e Male e Full-time
E 2
o Female o Part-time/Contract

R AR

By Geographical Region* By Age Group
RihIPEIR* RERED

e 30 or below

30T
o Malaysia o 31-40
BRI 31-40%%
e Others e 41-50
Hits 41-50%%

® 50 or above
50m A L

Details of the turnover rate are as follow: MALLEFBWOT

By Gender By Age Group By Geographical Region
RUERIE S RFEERED it B &
e 20-30
20-305%
e Male e 31-40 e Malaysia
E 31-40%% BRAEE
o Female o 41-50 o Others
41-507% Htr
* New classification for workforce by employment type and geographical location are * BT NFRITIRERERRMBMNEEH

shown since year 2019 HEI N
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

Talents Recruitment

We are dedicated to promoting professional development and providing
a harmonious working environment and development platform for our
employees.

We will never deter their employment and promotion opportunities due to
their age, gender, marital status, race, religion or nationality. During the
recruitment process, we take a variety of factors into account, such as
our development plans, vacancies within our Group, work experience
and education background of the candidates. We assess their personal
knowledge, technical skills and working attitude through written tests and
interviews, thereby recruiting suitable persons. Talented staffs are
promoted by assessing their performance, experience and ability. We
attach great importance to employees’ performance management and
incentives. Performance appraisal will be conducted regularly to evaluate
and analyse the employees’ accomplishment of performance targets.

Upholding the employment principle of “fairness, openness and equity”,
the Group adopts a zero-tolerance approach towards any form of
discrimination and prohibits the use of child and force labour.

There are several roles within our Group that have to be filled by
personnel with the requisite skillset, work experience, educational
background or qualification. Examples are shown as follow:

Project manager 18 B #&£12

BE HERERBE®

AT

BRBIRBEAZEEER SRMNER
REMENTERRERERYS -

BRI ERE THFEK  HH - BAMR
no Rk RHABEEMFEEAIERES
MigEe RMABAEIR -—REEEZHE
HAE  nHMOETSE ARENBLE
R EBENTIEERLEE -HEBRE
AL EAFEEEAMG Rk R T
TEREE BUBRAEAT - HAEBFG
HRBR KREENENEFET - HFIF
FEREENEREELER - HAHE
HETERTIZ UFBEIMEEEX
BIEMTRIER -

AEBRFIQAF A AEINERER
A HEMPANBRERESBEE - I
BIEFEREIR®HST -

-

S B % TE R 7 78 AR S B R T
YR8 - S LA M) A YR (E - B3

mF -

® Requires a bachelor degree in engineering or equivalent qualification
HEBEIRSLEUXFFER

=]

=

e Requires a degree, diploma or equivalent qualification
EBRmBMRmBEETEN  XWRHAFER

~

s

in food technology or food science

Boilerman $81& T

e Obtains a boiler certificate issued by the Department of Occupational Safety and

Health (jabatan keselamatan dan kesihatan pekerja)

BEEB 2L 2 BEFE I (jabatan keselamatan dan kesihatan pekerja)J8 3 ) iRjE &=

R&D staff ff3&E T

e Requires a degree in food technology or food science

AHRmRIT R mB 22
e At least three years of relevant work experiences

= A= F Il TIEER

LEBARQE —FE-IEER

35



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

RE HERERRE @

We generally enter into a standard form of employment contract with our
employees, which contain confidentiality clauses and standard restrictive
covenants. We hire our employees through recruitment channels. During
the Reporting Period, we are not aware of any major labour disputes,
work stoppages or labour strikes.

Remuneration and Welfare

Adhering to the principle that corporate growth relies on and benefits
employees, the Group establishes a remuneration system based on the
characteristics of different posts to reflect the internal fairness and
external competitiveness. Remuneration packages consist of basic
salary, incentive bonus scheme which encourages employees to improve
their individual and departmental performance. Employees are entitled to
paid annual leave, marriage leave, maternity leave, replacement leave and
other statutory holidays in accordance with the laws, protecting their
basic rights.

At the same time, we regularly adjust employees’ remuneration package
according to their performance and skills, as well as the industry norms,
to ensure both external competitiveness and internal equity.

B -—REREBITLSELANERS
B BREAREGRNEER G TR
e RMBEBHEBREARERERE - NHREH
B HAELFABEERMERNS LA  FT
HET -

¥ & &8 A

AEBBRFOEERFTEBELERELE
BEMRA RE TR AR R 5
BR UBRABIFUERINFEFME - 5
M BmEANFE MEBIEATE (S ER
BRAEBARMPIRR)EK - EEHH#E
REZEHHFFR BR ER BAKEE
fEERA  RELENER -

FE RMBEEENRIIR LRENKLIT
$RBERBEE RIS LR
BEMRABAT -

Company trip YNETD &)
In January 2019, our headquarter staff had a shot R-Z—hE— 8 {EALFIEE K HFAMES
vacation in Bali, Indonesia as company reward trip. We @E T EEEEERATETNBEH KMRAEE

think it is a great way to boost employee motivation while
strengthening teamwork among co-workers. Other staff
social activities include playing bowling, and celebrating
Hari Raya together, and white water rafting. The vacation
and various other activities were filled with immense
happiness and joy.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

Development and Training

Average
Training Hours
T A5 5

hrs
/N

10.8

Male
St 7
In order to offer better development prospect, the Group elaborately
establishes a sound employee training and development program,
covering induction training to practical courses of on-the-job training. We
also encourage employees to learn advanced knowledge and participate
in external training courses. We provide complete course support for
employees at each of their career development stage, so as to facilitate
their rapid growth. In 2019, all employees have received trainings. They
are trained with different programmes in various sectors such as
induction training, computer skills, market trends in food industry,
management system training, safety training and product briefing.

For new employees, we organize orientation training and provides tailor-
made relevant courses for them so that they can be more familiar with
and integrate into the corporate culture, adapt and understand the
business operation efficiently.

For existing employees, we provide workshops, internal and external
trainings for them to improve their understanding and knowledge of work
safety issues and hazard identification, risk assessments and risk control
issues.

All directors, including the independent non-executive directors, should
keep abreast of their responsibilities as directors and our business
activities. To facilitate the directors to perform their responsibilities, they
are required to attend the training to strengthen their management
knowledge and skills.

MEEBMERAT —Z-NEFFR
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BRE #E8RERRE®

Occupational Health & Safety

The Group takes various measures to create an excellent working and
living environment, so as to safeguard the safety and occupational health
of our employees. We are not aware of any non-compliance with
Occupational Safety and Health Act and all applicable laws and
regulations relevant to occupational health and safety during the
Reporting Period. In this regard, achieving the aim of this Act, which are
to secure the safety, health and welfare of workers in the workplace and
to protect others against risks to safety or health, are our top priorities.
We have set up an occupational safety and health policy as a guideline
for the staff of the Group. During the Reporting Period, there were no
work-related fatalities and work injuries recorded.

A work and environment safety committee is set up to discuss and
address matters related to environmental and occupational health and
safety issues of our Group. The committee members include our factory
managers and production managers, and personnel from the Human
Resources Department. With opinions collected from different
departments, we believe we can address our environmental, health and
safety issues in a considerate way.

Our production sites are equipped with fire protection equipment and
tools. Warning signs are placed around the production sites to warn and
remind our staff of safety issues. Regular trainings regarding occupational
safety, hazardous chemicals handling and fire safety are provided to
enhance our employees’ health and safety awareness.

Annual health examination and medical insurance are provided to ensure
the physical health of our staffs. We also maintain employer’s liability
insurance, public liability insurance against any damages caused to third
parties and consequential loss insurance policies. Besides, we have
taken out an insurance policy against any damage that may be caused
by our biomass boiler.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

Labour Standard

We adhere to the human rights framework that creates an environment
where human rights issues can be openly discussed.

Child and forced labour are strictly prohibited during the recruitment
process as defined by the laws and regulations. During the hiring
process, candidates shall provide identity documents and valid
employment visas to ensure that they are legally employable. Human
Resources Department will also ensure the identity documents are
carefully checked and no child or forced labour are employed by the
Group. If any false presentation or fraud committed by the employee is
found, the Group or its subsidiaries have the right to terminate the
contract of that employee. During the Reporting Period, we are not aware
of any non-compliance incidents regarding child and forced labour.

We have been in stringent compliance with the laws and regulations in
Malaysia relevant to the Labour Standards, including but not limited to:

° Employment Act 1955 (Amendment 2012)

° Industrial Relations Act 1967 (Amendment 2010)

° Employment (Limitation of Overtime Work) Regulations 1980

o Employment Regulations 1957

° Human Resource Development Act 1992

° Minimum Retirement Age Act 2012

° Children and Young Person (Employment) Act 1966

° Holiday Act 1951
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RE HERERRE @

Ethical Culture

We uphold the corporate culture of “fairness, justice, honesty and
integrity”. We take a zero-tolerance approach with regard to bribery,
extortion, fraud and money laundering. In an aim to cultivate an ethical
corporate culture and practice, all gifts, banquets and customer rebates
are prohibited according to our “No Gift policy”. If any misconduct, fraud,
unlawful behaviour or suspected commercial bribery is found, it shall be
passed on to judicial authorities for pursuit of charges.

During the Reporting Period, we are not aware of any pending or
concluded legal proceedings regarding corruption brought against the
Group or any of our employees.

SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT AND
CUSTOMER SATISFACTION

The Group believes that successful collaboration with suppliers and
business partners is critical to our business operation, which leads us in
achieving sustainable development.

We have adopted standardised procurement procedures in order to
improve the efficiency of our operations. The procurement procedures
are as follow:

Conduct weekly

reviews of Issue purchase
! Conduct p

an plan purahases  supplier andl obtain
accordingly qssessments approvals
SEETEN - HimRE BLEMER
WA AIE s HEmEHE
SRl o

BRI
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TRRREE - RERERNEENERE
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SRMANEA-—LREREAEBETHR
REBRERREF ©

HEBEEREFRARE

AEERE BHREFREBBHORYD
BEHRMANEREEEREZR AR
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Obtain price Issue )
quotations purchase Receive
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In order to safeguard the quality of our raw materials, all new suppliers
will be assessed by their manufacturing practices, capacity, product
quality, etc. Our 14 main suppliers are from Malaysia, Indonesia, China
and Europe.

Number of supplier

HAEREE

The Group continues to improve the nutrition value and quality of our
products and enhance the customer satisfaction in terms of flavour
innovation and packaging design. Customer Complaint Policy and
Product Return Policy are established to standardize the procedures of
handling customer complaint and ensure any returned products are
properly documented. Whenever we receive customer’s complaint, we
will first carry out verification of the complaints. Quality testing on the
alleged sub-standard product will be conducted when it is necessary. If
our products are found and proved to be defective, we will follow up on
the relevant complaint with our customer and our factory. In addition, we
will continue to address the issues giving rise to the quality issues or
defective packaging until the problem is settled.

We have maintained product liability insurance to cover any liabilities
arising from the sale of our products.

Privacy Protection

The trust of our customers forms the foundation of our business success
and brand image. The Group complies with data privacy laws and
regulations and respects customer privacy. We collect and handle
customer’s personal data carefully. Unauthorised use of customer data is
strictly prohibited. Customer data are only accessible by authorised
personnel within the Group on a need-to-know and need-to-use basis. In
order to raise the employees’ awareness of the importance of privacy
protection, relevant training on managing sensitive customer and
company information is provided.
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COMMUNITY INVESTMENT HEKRE

ERABENEERAR HMEER2ESR
BREEMHELRHEE  BIBMLE &K
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EHBELRERAUKERR - RRSRKA
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As a responsible corporate citizen, we actively participate in various
charity and social welfare issues for the sake of caring for the local
communities. Understanding our local communities, foreseeing their
needs and promoting a sustainable future are our ultimate goals. We
have established CSR campaign during the Reporting Period, in order to
raise awareness of national pride while doing goods by giving back to the
society.

CASE STUDY — Rancangan Tempatan
2035 Bagan Datuk (Local Plan 2035
Bagan Datuk)

In May 2019, the local council in Bagan Datuk, Perak
launched an Urbanisation Program, which is named as
“Rancangan Tempatan 2035 Bagan Datuk” (Local Plan
2035 Bagan Datuk). A team of fifteen staff participated in
the program and set up a booth as a way to extend our
support. Our staff actively interacted with the attendees
and discussed about the development of the place. To
further share our happiness, they distributed goodies

£ | Hf & —Rancangan Tempatan 2035
Bagan Datuk (Bagan Datuk — & = f
i 75 1R El)

R=—F—NLF A A & EBagan Datukit 7 & & #

— A Wk $8 1k 51 &l - & A&l Rancangan Tempatan 2035
Bagan Datuk | (Bagan Datuk — & = F 3t 5 iR El) - H
5B B THKMNER 2T Zat 8 - Wk BALIA
BRI HF -BMANBEIHEHSNABREES  WiH
ZHMENER RE—FHZTEMOEN  KMHHE
TEREE YA NMABREEEIHL - F1E AKE
BYMHIETFRL

bags and gave away free dessert to the attendees. All of
them are happy with their gifts.

42 S&P INTERNATIONAL HOLDING LIMITED =~ ANNUAL REPORT 2019



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

CASE STUDY — Young chef challenge 2019
BERJAYA University College is Malaysia’s premier
University College that specialises and champions the
advancement of Business, Culinary, Communications &
Media, Hospitality, Tourism and Services Industries. In
2019, we are honoured to co-host the amazing event
Young Chef Challenge with BERJAYA University College.
It was an ideal platform for the Young Chef to showcase
their culinary skills and get hands-on experience.
Furthermore, the winner team (team of 2) had the
international exposure to attend ANUGA, the world’s
largest trade fair for food and beverages, at Cologne,
Germany as cooking/preparation chefs.

BRE HERERRE @
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RE HERERRE @

CASE STUDY —#AnakAnakMalaysia
Walk

= {5 ¥t & —#AnakAnakMalaysia Walk

We have always wanted to take part in corporate social
responsibility and sponsorship events that allow our
products to reach our fans and consumers. #AnakAnak
Malaysia, which has been launched since 2016, is a
celebration of unity and harmony as all Malaysians are
encouraged to walk together while sporting the iconic
#AnakAnakMalaysia wristband- a unique way of
expressing love for the country. Therefore, the Group
joined in the communal fun as a first-time sponsor for the
#AnakAnak Malaysia 2019 initiative.

We sponsored RM10,000 worth of products for #AnakAnak
Malaysia participants. Apart from the sponsorship, 11
staff members also participated to support the national
walk in person.
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R HERERERS @

HKEX ESG REPORTING GUIDE INDEX EBRXREZ(BEE HERE
N =
AR E1EBI) &I
Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosure and KPIs Chapter/Disclosure Page
TEEHE - EH —REERERENER B WE BR
A. Environmental
A RE
Aspect A1 : Emissions
BEAT: HERY
General Disclosure Environment 27-33
Information on:
(@ the policies; and
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer relating to air and greenhouse
gas emissions, discharges into water and land, and generation
of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.
— BB R
FHBERMAERBHEN MKE TS BEEREEER
MBEEZH -
@ HE: Kk
() BEIFEHETABEAZENHBEERANNER -
KPIA1.1  The types of emissions and respective emissions data. Environment 27-31
RABRAEN R R AR BB - RIR
EIZALA
KPIA1.2  Greenhouse gas emissions in total and where appropriate, Environment 28
intensity.
MBEEN RERBEINER(MEREE - RIE
BEAL2
KPI'A1.3  Total hazardous waste produced and where appropriate, ~ Environment 29
intensity.
BRENR FMELETEEVEER(WEREE - RIE
FEIEAL3
KPI A1.4  Total non-hazardous waste produced and where Environment 29
appropriate, intensity.
BRENR MELAEZTEEVESR(WMEREE - RIR
EIZA14
MUEEERAT —E-NEFH 45
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RE HERERRE @

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosure and KPIs Chapter/Disclosure Page

TEHERE - EH —REERBREIEER BH RE BHR

KPI'A1.5  Description of measures to mitigate emissions and results ~ Environment 27-33
achieved.

BEEN RARESERENEBEMEKR - RIR

EIEALS

KPI'A1.6  Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes  Waste Management 31
are handled, reduction initiatives and results achieved.

MBEEN HAEEEERBEZTEEVNLE REEEENE BEVER

EIEA1L MERAEKR-

Aspect A2 : Use of Resources

BEmA2: EREA

General Disclosure Environment 27-29, 32-33

Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water and

other raw materials.

Note: Resources may be used in production, in storage, transportation,

in buildings, electronic equipment, etc.

— R %

ERFERER(BIEER - KREAMRERMED) MR -

i BRFAIARAE [fF E@ BF EFREF-

KPI A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type in total ~ Environment 28
and intensity.

BRER RPLISNEERER LHEZEEREEEREE - RIR

EIEA2.1

KPIA2.2  Water consumption in total and intensity. Environment 29

BREN BREKEREE- RIE

EIRA2.2

KPI A2.3  Description of energy use efficiency initiatives and results Mitigation Measures 32
achieved.

AN RMERERRSEABIRMFRR - & BE 1S b

EIEA2.3

KPI'A2.4  Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing Environment 27,32
water that is fit for purpose, water efficiency initiatives
and results achieved.

BREXN HMSKEERXKR EAIBEREE - UREABKE RIE

BIEA24 @B RATERR -

KPI A2.5  Total packaging material used for finished products, Product Quality and Safety 24-25

and if applicable, with reference to per unit produced.
BREN HEXGAEEMHNEER (NER)BEEEN
EIZA25 1HE o

EmEERLTE
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)
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Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosure and KPIs Chapter/Disclosure Page

TEHER -EFH —REERBRARER BEE RE "R

Aspect A3 : The Environment and Natural Resources
EEA3: RERRXARER

General Disclosure Environment 27

Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impact on the
environment and natural resources.
—HE %

WIRBETAHRERAABERENERZENILE -

KPI A3.1  Description of the significant impacts of activities on Environment 27-33
the environment and natural resources and the actions
taken to manage them.

BREN HAEBEBHHRERRAERNEATER RIE

EIZEA31 EERDMEEBBAFZENTH-

B. Social
B.#4&
Employment and Labour Practices

ERBRETER
Aspect B1 : Employment

EBEB1: EE
General Disclosure Our People 33-39
Information on:
(@  the policies; and
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer relating to compensation and
dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest
periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and
other benefits and welfare.

—RWE A

ERATMERE BEREM TENE B TSRS %
T~ RURAR A R A8 R AR A -

@ BE:&

b BETHETABEAZENHBIZRAONES -
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RE HERERRE @

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosure and KPIs Chapter/Disclosure Page
TEHERE - EH —REERBREIEER EHWE BHR
KPIB1.1  Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group Staff Overview 34
and geographical region.
MBEN RUR ERER FRANRMEISNESR ETIHE
EIEBIA Hoo
KPIB1.2  Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and Staff Overview 34
geographical region.

BRENR RER - FRAMNRMEESHNEERKLE - ETIHE
¥E1EB1.2
Aspect B2 : Health and Safety
EEB2: RREZZ
General Disclosure Occupational Health and Safety 38
Information on:
(@  the policies; and
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a

significant impact on the issuer relating to providing a safe

working environment and protecting employees from

occupational hazards.
— MR BERERETD
FARHZE2TIFERERREEERABELEEN
@ ®EE:R
() BEIFTEHBRTABEATENRBEEZRAMNNER -
KPIB2.1  Number and rate of work-related fatalities. During the Reporting Period, there

was no work-related fatalities.
BRENR FAIFEEERMIETHABRLE- R¥REERE - WEETIIERER
§12B2.1 LT HIE
KPIB2.2  Lost days due to work injury. During the Reporting Period, there
was no lost days due to work injury.

AgEw AIBEAIEAR. REE TEAIEEAT
¥1EB2.2 R -
KPIB2.3  Description of occupational health and safety measures Occupational Health and Safety 38

adopted, how they are implemented and monitored.
BRAEN RMOAMRAOBERERT 2N AREBEART
EIZB2.3 REEFIE-

BERERARZE
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Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosure and KPIs Chapter/Disclosure Page

TEHERE - EH —REERBREIEER BH RE BHR

Aspect B3 : Development and Training

BEB3: &R REI

General Disclosure Development and Training 37

Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for discharging

duties at work. Description of training activities.

— MK R R IEF

FARABREBRTIERENMNBHRKAEMBUR - T INE

g o

KPIB3.1  The percentage of employees trained by gender and Not disclosed for this Reporting N/A
employee category. Period

MBEw RUBMEEEMNESHXIEEBDL 2N 3 5 HA R R BR 38 A

512 B3.1

KPIB3.2  The average training hours completed per employee by Development and Training 37
gender and employee category.

BRENR RUEMNKREESRANED  BHEEE KN TY R RE

fE1ZB3.2 BEH -

Aspect B4 : Labour Standards

[EEB4: % T#H|

General Disclosure Labour Standard 39

Information on:

(@  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a

significant impact on the issuer relating to preventing child and
forced labour.

— R E & T g

EBPIEE TR H 4 Th:

@ HE: Kk

b) BFHETABEAZENHBEEZLBRONE -

KPIB4.1  Description of measures to review employment practices ~ Not disclosed for this Reporting N/A
to avoid child and forced labour. Period

BRAENR fMimdBREEMNERAREE T RRGIST - AN 3 5 B 0 AR R BR A5 A

E1EB41
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Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosure and KPIs Chapter/Disclosure Page

TEHERE - EH —REERBREIEER BH RE BHR

KPIB4.2  Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices Labour Standard 39

when discovered.

BREN MAEZHRERBEAREREEBAMKROLR - SITER

E1EB4.2

Operating Practices

EEE

Aspect B5 : Supply Chain Management

[EEB5: ftEHEEE

General Disclosure Supply Chain Management and 40-41
Customer Satisfaction

Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the supply

chain.

— MR HEEEEREFPWEE

ERHERNBRE R ERARBUER -

KPIB5.1  Number of suppliers by geographical region. Supply Chain Management and 41
Customer Satisfaction

MBEN eIl o HEMEE - HEEEEREPREE

512 B5.1

KPIB5.2  Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, Supply Chain Management and 40-41

number of suppliers where the practices are being

implemented, how they are implemented and monitored.
BREN RABMRERHEEFENED  mERTEBENN
512852 HEBHEE ULEHEEMNNRITRERAE -

Customer Satisfaction

HEBEENEPMEE
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R HERERERS @

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosure and KPIs Chapter/Disclosure Page
TEHRE EH —REBERBERENER EHWE 'R
Aspect B6 : Product Responsibility

EHEB6: EmEE

General Disclosure Product Quality and Safety; 24-26;

Information on:

(@  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer relating to health and safety,
advertising, labelling and privacy matters relating to products and
services provided and methods of redress.

— R E
FHAMREERNBRENRERELZ S  ES ZHEILEETN
M Em

@ BX: X

b BFHETABEAZENMEBEIZRBAOINER -

KPIB6.1  Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to
recalls for safety and health reasons.

BREN CERCEXERBAHTRL2ERRIEHMAD

E1EB6T WH A DL -

KPIB6.2  Number of products and service related complaints
received and how they are dealt with.

MREEN BEEREREREBRBEORFEEUREE ST E-

51%B6.2

KPIB6.3  Description of practices relating to observing and
protecting intellectual property rights.

BREN Mol gERERRENBREZEF@ENED -

§12B6.3

KPIB6.4  Description of quality assurance process and recall
procedures.

BREN HAEERTREIEMDWRET -

512 B6.4

KPIB6.5  Description of consumer data protection and privacy
policies, how they are implemented and monitored.

FREN RO BEEEENRERLBESE  URBBE#RT

12865 REEEFIE-

MEEEFRAA —ZB—NFFRK

Privacy Protection; 42
We were not aware of any material

violations of laws and regulations

relating to product advertising and

labelling for this Reporting Period.

EmEERT S

PEARE

WA EE - RPIRE AT
MEAEREERRES MEEMA
BOERMRPINIBEREE -

Not disclosed for this Reporting N/A

Period

7N 3R 45 B fE 0 R R BR A3 A

Not disclosed for this Reporting N/A

Period

2 3 5 B I R R BR A3 A

Not disclosed for this Reporting N/A

Period

PN R=s e S R A A3 A

Not disclosed for this Reporting N/A

Period

7N 3R 45 B R 0 AR R BR A5

Not disclosed for this Reporting N/A

Period

A 3 5 HA I R R BR A3 A
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Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosure and KPIs Chapter/Disclosure Page

TEHERE - EH —REERBREIEER EHWE BHR

Aspect B7 : Anti-corruption

BEB7: KES

General Disclosure Ethical Culture 40

Information on:

(@  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a

significant impact on the issuer relating to bribery, extortion,
fraud and money laundering.

— R BEX

BRI ILER 9% MEFRERERN

@ BE: Kk

b) BFHETAGEAZENHBEEZLBRONE -

KPI B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt Ethical Culture 40
practices brought against the issuer or its employees
during the reporting period and the outcomes of the cases.

FREN RERMAHBTAXHEERETEEFANERS B2

EIZEB71 HFAREHMEE RFRER-

KPIB7.2  Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing Not disclosed for this Reporting N/A
procedures, how they are implemented and monitored. Period

MBEEN HAMBHEMEIERER UREERTRERA AN 3 5 HA R I R R BR T3 A

EIEB7.2 ko

Aspect B8 : Community Investment

[EEB8: HERE

General Disclosure Community Investment 42-44

Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of the

communities where the issuer operates and to ensure its activities take

into consideration the communities’ interests.

— B E tEiEE

FEANMBR2ERTRETALEMNEHEZTENBREED

EBEeEEMEMEAEER -

KPIB8.1  Focus areas of contribution. Community Investment 42-44

MREN HXIEREE- MERE

$515B8.1

KPIB8.2  Resources contributed to the focus area. Community Investment 42-44

BREN EEIHEMBAER- HRigE

§1£B8.2
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is engaged in the manufacturing and distribution of coconut
based food products. Its core products include coconut cream powder
and low fat desiccated coconut, manufactured mainly at the Group’s
manufacturing facility located at Bagan Datoh, Perak, Malaysia (the “Perak
Plant”). The Group also manufactures other food products such as non-
dairy creamer and other South-east Asian traditional food or food
ingredients such as rice dumplings (ketupat) and toasted coconut paste
(kerisik).

The year 2019 has been anything but a challenging year. Coconut based
food products market has undergone significant unforeseeable changes
in market conditions. The Group’s major market in West Indies and
Middle East continued to slide in 2019 due to the changes in local
immigration regulations in previous year, which was meant to curtail the
number of foreign workers in those countries, and the increased market
competition from new entrants in an already depressed market. Despite
this market scenario, which the management believe will ease in the near
future, the Group proceeded with its plant expansion and enhancement
projects during the year, albeit having to incur more expenses giving rise
to a poorer financial performance for the financial year ended 31
December 2019 than otherwise. The management view this as strategic
and appropriate as these projects will help strengthen the Group’s
competitiveness through further automation of manufacturing and
business processes and widening the Group’s product range.

During the year, the Group has substantially installed a state-of-the-art
ultra-high-temperature (“UHT”) liquid production facility at our Perak Plant
(the “UHT Facility”). We envisage to commence commercial production
by the second quarter of 2020. The commissioning of this production
facility will realise the Group’s long held wish of producing liquid products
such as coconut milk, coconut milk beverages and coconut water on our
own and be distributed through various channel. This will provide fresh
impetus for the Group’s future revenue growth. As part of our strategic
plan, we have intensified research and development efforts to develop
products that are aligned to the new consumer trend and preferences
which is expanding at a rapid rate.

The management team had also intensified sales and marketing efforts to
promote our in-house brands. In this regard, we undertook a rebranding
exercise to vitalise our brand image and to engage our customers
through digital platforms. Furthermore, we have reorganise our
distribution channels to provide greater focus on our various customer
groups.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)

EEEBNBWNED *ﬁ(mﬁ

In summary, the management team is confident of realising the expected
benefits flowing from the projects implemented in 2019 in terms of
enhanced competitiveness in the years ahead. It is still optimistic of the
growing global market demand for coconut based products although it
may, in some ways, be dampened by logistic and transport issues arising
from the COVID-19 pandemic sweeping around the world. Most of the
Group’s coconut based food products are supplementary in nature to
staple food of a large part of the populace of the world. As such, demand
for our coconut based products going forward would remain high and
stable.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

For FY2019, the Group reported a loss after tax of RM1.9 million as
compared to a profit after tax of RM6.3 million for FY2018. The adverse
results for FY2019 could be attributed to a few main factors which
include a loss of sales volume and the increases in selling and distribution
expenses and administrative expenses, as further described below.

The Group recognised approximately RM68.3 million in revenue for
FY2019, representing a decrease of approximately 14.6%, or RM11.7
million, when compared with that for FY2018 which was approximately
RM80.0 million. The decrease in sales was largely attributed to a drop in
the sales volume of coconut food products, due to the effects of changes
in the business environment in major markets in which the Group
operates and increase in intensity of market competition from new
entrants in the Group’s market.

The Group’s cost of sales decreased by approximately 3.7%, or RM2.0
million, from approximately RM54.2 million for FY2018 to approximately
RM52.2 million for FY2019. The cost of sales decreased
disproportionately with reduction in sales due to () the increase in
average cost of coconuts imported and (i) the lower production volume
in FY2019 as compared to that in FY2018, resulting in higher cost of
production per unit.

Consequently, the gross profit margin of the Group for FY2019 reduced
to 23.7% as compared to 32.3% for FY2018 and the gross profit for
FY2019 of the Group decreased by approximately 37.4%, or RM9.6
million when compared with that for FY2018.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)

Coconut related products

The Group’s revenue is mainly derived from sales of coconut food
products. Revenue for such products for FY2019 was approximately
RM66.9 million, representing a drop of approximately RM11.8 million or
15.0% as compared to that for FY2018 of approximately RM78.7 million.
The decrease in revenue for coconut related products was primarily due
to the drop in sales volume arising from the increase in price competition
in certain markets.

Other revenue is mainly made up of sales of ketupat, freight charges to
customers and sales of miscellaneous items. In FY2019, other revenue
was approximately RM1.4 million, representing a marginal increase of
RMO.1 million from RM1.3 million posted in FY2018.

Other income

In FY2019, other income comprised mainly unrealised gain on foreign
exchange of RM0.3 million, rental income of RM0.2 million and sale of
scrap items and other sundry income of RMO0.4 million.

Selling and distribution expenses

The Group’s selling and distribution expenses of approximately RM4.7
million for FY2019 was approximately RMO0.2 million higher than those of
approximately RM4.5 million for FY2018. The increase in the selling and
distribution expenses was attributed to () more aggressive sales and
marketing efforts being undertaken in FY2019 in order to develop the
brands under which the Group’s products were sold, (i) costs incurred
on the appointment of new distributors in certain key markets and (iii)
pre-launch costs incurred for the Group’s upcoming new products to be
rolled out in 2020.

Administrative expenses

The Group’s administrative expenses for FY2019 were approximately
RM13.8 million, which represented an increase of approximately RM3.0
million over those of RM10.8 million in FY2018. Such increase was due
to an increase in staff and other related costs in line with the Group’s
factory and sales expansion plans.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)
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Other expenses

The Group’s other expenses for FY2019 were approximately RMO0.4
million, which were mainly made up of realised foreign exchange loss.
The foreign exchange loss arose primarily from the fluctuation of RM
against the United States Dollar (“USD”) during FY2019. In FY2018, other
expenses comprised unrealised foreign exchange losses and an
impairment loss on goodwiill.

Net finance (costs)/income

In FY2019, the Group incurred net finance costs of RM0.4 million as
compared to the net finance income of RM0.6 million in FY2018. The net
finance costs were incurred primarily due to the interest charged on loans
and borrowings drawn down to partially finance the Group’s expansion
plans.

Income tax credit/(expense)

The Group’s income tax credit for FY2019 was approximately RMO0.3
million as compared with income tax expense of approximately RM2.6
million for FY2018. The income tax credit for FY2019 related mainly to
overprovision of deferred tax liabilities from previous year.

(Loss)/Profit attributable to equity Shareholders

The Group recorded a loss attributable to equity Shareholders of
approximately RM1.8 million for FY2019 as compared to a profit of
approximately RM6.3 million in FY2018. The loss for FY2019 was due to
the lower revenue recorded in FY2019, resulting in lower gross profit
contribution, which was inadequate to cover the expenses of the Group.
This was exacerbated by the higher selling and distribution and
administrative expenses in FY2019 as compared to those in FY2018, as
the Group embarked on various initiatives to develop core capabilities as
described above.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)

FUTURE PROSPECTS AND STRATEGIES

Despite the loss after tax reported for FY2019, the Group remains
optimistic about its long term prospects and profitability.

We believe that the demand for coconut based products will remain
strong in tandem with the growing consumer trend for vegan food
products. The Group will continue to focus on utilising our core
capabilities in product innovation to drive sales.

In addition, the Group will continue to increase brand recognition of our
own brands through continuous and aggressive marketing and promotion
campaigns via our newly appointed distributors as well as through
various digital platforms.

The management team will also continue focusing on sales of coconut
milk, coconut milk beverage and coconut water upon commencement of
commercial operations of the UHT Facility in the second quarter of 2020.
We envisage that these products will provide fresh impetus for the
Group’s future revenue growth.

Last but not least, we are sensitive towards market needs and consumer
preferences of our products. The management team will make use of the
Group’s research and development capabilities and take a consumer-
centric approach to meet the requirements and preferences of the
consumers. The Group is cognizant of the market trends within the
industry in which it operates, and will actively take steps to cater for such
trends, including developing new product variants to suit consumer
tastes, and leverage on the potential of coconut related products as a
healthier alternative to dairy milk products and sweetened carbonated
drinks.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)
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LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The Group maintains a solid financial position and was in a net cash
position as at 31 December 2019. The Group is able to meet its
obligations when they become due in its ordinary and usual course of
business.

Capital Structure

The Group’s objectives in managing capital are to maintain a strong
capital base and safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, so as to maintain investors, creditors and market confidence
and sustain future development of the business.

There were no changes in the Group’s approach to capital management
during FY2019.

Cash Position

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents were
approximately RM25.6 million as compared with approximately RM46.1
million as at 31 December 2018. The decrease of approximately RM20.5
million in cash was mainly due to the utilisation of cash resources for the
Group’s capital expenditures as described below.

Loans and Borrowings

As at 31 December 2019, the loans and borrowings amounted to
approximately RM33.6 million, representing an increase of approximately
RM30.2 million as compared to approximately RM3.4 million as at 31
December 2018, attributable primarily to drawdowns of loans and
borrowings during FY2019 to partially finance the Group’s capital
expenditure as described below.

Gearing Ratio

Gearing ratio equals to total debt divided by total equity. As at 31
December 2019, the gearing ratio was approximately 0.28 (2018: 0.03).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2019, the carrying amount of assets pledged to
licensed banks for banking facilities granted to the Group were as follows:
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Leasehold land HME L

Freehold land IKAFERELT

Factory buildings and other buildings ITHREFRHEMESF

Plants and machinery within constructionin =~ fE £ & & M # 28
progress

Right-of-use assets for a building BFHNEREEE

Pledged time deposits 2 E B F K

2019 2018
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- 246,339
1,227,196 97,046
21,374,138 8,026,943
48,126,469 —
1,981,000 2,065,000
5,000,000 —
77,708,803 10,435,328

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES

During FY2019, the Group had incurred capital expenditures of
approximately RM49.6 million as compared to approximately RM27.3
million in FY2018. The expenditures related mainly to the purchase of
property, plant and equipment and construction works of a new building
at the Group’s Perak Plant.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS

The Group did not hold any significant investments as at 31 December
2019, except for the other investments which comprise time deposits
pledged with a licensed bank to secured a loan of a subsidiary. The
Group did not hold any significant investments as at 31 December 2018.

MATERIALS ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS
OF SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT
VENTURES

The Group did not have any material acquisition or disposal of
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures during FY2019.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)
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FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

The Group undertakes certain transactions denominated in foreign
currencies, mainly in USD and Hong Kong dollars (‘HK$”), and hence,
exposure to exchange rate fluctuations arises. The Group currently does
not have a foreign currency hedging policy. However, management
monitors foreign exchange exposure closely and performs foreign
currency transactions for the Group’s cashflow needs in keeping the net
exposure to an acceptable level.

FINAL DIVIDEND

At the meeting of the Board held on 27 March 2020, the Board has
resolved not to recommend the payment of any dividend to the
Shareholders for FY2019 (2018: Nil).

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The annual general meeting of the Company (the “AGM”) will be held at
11:00 a.m. on Friday, 22 May 2020 at 27-1, Jalan PJU 5/13, Dataran
Sunway, Kota Damansara, 47810 Petaling Jaya, Selangor, Malaysia and
the notice of the AGM will be published and despatched in accordance
with the requirements under the Company’s articles of association and
the Listing Rules in due course.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For the purpose of determining the Shareholders’ rights to attend and
vote at the forthcoming AGM, the register of members of the Company
will be closed from Tuesday, 19 May 2020 to Friday, 22 May 2020, both
days inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares of the Company
(the “Shares”) will be registered. In order to be eligible for attending and
voting at the forthcoming AGM, non-registered Shareholders must lodge
their duly completed and stamped transfer forms accompanied by the
relevant share certificates with the Company’s branch share registrar in
Hong Kong, Boardroom Share Registrars (HK) Limited, Room 2103B,
21/F, 148 Electric Road, North Point, Hong Kong, for registration no later
than 4:30 p.m. on Monday, 18 May 2020.

S BE [ B

AEBETHNETRSUIINE(EBRET
RET(TET]))EHE - & ELE XKD
[ B - A& B B AT SMNE O BEK - R
m BEEEBRYEZINERREASAEE
REREBFETINER S A FE R R

HETEEAF -

RKERE

R-Z-2E=A-ttABFMESS
SN FESORBTEABR-Z—A
4 B B 4F 1 PR SRR A9 (E TR B (= B —
i) o

BRREFKRE

KRABIKR_ZT_ZEFRAA-_+-_H(Z
HA) LT+ — 8 IE R E27-1, Jalan PJU
5/13, Dataran Sunway, Kota Damansara, 47810
Petaling Jaya, Selangor, Malaysia £& 17 % 8 #&
FRg((RRBEAE])  BRAREEFK
ENBAEHERBERARCTNESEREHA
Bl R £ 748 R B0 48 7E 1) 88 M 27 3% o

TENERODBFELTTFE

RETRFALIFEERREFASIRE
ERENEF ARRBER_ZE_ZTFH
At+thB(EH ) 2_E_THFRA=-+
Z—H(EHRA)(RIEEEMB) iE T =ik
ERMBFPFELFE BHEBTTHIER
AafEh ((BRBHBFERL - BTELEE
ERRABFRAENERRERE LRE
REERFEAR S -_FTERATNB(E
) THFEN =1+ EEZREEE
NBFPFRIFERBEREEIARTRE
BHRDBFPELSREREESZERLA
RAaE (it 5B B AT RE14857211
2103B=E) * ARWIBERLFE -

60 S&P INTERNATIONAL HOLDING LIMITED =~ ANNUAL REPORT 2019



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION
POLICIES

The Group had 319 and 285 employees as at 31 December 2019 and
31 December 2018, respectively. Remuneration is determined by
reference to the prevailing market terms and in accordance with the
performance, qualification and experience of each individual employee
and the Group’s financial results. Periodic in-house training is provided to
the employees to enhance the knowledge of the workforce. Meanwhile,
training programs conducted by qualified personnel are also attended by
our employees to enhance their skills set and working experience.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) with effect from 11 July 2017 to enable the Board to grant
share options to eligible participants with an opportunity to have a
personal stake in the Company with a view to achieving the following
objectives: (i) motivate the eligible participants to optimise their
performance efficiency for the benefit of the Group and (i) attract and
retain or otherwise maintain an ongoing business relationship with the
eligible participants whose contributions are or will be beneficial to the
long-term growth of the Group.

As at 31 December 2019 and the date of this annual report, there was no
outstanding share option granted under the Share Option Scheme and
no share option lapsed or was granted, exercised or cancelled during
FY2019.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group did not have any material contingent liabilities as at 31
December 2019 and 31 December 2018 other than as disclosed in Note
31 to the consolidated financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES

The Company did not redeem any of its Shares listed on the Stock
Exchange nor did the Company or any of its subsidiaries purchase or sell
any of such Shares during FY2019.

EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

No event that has a significant impact on the Group has occurred after
the reporting period and up to the date of this annual report.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EEERRE

S&P International Holding Limited (the “Company”) is committed to
fulfiling its responsibilities to shareholders (the “Shareholders”) and
protecting as well as enhancing Shareholders’ value through good
corporate governance.

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) recognise the importance
of incorporating elements of good corporate governance in the
management structures, internal control and risk management
procedures of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) so as to
achieve effective accountability.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company’s ordinary shares (the “Shares”) in issue were listed on the
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) on 11 July 2017 (the “Listing Date”). The Company has
adopted and complied with all applicable code provisions as set out in
the Corporate Governance Code as contained in Appendix 14 to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules” and the “CG Code”, respectively) during the financial
year ended 31 December 2019 (“FY2019”) and up to the date of this
annual report.

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as contained in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct governing
the securities transactions by the Directors. Following a specific enquiry
made by the Company on each of the Directors, all Directors have
confirmed that they had complied with the Model Code during FY2019.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Responsibilities

The board of Directors (the “Board”) is primarily responsible for
overseeing and supervising the management of the business affairs and
the overall performance of the Group. The Board sets the Group’s values
and standards and ensures that the requisite financial and human
resources support is in place for the Group to achieve its objectives. The
functions performed by the Board include but are not limited to
formulating the Group’s business plans and strategies, deciding all
significant financial (including major capital expenditure) and operational
issues, developing, monitoring and reviewing the Group’s corporate
governance practices and all other functions reserved to the Board under

MEKEARAB(EAF]) —EHRAR
BRMKRR])BENRE - WHEERFH
CEEAMMREMRESHRRER-

ARREE(EBDFAELRRAREN
BAR([AEE])EERE AMEELE
REERBFARARMEXREARABRNE
VEYEAEZERM -

TXERER

AAREBETEARIRGDR=2ZF—+t
FrtA+—BH(LtTmHEBDREEBHA
REG5MBERAR (R ER Eme R
AAREBEZT—NF+ZA=+—HIL
BHRFE(ZSE-NLFHRFE]))EARF
KAOBHERMNTEBETHIMES ETHR
BI(TEm A M k1457 3 b 2 & A <7 B
([EERTA S AMEEATRMES -

ESETESFRS

ARB SR £ AR B ERA10PT & L 2%
TAEFETEFRXINEETA([RE
JFANDEREAGERESTETESFRS
MITATA - BARBAREBMLESEELA
BERR 2REFTCHEARSERN_FT—
NEFRFEEDBTRETEH -

EEE

BE
Exg((EEg T2 BEEEREERN
SENEXBEERERRAEE -EF9
REAEENEEREE ABRERAGL
FOMBRANER UEAEEERH
REER - -EFERTHBESRETR
REIEARBERE LRI REMA
EAVB(BRIEEATH) REEETH
RE-BR ERRBHAKEENDLXE
BERARBREMREARAMAHEER
AMA(EABRERARNDARGESTSIRIE

62 S&P INTERNATIONAL HOLDING LIMITED =~ ANNUAL REPORT 2019



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

the Company’s articles of association (the “Articles of Association”).
The Board has established Board committees as described in the section
headed “Board Committees” below and has delegated to these Board
committees various responsibilities as set out in their respective terms of
reference. The responsibilities of these Board committees include
monitoring the Group’s operational and financial performance, and
ensuring that appropriate internal control and risk management are in
place. The Board may from time to time delegate certain functions to
management of the Group if and when considered appropriate. The
management is mainly responsible for the execution of the business
plans, strategies and policies adopted by the Board and assigned to it
from time to time.

The Directors have full access to information of the Group and
management has an obligation to supply the Directors with adequate
information in a timely manner to enable the Directors to perform their
responsibilities. The Directors are entitled to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances at the Company’s
expense.

Composition

The Company is committed to holding and implementing the view that
the Board should include a balanced composition of executive Directors (the
“Executive Directors”) and independent non-executive Directors (the
“INEDs”) so that there is a strong independent element on the Board
which can effectively exercise independent judgment.

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprises the following
seven Directors, of which the INEDs in aggregate represent more than
one-third of the Board members:

Executive Directors

Mr. Tang Koon Fook (Chairman)

Mr. Lee Sieng Poon (Managing Director)
Mr. Yap Boon Teong

Ms. Wong Yuen Lee

INEDs

Mr. Fung Che Wai, Anthony
Mr. Chong Yew Hoong
Mr. Ng Hock Boon
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The biographical details of each of the Directors are set out in the section
headed “Directors and Senior Management Profile” of this annual report.
An updated list of the Directors, including the Executive Directors and the
INEDs, identifying their roles and functions is also maintained on the
respective websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

There was no financial, business, family or other material relationship
among the Directors.

The INEDs have brought in a wide range of business and financial
expertise, experience and independent judgement to the Board. Through
active participation in the Board meetings and serving on various Board
committees, all INEDs will continue to make various contributions to the
Company.

Throughout the FY2019, the Company had three INEDs, which was in
compliance with the requirement of the Listing Rules that the number of
INEDs must represent at least one-third of the Board members, and that
at least one of the INEDs has appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise.

The Company has received an annual confirmation of independence in
writing from each of the INEDs pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
Based on such confirmation and not aware of the occurrence of any
event that would impair the independence of the INEDs, the Company
considers that all the INEDs are independent and have met the
independence guidelines as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

In FY2019, the chairman of the Board (the “Chairman”), being an
Executive Director, had held at least one meeting with the INEDs without
the presence of other Executive Directors.

Proper insurance coverage in respect of legal actions against the
Directors’ liability has been arranged by the Company.

Directors’ Induction and Continuing Professional
Development

Each of the Directors has received a formal, comprehensive and tailored
induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment to ensure that he/
she has a proper understanding of the Company’s operations and
business and is fully aware of the director’s responsibilities under statute
and common law, the Listing Rules, legal and other regulatory
requirements and the Company’s business and governance policies.
During FY2019, each of the Directors had attended a training seminar
arranged by the Company’s Hong Kong legal advisers on directors’
responsibilities.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

In compliance with code provision A.6.5 of the CG code, the Company
will from time to time fund and arrange suitable training to all the Directors
to partake in the continuous professional development (the “CPD”) in
order to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills in relation to their
duties and responsibilities, such that their contribution to the Board
remains informed and relevant. All Directors are also encouraged to
attend relevant training courses at the Company’s expense and they
have been requested to provide the Company with their training records.
According to the training records maintained by the Company, the CPD
programmes received by each of the Directors during the FY2019 is
summarised as follows:
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Name of Directors

Type of training

EEpnE o2 ki)
Mr. Tang Koon Fook Aand B
Tang Koon Fook3t 4 ANB
Mr. Lee Sieng Poon Aand B
Lee Sieng Poonst 4 ANB
Mr. Yap Boon Teong Aand B
Yap Boon Teongst 4 ANB
Ms. Wong Yuen Lee Aand B
Wong Yuen LeeZz+ ANB
Mr. Fung Che Wai, Anthony Aand B
HEREE AKB
Mr. Chong Yew Hoong Aand B
Chong Yew Hoong3t 4 AKB
Mr. Ng Hock Boon Aand B
Ng Hock Boonst 4 ANB

A:  attending training sessions, including but not limited to, seminars/
webinars, briefings, conferences, forums and workshops

B:  reading newspapers, journals and updates relating to the economy,
general business, corporate governance and directors’ duties and
responsibilities

Meetings of the Board and the Shareholders and
Directors’ Attendance Records

During FY2019, regular meetings of the Board was scheduled four times
a year at approximately quarterly intervals with notice given to the
Directors at least 14 days in advance. For all other Board meetings,
notice has been given in a reasonable time in advance. The Directors are
allowed to include any matter in the agenda that is required for discussion
and resolution at the meeting. To enable the Directors to be properly
briefed on issues arising at each of the Board meetings and to make
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informed decisions, an agenda and the accompanying Board papers are
sent to all Directors at least three days before the intended date of the
Board meeting, or such other period as agreed. The company secretary
of the Company (the “Company Secretary”) is responsible for preparing
and circulating the abovementioned draft agenda and board papers. All
Board meetings’ minutes recorded in sufficient detail the matters
considered and decisions reached will be kept by a duly appointed
secretary of the meeting. Draft and final versions of the minutes are
circulated to the Directors for comments and record respectively within a
reasonable time after each meeting and the final version is open for the
Directors’ inspection.

During the FY2019, the Board held four regular meetings at approximately
quarterly intervals on 29 March 2019, 29 May 2019, 28 August 2019 and
29 November 2019, and amongst other matters, approved the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2018 and the unaudited consolidated financial statements of
the Group for the six months ended 30 June 2019.

The attendance records of each Director at the Board meetings during
FY2019 is as follows:
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Name of Directors

No. of Attendance/
No. of Meetings

HERE
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Mr. Tang Koon Fook 4/4
Tang Koon Fook?t 4
Mr. Lee Sieng Poon 4/4
Lee Sieng Poonst 4
Mr. Yap Boon Teong 4/4
Yap Boon Teong %t 4=
Ms. Wong Yuen Lee 4/4
Wong Yuen LeeZz +
Mr. Fung Che Wai, Anthony 4/4
TSRS E
Mr. Chong Yew Hoong 4/4
Chong Yew Hoong?t 4
Mr. Ng Hock Boon 4/4

Ng Hock Boonst 4
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During FY2019, the Company held its annual general meeting (the “AGM”)
on 30 May 2019 which all Directors attended.

The Board held a meeting on 27 March 2020 and, amongst other
matters, considered and approved the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Group for FY2019.

Board Diversity Policy

The Company has adopted a Board diversity policy whereby it recognises
and embraces the importance and benefits of a diversity of Board
members. It endeavours to ensure that the Board has a balance of skills,
experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the requirements
of the Company’s business. All Board nominations, appointments and re-
appointments will continue to be made on a merit basis with due regard
for the benefits of diversity of the Board members and the nomination
policy of the Company. Selection of candidates will be based on a range
of diversity perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills and
knowledge.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

During FY2019 and up to the date of this annual report, Mr. Tang Koon
Fook was the Chairman whilst Mr. Lee Sieng Poon was the Managing
Director and they will continue to act in such capacities subsequent to
the financial year end date of FY2019. Therefore, the Company has
complied with code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, which stipulates that
the roles of chairman and chief executive should be separate and should
not be performed by the same individual.

The Chairman has been responsible for the overall management,
strategic planning and the day-to-day business operation and financial
management of the Group. The Managing Director has been responsible
for the overall management, research and development, the day-to-day
management of the sales and marketing, maintenance of customer and
supplier relationship of the Group and overseeing the Sanctions Oversight
Committee.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established certain Board committees, including the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the Nomination Committee
and the Sanctions Oversight Committee, to oversee particular aspects of
the Company’s affairs. All Board committees are provided with sufficient
resources to discharge their duties and upon reasonable request,
members of the Board committees are able to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances at the Company’s
expenses.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established on 8 June 2017 with written terms
of reference in compliance with the code provisions of the CG Code.
Such written terms of reference were revised on 1 January 2019 to
conform with the requirements under the CG Code and the Listing Rules.
The written terms of reference of the Audit Committee are published on
the respective websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company. It
comprises all the three INEDs, namely Mr. Chong Yew Hoong, Mr. Ng
Hock Boon and Mr. Fung Che Wai, Anthony who is the chairman of the
Audit Committee.

The principal roles and functions of the Audit Committee include but are
not limited to:

° making recommendations to the Board on the appointment, re-
appointment and removal of the external auditors, and approving
their remuneration and terms of engagement, and handling any
questions regarding their resignation or dismissal;

o reviewing and monitoring the external auditors’ independence and
objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in accordance
with applicable standards and discussing with the external auditors
on the nature and scope of the audit and reporting obligations
before the audit commences;

° developing and implementing a policy on engaging external
auditors to supply non-audit services and reporting to the Board,
identifying and making recommendations on any matters where
action or improvement is needed;

° monitoring the integrity of the Company’s financial statements and
accounts as well as annual report and half-year report, and
reviewing significant financial reporting judgments contained in
them;
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° reviewing the Company’s financial reporting system, and risk
management and internal control systems;

° discussing the risk management and internal control systems with
management to ensure that management has performed its duty to
have such effective systems;

° considering major investigation findings on risk management and
internal control matters as delegated by the Board or on its own
initiative and management’s response to these findings;

° where an internal audit function exists, ensuring co-ordination
between the internal and external auditors, ensuring that the
internal audit function is adequately resourced and has appropriate
standing within the Company, and reviewing and monitoring its
effectiveness;

° reviewing the Group’s financial and accounting policies and
practices;

° reviewing the external auditors’ management letter, any material
queries raised by the auditors to management about the accounting
records, financial accounts or systems of control and
management’s response;

° ensuring that the Board will provide a timely response to the issues
raised in the external auditors’” management letters; and

° considering other topics as defined by the Board.

During FY2019, two Audit Committee meetings were held on 26 March
2019 and 22 August 2019, respectively; and the Audit Committee,
amongst other matters, considered and approved the draft audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for FY2018 and the
unaudited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the six
months ended 30 June 2019 for presentation to the Board for
consideration and approval and audit-related matters.
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The attendance record of each INED at the Audit Committee meetings
during FY2019 is as follows:

EBUATEERN T NEFUREFE
MEFZEGERLFBENT

Name of Directors

No. of Attendance/
No. of Meetings

RE
EEpnE BB RHE
Mr. Fung Che Wai, Anthony 2/2
HEREE
Mr. Chong Yew Hoong 2/2
Chong Yew Hoong#e 4
Mr. Ng Hock Boon 2/2

Ng Hock Boonst 4

The Audit Committee held a meeting on 23 March 2020 and, amongst
other matters, considered and approved for presentation to the Board for
consideration and approval the draft audited consolidated financial
statements of the Group for FY2019. The chairman and the other
members of the Audit Committee attended such meeting.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established on 8 June 2017 with
written terms of reference in compliance with the code provisions of CG
Code. The written terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are
published on the respective websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company. The Remuneration Committee comprises two INEDs, namely
Mr. Chong Yew Hoong and Mr. Ng Hock Boon and Mr. Tang Koon Fook,
the Chairman and an Executive Director. Mr. Chong Yew Hoong is the
chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

The principal roles and functions of the Remuneration Committee include
but are not limited to:

° making recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy
and structure for the remuneration of all Directors and senior
management and on the establishment of a formal and transparent
procedure for developing the remuneration policy;

° reviewing and approving the management’s remuneration
proposals by reference to the Board’s corporate goals and
objectives;
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° either: () to determine, with delegated responsibility, the
remuneration packages of individual Executive Directors and senior
management; or (i) to make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration packages of individual Executive Directors and senior
management. This should include benefits in kind, pension rights
and compensation payments, including any compensation payable
for loss or termination of their office or appointment;

° making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of the
non-executive Directors;

° considering the salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment, responsibilities and employment conditions elsewhere
in the Group;

° reviewing and approving the compensation payable to the
Executive Directors and senior management for any loss or
termination of office or appointment to ensure that it is consistent
with the contractual terms and is otherwise fair and not excessive;

° reviewing and approving the compensation arrangements relating
to the dismissal or removal of the Directors for misconduct to
ensure that they are consistent with the contractual terms and are
otherwise reasonable and appropriate; and

° ensuring that no Director or any of his associates (as defined in the
Listing Rules) is involved in deciding his own remuneration.

During FY2019, one Remuneration Committee meeting was held on 26
March 2019 and the chairman and the other members of the
Remuneration Committee attended such meeting.

The Remuneration Committee held a meeting on 23 March 2020, and
among other things, reviewed and recommended to the Board for
consideration certain remuneration-related matters of the Directors and
senior management. The chairman and the other members of the
Remuneration attended such meeting.
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Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established on 8 June 2017 with written
terms of reference in compliance with the code provisions of the CG
Code. Such written terms of reference were revised on 1 January 2019
to conform with the requirements under the CG Code. The written terms
of reference of the Nomination Committee are published on the
respective websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company. It
comprises two INEDs, namely Mr. Chong Yew Hoong and Mr. Ng Hock
Boon, and Mr. Tang Koon Fook, the Chairman and an Executive Director.
Mr. Tang Koon Fook is the chairman of the Nomination Committee.

The principal roles and functions of the Nomination Committee include
but are not limited to:

° reviewing the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge, experience and diversity of perspectives) of the Board
at least annually and making recommendations on any proposed
changes to the Board to complement the Company’s corporate
strategy;

o identifying individuals suitably qualified to become members of the
Board and selecting or making recommendations to the Board on
the selection of individuals nominated for directorships;

° assessing the independence of the INEDs;

o making recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-
appointment of Directors and the succession planning for the
Directors, in particular, the Chairman and the chief executive; and

° reviewing the Board Diversity Policy and any measurable objectives
for implementing such Board Diversity Policy as may be adopted
by the Board from time to time and to review the progress on
achieving the objectives

During FY2019, one Nomination Committee meeting was held on 26
March 2019 and the chairman and the other members of the Nomination
Committee attended such meeting.

The Nomination Committee held a meeting on 23 March 2020 and
among other things, reviewed the structure, size and composition of the
Board, assessed the independence of the INEDs and recommended to
the Board for consideration the re-appointment of the retiring Directors at
the forthcoming AGM. The chairman and the other members of the
Nomination Committee attended such meeting.
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Sanctions Oversight Committee

The Sanctions Oversight Committee was established on 28 February
2017. The current members of the Sanctions Oversight Committee are
Mr. Lee Sieng Poon and Ms. Wong Yuen Lee, both Executive Directors,
and Ms. Jamie Loh Yee Leng, our Director of Sales and Marketing. Mr.
Lee Sieng Poon is the chairman of the Sanctions Oversight Committee.

The principal roles and functions of the Sanctions Oversight Committee
include but are not limited to:

° evaluating the sanctions risks prior to determining whether the
Group should embark on any business opportunities in the
Sanctioned Countries (as defined below) and with Sanctioned
Persons (as defined below);

Remarks:

(@ “Sanctioned Countries” means countries whose governments
such as the United States of America (“‘USA”) or Australia, or
governmental organisations such as the European Union or
the United Nations, have, through an executive order, passing
of legislation or other governmental means, implemented
measures that impose economic sanctions against such
countries or against targeted industry sectors, groups of
companies or persons, and/or organisations within such
countries.

(b) “Sanctioned Persons” means certain person(s) and
identity(ies) listed on the Specially Designated Nationals and
Blocked Persons List of the United States Department of
Treasury’s Office of Foreign Assets Control (“OFAC”) or other
restricted parties lists maintained by the USA, the European
Union, the United Nations or Australia.

° reviewing and approving all relevant business transaction
documentation from customers or potential customers from
Sanctioned Countries and with Sanctioned Persons. In particular,
reviewing the information (such as the identity and nature of
business as well as its ownership) relating to the counterparty to
the contract along with the draft business transaction
documentation;

° checking the counterparty against the various lists of restricted
parties and countries maintained by the USA, the European Union,
the United Nations or Australia, including, without limitation, any
government, individual or entity that is the subject of any OFAC-
administered sanctions which lists are publicly available, and
determining whether the counterparty is, or is owned or controlled
by, a person located in Sanctioned Countries or a Sanctioned
Person; and
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° periodically reviewing the Company’s internal control policies and
procedures with respect to sanctions matters, including but not
limited to the global sanctions policy of the Board.

During FY2019, one Sanctions Oversight Committee meeting was held
on 26 March 2019; and the Sanctions Oversight Committee had
undertaken review on, amongst other matters, (i) the list of Sanctioned
Countries and Sanctioned Persons against the list of customers and
potential customers of the Group; (i) the global sanctions policy adopted
by the Company; and (iii) the current procedures put in place to detect
and avoid doing business with customers or potential customers from
Sanctioned Countries and with Sanctioned Persons.

The attendance record of the Sanctions Oversight Committee meeting
during the FY2019 is as follows:

s EMBREARABBHREZTENAZ
EHEREEF BRETRRES
EEIRHBIBBEK
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Name of Sanctions Oversight Committee Member

No. of Attendance/
No. of Meetings

HERE
HEREEZEENERE =E V8
Mr. Lee Sieng Poon 1/1
Lee Sieng Poonst 4
Ms. Wong Yuen Lee 11

Wong Yuen LeeZz 4
Ms. Jamie Loh Yee Leng
Jamie Loh Yee Leng 2 &

Note: Ms. Jamie Loh Yee Leng became a member of the Sanctions Oversight Committee on
2 January 2020.

The Sanctions Oversight Committee held a meeting on 23 March 2020
and amongst other things, reviewed the list of Sanctioned Countries and
Sanctioned Persons against the list of customers and potential customers
of the Group. The chairman and the other member of the Sanctions
Oversight Committee attended such meeting.

Corporate Governance Functions

The Audit Committee is responsible for performing the corporate
governance functions as set out in code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code,
which include but are not limited to:

° developing and reviewing the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and making recommendations to the Board;

° reviewing and monitoring the training and CPD of the Directors and
senior management;

° reviewing and monitoring the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;
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o developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and the
Directors; and

° reviewing the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in this report.

NOMINATION POLICY

The Board has delegated its responsibilities and authority for selection
and appointment of the Directors to the Nomination Committee of the
Company. Without prejudice to the authority and duties of the Nomination
Committee as set out in its terms of reference, the ultimate responsibility
for selection and appointment of the Directors rests with the entire Board.

The Nomination Committee will recommend to the Board for the
selection, appointment and re-appointment of a Director including an
INED in accordance with the following procedures and process:

A. The Nomination Committee

will, giving due consideration to the current composition and
size of the Board, develop a list of desirable skKills,
perspectives and experience at the outset to focus the search
effort;

ii may consult any source it considers appropriate in identifying
or selecting suitable candidates, such as referrals from
existing Directors, advertising, recommendations from a third
party agency firm and proposals from the Shareholders with
due consideration given to the criteria which include but are
not limited to:

(@) Diversity in the aspects of, amongst others, gender,
age, cultural and educational background, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service;

(b)  Commitment for responsibilities of the Board in respect
of available time and relevant interest (details of the
Board Diversity Policy is set out on page 67 of this
annual report;

(c) Qualifications, both academic and professional,
including accomplishment and experience in the
relevant industries in which the Group’s business is

involved;

(d)  Independence (for INEDs);
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(e) Reputation for integrity;

(M) Potential contributions that the individual can bring to
the Board; and

(@ Plan(s) in place for the orderly succession of the Board.

iii may adopt any process it considers appropriate in evaluating
the suitability of the candidates, such as interviews,
background checks, presentations and third party reference
checks;

iv will consider a broad range of candidates who are in and
outside of the Board’s circle of contacts;

% upon considering a candidate’s suitability for the directorship,
will hold a meeting and/or by way of written resolutions to, if
thought fit, approve the recommendation to the Board for
appointment;

vi will provide the relevant information of the selected candidate
to the Remuneration Committee for consideration of the
remuneration package of such selected candidate; and

Vi will thereafter make the recommendation to the Board in
relation to the proposed appointment.

Where a non-executive Director is considered, the Remuneration
Committee will make the recommmendation to the Board on the
policy and structure for the remuneration;

The Board may arrange for the selected candidate to be
interviewed by the members of the Board, who are not members of
the Nomination Committee and the Board will thereafter deliberate
and decide the appointment as the case may be; and

All appointment of Directors will be confirmed by the filing of the
consent to act as Director of the relevant Director (or any other
similar filings requiring the relevant Director to acknowledge or
accept the appointment as Director, as the case may be) to be filed
with the relevant regulatory authorities, if required.

Where the Board proposes a resolution to elect or re-elect a
candidate as Director at the following general meeting, the relevant
information of the candidate will be disclosed in the circular to
Shareholders and/or explanatory statement accompanying the
notice of the relevant general meeting in accordance with the
Listing Rules and/or applicable laws and regulations.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

Each of the Executive Directors has entered into a service agreement
with the Company for a term of three years commencing on 11 July 2017
(the “Listing Date”), which may be terminated by not less than three
months’ notice served by either party on the other.

Each of the INEDs has entered into a letter of appointment with the
Company for a period of three years commencing on the Listing Date,
which may be terminated by not less than three months’ notice served
by either party on the other.

None of the Directors has a service agreement or letter of appointment
with the Company or any of its subsidiaries other than the agreements/
letters of appointment expiring or determinable by the employer within
one year without the payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

Any Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold
office until the first general meeting of Shareholders after his appointment
and shall be subject to re-election at such meeting and any Director
appointed by the Board as an addition to the existing Board shall hold
office only until the next following AGM and shall then be eligible for re-
election.

All the Directors, including INEDs, are subject to retirement by rotation
and are eligible for re-election in accordance with the Articles of
Association. At each AGM, one-third of the Directors for the time being (or,
if their number is not a multiple of three, the number nearest to but not
less than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation provided that every
Director shall be subject to retirement at the AGM at least once every
three years. A retiring Director shall be eligible for re-election and shall
continue to act as a Director throughout the meeting at which he retires.
The Directors to retire by rotation shall include (so far as necessary to
ascertain the number of Directors to retire by rotation) any Director who
wishes to retire and does not offer himself for re-election. Any further
Directors so to retire shall be those who have been the longest in office
since their last re-election or appointment and so that as between the
persons who became or were last re-elected Directors on the same day,
those to retire shall (unless they otherwise agree among themselves) be
determined by lot.
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Particulars of the Directors’ remuneration for FY2019 are set out in Note
10 to the consolidated financial statements of the Group for FY2019.

Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, the remuneration of
the members of the senior management (other than the Directors) whose
particulars are contained in the section headed “Profile of Directors and
Senior Management” in this annual report by band is set out below:

EERSREEREHMH

SR NEUMBFEEEMNFHFBERR
ARE_F-NFURFEZKREMBR
FHIFE10°

BECEEETAUTAERXEBISKE &
LEBEAB(BEEHRIN FHE (HLERIZEF
BERAFRIESLSAEEEHN]—
M) #ES R

Number of
Remuneration band (in RM) individuals
FMARN(EREZSH A
Nil to 500,000 3
£ £500,000

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

For the FY2019, KPMG PLT was engaged as the Group’s independent
auditors, while JWMG CPA Limited, Corpwerk PAC and Apinya
Kulchongcharoen, CPA were engaged as the independent auditors for
S&P (Hong Kong) Holding Limited, S&P Food Pte. Ltd. (both wholly-
owned indirect subsidiaries of the Company) and M. Ace Thailand Co.
Ltd. (a 90.6%-owned indirect subsidiary of the Company), respectively.

BB E

RZZE-—NFEHBHFE KPMGPLTEE &
REBRHB LA ZEAE - MBS R EEAD
£ BT A R 2 7 Corpwerk PAC & Apinya
Kulchongcharoen, CPA% 7l 7 B2 & &K A 7
& 2 & I B 2 7] S&P (Hong Kong) Holding
Limited & S&P Food Pte. Ltd. A & AR X & # 5
90.6% 1 #= 1) [ £ fff & X FIM. Ace Thailand
Co. Ltd. #) 8 37 1% EL A -
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

The remuneration paid/payable to all independent auditors and their
affiliates in respect of FY2019 is set out below:

TREBRE @)

TE-NAEHBREEEN/EBNRBEEL
BB R E D RAIHF BT

Fee paid/

Services payable RM
BN EAER

i BRAZESE
Audit services — Annual audit ZEPRTS — FEEZ 416,689
Non-audit services IEZER T -
Total @5t 416,689

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements of the Group for FY2019.

The Directors were not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern.

In addition, KPMG PLT have stated in its independent auditors’ report the
responsibilities of the Directors for the consolidated financial statements
of the Group for FY2019.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibility for evaluating and determining the
nature and extent of the risks the Company is willing to take in achieving
the Company’s strategic objectives, and ensuring that the Company
establishes and maintains appropriate and effective risk management
and internal control systems. The Board oversees management in the
design, implementation and monitoring of the risk management and
internal control systems. The Board acknowledges that such risk
management and internal control systems are designed to manage rather
than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can
only provide reasonable but not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss. The Company had reviewed its need for an internal
audit function and engaged an external third party professional firm to
carry out such function under the leadership of the Board and the Audit
Committee during FY2019.
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During the Year, the Board, through the Audit Committee, has overseen
the effectiveness of the internal control system of the Group covering all
material controls, including financial, operational and compliance as well
as risk management on an ongoing basis. The Board considers that the
Group’s risk management and internal control systems are adequate and
effective. The Board expects that a review of the risk management and
internal control systems will be performed annually.

DISCLOSURE OF INSIDE INFORMATION

The Group acknowledges its responsibilities under the Securities and
Futures Ordinance, Chapter 571 of the laws of Hong Kong and the
Listing Rules and the overriding principle that inside information should
be announced promptly. The procedures and internal controls for the
handling and dissemination of inside information are as follows:

o the Group conducts its affairs with close regard to the disclosure
requirement under the Listing Rules as well as the “Guidelines on
Disclosure of Inside Information” published by the Securities and
Futures Commission of Hong Kong in June 2012;

° the Group has implemented and disclosed its policy on fair
disclosure by pursuing broad, non-exclusive distribution of
information to the public through channels such as financial
reporting, public announcements and the Company’s website;

° the Group has strictly prohibited unauthorised use of confidential or
inside information; and

° the Group has established and implemented procedures for
responding to external enquiries about the Group’s affairs, so that
only the Executive Directors, the Company Secretary and the Chief
Financial Officer of the Company are authorised to communicate
with parties outside the Group.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary supports the Board by ensuring that reliable and
relevant flow of information is maintained amongst members of the Board
and that all procedures have been adhered to in accordance with
applicable laws, rules and regulations.
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Sir Kwok Siu Man KR (“Sir Seaman Kwok”) served as the Company
Secretary of the Company throughout FY2019.

Sir Seaman Kwok was nominated by Boardroom Corporate Service (HK)
Limited (“Boardroom”) to be the Company Secretary of the Company
and Boardroom has been providing certain corporate secretarial services
to the Company pursuant to an engagement letter entered into between
the Company and Boardroom. The primary person at the Company with
whom Sir Seaman Kwok has been contacting in respect of company
secretarial matters is the Chief Financial Officer, Mr. Eugene Kang Hong
Ngee.

Sir Seaman Kwok delivered and attended over 15 hours’ relevant CPD
training during FY2019 pursuant to Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules. He
was conferred as a Knight of Rizal of the Philippines in mid-June 2019.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for Putting Forward Proposals at
Shareholders’ Meetings

There are no provisions allowing Shareholders to make proposals or
move resolutions at the AGMs under the memorandum of association of
the Company and the Articles of Association or the laws of the Cayman
Islands. Shareholders who wish to make proposals or move a resolution
may, however, convene an extraordinary general meeting (the “EGM”) in
accordance with the “Procedures for Shareholders to convene an EGM”
set out below.

Procedures for Shareholders to Convene an EGM

According to Article 58 of the Articles of Association, any one or more
Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less
than 10% of the paid-up capital of the Company carrying the right of
voting at general meetings of the Company (the “Eligible
Shareholder(s)’) shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to
require an EGM to be called by the Board or the Company Secretary for
the transaction of any business specified in such requisition, including
making proposals or moving a resolution at the EGM.

Eligible Shareholder(s) who wishes to convene an EGM for the purpose
of making proposals or moving a resolution at the EGM must deposit a
written requisition (the “Requisition”) signed by the Eligible
Shareholder(s) concerned (the “Requisitionist(s)”) at the principal place
of business of the Company in Hong Kong (presently at 31/F., 148
Electric Road, North Point, Hong Kong) for the attention of the Company
Secretary.
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The Requisition must state clearly the name of the Eligible Shareholder(s)
concerned, his/her/their shareholding in the Company, the reason(s) to
convene an EGM and the proposed agenda.

Following receipt of the Requisition, the identity and shareholding of the
Eligible Shareholder(s) will be verified with the Company’s branch share
registrar in Hong Kong. If the Requisition is found to be proper and in
order, the Company Secretary will ask the Board to convene an EGM
and/or include the proposal(s) made or the resolution(s) proposed by the
Requisitionist(s) at the EGM within 2 months after the deposit of the
Requisition. On the contrary, if the Requisition has been verified as not in
order, the Eligible Shareholder(s) concerned will be advised of the
outcome and accordingly, the Board will not call for an EGM nor include
the proposal(s) made or the resolution(s) proposed by the Requisitionist(s)
at the EGM.

If within 21 days of the deposit of the Requisition the Board fails to
proceed to convene such EGM, the Requisitionist(s) himself/herself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses
incurred by the Requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall
be reimbursed to the Requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Procedures for Shareholders to Send Enquires to
the Board

Shareholders may send their enquiries and concerns to the Board by
addressing them by post to the principal place of business of the
Company in Hong Kong (presently at 31/F, 148 Electric Road, North
Point, Hong Kong) or by email to info@spfood.com, for the attention of
the Company Secretary.

Upon receipt of the enquiries, the Company Secretary will forward the
communications relating to:

1. the matters within the Board’s purview to the Executive Directors;
2. the matters within a Board committee’s area of responsibility to the
chairman of the appropriate committee; and

3. ordinary business matters, such as suggestions, enquiries and
client complaints to the appropriate management of the Company.
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COMMUNICATION WITH THE
SHAREHOLDERS

The Company has adopted a Shareholders’ communication policy with
the objective of providing the Shareholders with equal and timely access
to information about the Company in order to enable the Shareholders to
exercise their rights in an informed manner and allow them to engage
actively with the Company.

Information will be communicated to the Shareholders through the
Company’s financial reports, circulars, AGMs and EGMs that may be
convened as well as all the published disclosures submitted to the Stock
Exchange.

DIVIDEND POLICY

On 29 March 2019, the Board approved and adopted a revised dividend
policy which sets out the following provisions:

The Company intends to retain all available funds and earnings, if any, to
finance the development and expansion of its business. Any future
determination for the declaration or recommendation of dividends will be
made at the absolute discretion of the Board. It is the policy of the Board,
in considering the payment of dividends, to allow the Shareholders to
participate in the Company’s profits whilst preserving the Company’s
liquidity to capture future growth opportunities.

In deciding whether to propose a dividend, the Board will take into
account, amongst other matters:

(i) the strategies, business cycle, operations, earnings, financial
condition, cash requirements and availability as well as capital
expenditure and future development requirements of the Group;

(i) the possible effects of the Group’s credit-worthiness, the financial
covenants to which the Group is subject and any restrictions on the
payment of dividends that may be imposed by the Group’s lenders;

@iy the interests of the Shareholders, the dividend receivable/received
by the Company from its subsidiaries and the taxation
consideration;

MEEBMERAT —Z-NFFR

TREBRE @)

ARAREEMBRBABEK - BORMARK
REH#ATFERREREARANES
EERREANBERTITERSEN KA
BERBSEARRFE -

BREERARAMERSE  BEK - BRRE
FARR MR A R IR B K& B B
RFFERNMAE TIERBEENANGRE

IR 2 BUR

R-ZE—HhE=A=-+thB -ESTeH#E
FERNEIEFTIR BB R - & T IE
X

ARBBRREMAREAGSHNEZ AT
(E) URBERERBEREXBHRE -BE
BESRIZZRNEANREHEHES
EERBBRE RERKNKREE EF
ENHER/AFERZ2EDZARNRAN G
M FERERNDBEREE - KIEEREK
BREE -

MREEEREKER EFEKEE (R
TR TIIEE:

) AEEOBR XKEH Z2E B
MBI ReEFRXEATARS
UARBARIRAKERFKR

i) AEEEENARETZE AKEXR
REVI S RE AR AR EEER AR BE
AR A BB e A0 O AR R BR 1)

iy PREE R - AR T REY T U EH
BARMKRERBEREZE
83



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)
TEERBE @

(iv)  the general economic and political conditions and other internal and ~ (iv)  — f& 48 7 % BE AR S LA 1% 7] B ¥ AR &=
external factors that may have an impact on the business and MEBLTBERBERTZENEM
financial performance of the Group; AE RN A %

(v)  any restrictions under all applicable laws (including the Companies (v A E A EZ2Z(BFH S HE QA A

Law of the Cayman lIslands), rules, codes and regulations, the E) - ARA SFRIRAA - REBZK
accounting policies and financial reporting standards that the AR BR R TS E R A R AR
Group has adopted as well as the Articles of Association; and BERMBNIETHEMBRS &

(v  other factors that the Board may consider relevant. v EFEERLAEBENEMEE-

The Dividend Policy will be reviewed from time to time. There is no A& A & #& T st AR B R - EIX R EF
assurance that a dividend will be proposed, recommended and/or N EFLA{E ] © 2B sk BE B R « B 3 R [
declared in any amount or at any time from time to time. &/ REIREE -

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS HEBEREXH

There were no changes in the constitutional documents of the Company WM=-ZT— N EM B FE A AR WMBLS
during Fy2019. PRSI A B o

A consolidated version of the Company’s constitutional documents is AN AT AL ZE R X ERNEZE S RA [ 9D B

available on the respective websites of the Stock Exchange and the  REERPT R AN B HILER] -
Company.
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The directors (the “Directors”, each a “Director”) of S&P International
Holding Limited (the “Company”) is pleased to present to the
shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”) their report for the
year ended 31 December 2019 (the “Year” or “FY2019”) and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries,
the “Group”) for the Year (the “Financial Statements”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The principal
activities of its major subsidiaries are set out in Note 15 to the Financial
Statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Discussion and analysis of the business of the Group for the Year are set
out in the sections headed “Chairman’s Statement” on pages 7 to 10
and “Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 53 to 61 of
this annual report. The discussion and analysis of the Group’s
performance in the above sections form part of this report.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the Year and the Group’s financial position
as at 31 December 2019 are set out in the Financial Statements on
pages 113 to 204 of this annual report.

The board of Directors (the “Board”) has resolved not to recommend the
payment of any final dividend for the Year.

There is no arrangement that a Shareholder has waived or agreed to
waive any dividend.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For the purpose of determining the Shareholders’ rights to attend and
vote at the annual general meeting of the Company (the “AGM”) to be
held at 11:00 a.m. on Friday, 22 May 2020 at 27-1, Jalan PJU 5/13,
Dataran Sunway, Kota Damansara, 47810 Petaling Jaya, Selangor Darul
Ehsan, Malaysia (the “2020 AGM”), the register of members of the
Company will be closed from Tuesday, 19 May 2020 to Friday, 22 May
2020, both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares of
the Company (the “Shares”) will be registered. In order to be eligible for
attending and voting at the forthcoming AGM, non-registered
Shareholders must lodge their duly completed and stamped transfer
forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates with the Company’s
branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Boardroom Share Registrars (HK)
Limited, Room 2103B, 21/F, 148 Electric Road, North Point, Hong Kong,
for registration no later than 4:30 p.m. on Monday, 18 May 2020.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and the assets and liabilities of the
Group in the form of a comparative table for the last five financial years is
set out on page 2 of this annual report. The summary does not form part
of the Financial Statements.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES

Climate change could influence the food security and food supply chain
in varying extent. Along the food supply chain, energy, water and other
resources are consumed at every step to transport, prepare and
package. In light of this, the Group has taken initiatives that facilitate
adherence of our operations on the environment to relevant laws and
regulations such as Environmental Quality (Industrial Effluent) Regulations
2009 in Malaysia. Additionally, evolving regulatory requirements and
escalating stakeholders’ expectations on environmental issues serve as
the impetus for establishing a systematic and quantitative approach to
manage the resources consumed and environmental emissions.

The Group has also dedicated its effort to review and monitor the
Group’s environmental, social and governance (‘ESG”) policies and
practices to ensure compliance with the relevant legal and regulatory
requirements as described in Appendix 27 to the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange” and the “Listing Rules”, respectively).
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (continued)

In addition, the Group is also committed to engaging with its key
stakeholders and operating its business in a fair, responsible and
transparent manner.

Details of the Group’s ESG performance for the Year can be found in the
“Environmental, Social and Governance Report” as set out on pages
18 to 52 of this annual report.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Group has in place compliance and risk management policies and
procedures, and members of the senior management are delegated with
the continuing obligation to monitor adherence to and compliance with all
significant legal and regulatory requirements by the Group. As far as the
Company is aware, the Group has complied in all material respects with
the relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
business and operation of the Group during the Year and up to the date
of this annual report.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Directors are aware that the Group’s financial condition, results of
operation, businesses and prospects may be affected by a number of
risks and uncertainties. The key risks and uncertainties identified by the
Group are set out as follows:

() Price fluctuation in and shortage of raw
materials and perishability of coconuts may
materially and adversely affect business
operations

The coconut-related food manufacturing industry depends on a
sufficient supply of major raw materials, namely coconuts and white
kernels, at commercially reasonably prices. If our suppliers for any
particular raw material are unable or unwilling to meet our
requirements, we could suffer shortages or significant cost
increases. In addition, any shortage or disruption in our supply of
coconuts and other raw materials could affect our performance and
our ability to satisfy the purchase orders of our customers, which
may adversely affect our profitability, results of operations and
financial condition.
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(i)

88

Coconut is a perishable raw material which may deteriorate due to
delivery delays, or poor handling during transportation by suppliers
or logistic partners. This may result in failures to operate production
of coconut products, thereby damaging our business and/or
reputation. If any raw materials or finished products are alleged or
found to be spoiled, contaminated, tampered with, incorrectly
labelled, unsafe or otherwise associated with food safety incidents,
we could be subject to product liability claims, adverse publicity
and regulatory investigation, intervention or penalties or product
returns, any of which may result in decreased profitability as well as
damage to our brands and reputation.

Our industry is subject to changes in legislative
requirements and laws, national health and
safety standards in Malaysia and the
respective jurisdictions, where our products
are sold

The coconut-related food manufacturing industry in Malaysia is
subject to the local food safety laws and regulations. Please refer to
“Regulatory overview” of the prospectus of the Company dated 29
June 2017 (the “Prospectus”) for further details of the relevant
food safety laws and regulations. Failure to meet the government
requirements or any instance of contamination could occur in our
operations or those of distributors or suppliers. This could result in
fines, suspension of operations, loss of production permits, and in
more extreme cases, criminal proceedings against our Group and
our management. Moreover, negative publicity could be generated
from false, unfounded or normal liability claims or limited recalls.
Any of those failures or occurrences could negatively affect our
business and financial performance. The Group is also subject to
stringent legislative requirements and relevant laws in the
jurisdictions where our products are being sold. Any changes in the
foreign government’s policies and measures that are unfavourable
to the industry may have an adverse effect on our production
process and also our sales and profitability.

(ii)
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (continued)

(iii) Risks of foreign currency fluctuations

We conduct all our operations in Malaysia and our functional
currency is Ringgit Malaysia (“RM”). The sales to our customers
abroad are mainly billed and settled in United States dollars (“‘US$”),
and sales to our customers located in Malaysia are billed and
settled in RM. We source most of our packaging and raw materials
locally, which are paid in RM, whereas our coconut milk products
and some of our packaging and raw materials are sourced
overseas and paid in US$ (or other foreign currencies). There is no
assurance that the exchange rate of RM will remain stable against
US$ (or any other foreign currencies) in the future. Any significant
movement of exchange rates of foreign currencies against RM may
significantly affect our financial condition and results of operations.
In addition, the foreign exchange rate fluctuations mentioned above
may result in foreign exchange losses and hence, may have a
material adverse effect on our financial condition and results of
operations.

For other risks and uncertainties faced by the Group, please refer
to the section headed “Risk Factors” in the Prospectus.

USE OF NET PROCEEDS FROM THE LISTING

On 11 July 2017, the Company completed its initial public offering (the
“IPO”) by way of a global offering of 270,000,000 Shares at an issue
price of HK$0.48 per Share and the Shares commenced trading on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange on the same day.

The proceeds from the IPO after deducting the relevant one-off and non-
recurring listing expenses (the “Net Proceeds”) amounted to
approximately HK$90.4 million (equivalent to approximately RM46.8
million based on Bank Negara Malaysia’s mid-rate as at 29 December
2017 (being the last trading day of 2017) of HK$1.00: RM0.51795)) (the
“Year End HK$: RM Rate”).
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The Group has utilised approximately RM41.0 million of the Net
Proceeds, while approximately RM5.8 million remains unutilised as at 31
December 2019. The following sets forth a summary of the allocation of

the Net Proceeds and its utilisation as at 31 December 2019.

AGECHANMOEEFTRAZSEKN
FISSBEFE BE-FT-NAFTA=
T —HHNS8EEFREZSTHABA
TXHIR T -—NF+Z_A=1t—HFA
RREFENIERASARS -

Approximate Approximate Approximate

Approximate actual amount actual amount of unused amount of
original  Approximate of the Net the Net Proceeds the Net Proceeds
allocation of percentage Proceeds utilised as at as at
the Net of the Net utilised during 31 December 31 December
Use of Net Proceeds FIBRETEHAE Proceeds Proceeds 2019 2019 2019
R=ZZE-—NF
R=ZZ2-NFE +=ZA=t+-H RZE-NF
IECE/ S Fri8 %A BRANKRE BANHAE +=HA=+-—-H
REBN BEBA REFEER REFEMN FriSIEFE
s REE B BReHE BERSE KDAGNESHE
(RM’million) (%) (RM’million) (RM’million) (RM’million)
(BEBERAR (EEGXA: (AEEXRAER (BESRADR
£%) (%) 2% £%) $%)
Expanding and upgrading RN EHEETH
the production facilities £ E RN
at the Perak Plant 35.6 76.0% (14.2) (35.6) —
Recommissioning of the 2 2 4 i T
Parit Raja, Johor plant B 2E 4.7 10.0% - — 4.7
Advertising and promotion & {& % #E & 1 3¢
expenses 1.2 2.5% - (1.2) —
Investing in new equipment & ¥ &% E - LIRS
to enhance the research EEEN
and development 1.2 2.5% - 0.1) 1.1
General corporate purposes — ¢ A Bl A% &
and working capital LEE® 4.1 9.0% - @.1) -
Total Foy 46.8 100.0% (14.2) 41.0) 5.8

The Directors are not aware of any material change to the planned use of

the Net Proceeds as at the date of this annual report.

* The Net Proceeds in RM were arrived at after taking into account the Year End HK$: RM
Rate. Should there be any further movement in the foreign exchange rate until the actual
utilisation of the Net Proceeds, any upward or downward differences will be taken into

“general corporate purposes and working capital .
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (continued)

SHARE CAPITAL

There were no movements in the share capital of the Company during
the Year. Details of the Company’s share capital as at 31 December
2019 are set out in Note 22 to the Financial Statements.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group during the Year are set out in
the consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 116 of this
annual report and movements in the reserves of the Company are set out
in Note 22 to the Financial Statements.

DISTRIBUTABILITY OF RESERVES

At 31 December 2019, the aggregate amount of reserves available for
distribution to equity shareholders of the Company, as calculated under
the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, was approximately RM60.6
million.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

The Group’s five largest customers accounted for approximately 53.2%
of the total revenue of the Group for the Year whilst the largest customer
accounted for approximately 30.1% of the total revenue of the Group for
the Year.

The Group’s five largest coconut suppliers accounted for approximately
95.5% of the Group’s total purchases of coconut and white kernel during
the Year whilst the largest coconut supplier accounted for approximately
45.0% of the total purchases of coconut and white kernel of the Group
for the Year.

At all times during the Year, none of the Directors or any of their close
associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) or any Shareholder (who, to
the best knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of the number of
issued Shares) had an interest in any of the five largest suppliers or the
five largest customers of the Group for the Year.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors who served for FY2019 and up to the date of this annual
report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Tang Koon Fook (“Mr. Tang”) (chairman)
Mr. Lee Sieng Poon (“Mr. Lee”) (managing director)

Mr. Yap Boon Teong (“‘Mr. Yap”)
Ms. Wong Yuen Lee (“Ms. Wong”)

Independent Non-executive Directors (the “INEDs”)

Mr. Fung Che Wai, Anthony (“Mr. Fung”)
Mr. Chong Yew Hoong (“Mr. Chong”)
Mr. Ng Hock Boon (“Mr. Ng”)

In accordance with article 84(1) of the articles of association of the
Company (the “Articles”), at each AGM, one-third of the Directors for the
time being (or, if their number is not a multiple of three, the number
nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation
provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement at an AGM at
least once every three years.

Accordingly, Mr. Lee and Mr. Ng (collectively, the “Retiring Directors”)
and Mr. Chong will retire at the 2020 AGM. The Retiring Directors, being
eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the 2020 AGM. As
disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 27 March 2020, Mr.
Chong will not seek for re-election at the 2020 AGM in order to devote
more time on his other business commitments.

In accordance with the requirements of Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules,
Mr. Chong has confirmed that he has no disagreement with the Board
and there is no matter that needs to be brought to the attention to the
Shareholders.

PROFILE OF THE DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The profile of the Directors and the senior management of the Group are
set out on pages 11 to 17 of this annual report.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS/
LETTERS OF APPOINTMENT

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service agreement with
the Company for a term of three years commencing on the Listing Date,
which may be terminated by not less than three months’ notice in writing
served by either party on the other.

Each of the INEDs has entered into a letter of appointment with the
Company for a term of three years commencing on the Listing Date,
which may be terminated by not less than three months’ notice in writing
served by either party on the other.

All Directors are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election in
accordance with the Articles.

None of the Directors has a service contract or letter of appointment with
the Company, which is not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS

Details of the related party transactions of the Group during the Year are
set out in Note 32 to the Financial Statements.

Save as disclosed above, no other transactions, arrangements and
contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director or
an entity connected with a Director had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at any time during the Year or as at the
end of the Year.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER'’S INTEREST

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no contracts of significance
between the Company or any of its subsidiaries and a controlling
shareholder (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the Company or any of its
subsidiaries or any contracts of any significance for the provision of
services to the Company or any of its subsidiaries by a controlling
shareholder of the Company or any of its subsidiaries subsisted at any
time during the Year or as at the end of the Year.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2019, the interests or short positions of the Directors
and chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance, Chapter 571
of the Laws of Hong Kong (the “SFQ”)), which were required: (a) to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7
and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which
they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); (b)
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register of the
Company referred to therein; or (c) to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules (the “Model Code”), were as follows:

() Long position in the Shares

R-E-NF+_A=t—H EFRAR
AR EBTBRABRARR REBHEH
(EERBRBEDESNER S LR EIRD
((EHR\EFH]) EXVER) BB D - 187
B REEETES  @REZEHFNLPE
ERPIZEXVERET7 K877 BR A A& AR 7] K B
RN ERIAR(BRREESLBE
OB RIRXEEFR B EANELS R
KB DREREZ R BAE R F362F A
AT BRFE BZ IR P A 7R 2 B) & AT I O B R S0OK
B HORIE LT AR R ER10A7 8 £ 3%
TAEEETEARRZINEETR(HE
SRADREAME AR A KB XAHEED
FORBWMT

(i) REBRHBZHER

Percentage of

Number of shareholding
Shares interest in the
Name of Directors Note Capacity/Nature of interest interested Company
EEERN e 2= 2 7]
EEHSE fiat S HEBEHEE Iz 5 2 B REBDL
Mr. Tang 1 Interest in a controlled corporation 567,000,000 52.5%
Tang %t 4 A E R
Mr. Lee 2 Interest in a controlled corporation 243,000,000 22.5%
Leest & ZEEEER
Notes: B &E -
1. Mr. Tang, the chairman of the Board and an executive Director, beneficially 1. Tangt £  BEEBGEXERNTES  Ex

owned 100% of the issued share capital of TYJ Holding Limited (“TYJ") and he
was deemed to be interested in 567,000,000 Shares held by TYJ by virtue of the
SFO.

2. Mr. Lee, the managing Director and an executive Director, beneficially owned
100% of the issued share capital of Trinity Holding Limited (“Trinity") and he
was deemed to be interested in 243,000,000 Shares held by Trinity.

3. The percentages of shareholding interest in the Company shown in the table
above are calculated on the basis of 1,080,000,000 Shares in issue as at 31
December 2019.

# B TYJ Holding Limited ([TYJ]) & 2B & %
TRAR - RIEBZHRIAEGEG  HEE A
JATYJ B 45 567,000,0008% % {5 7 # & 1 = o

2. leefi ks  BERHCERATES Exf
& Trinity Holding Limited ([ Trinity |) 2 B € %
1THEAR o 18 15 48 A& 1 Trinity 7 4% 243,000,000
R A% 17 o HE B #E A o

3 ERBRAOARAKREBS LR -
E-NAFEF+ZAR=+—-—EWNBEERT
1,080,000,000 % A% 17 2 Z£ 25+ & -
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(i) Long position in the shares of associated

corporation

(i)

EEg®RE @)

REBZERG2HFR

Name of Percentage of
associated Capacity/ Number and class shareholding
Name of Director corporation Nature of interest of share interested interest
EEREEN
EENE HEEEER B ERtE BB RKEH REBDL
Mr. Tang TYJ Beneficial owner 1 ordinary share 100%
Tang 7t £ TvJ EmEA A 1% & @ Ak 100%
Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, none of the M EXPHIHEEN RE—NFE+

Directors or chief executive of the Company had any interests or
short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of
the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO), which were required: (a) to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and
short positions which he/she was taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO), (b) pursuant to section 352 of the
SFO, to be entered in the register of the Company referred to
therein, or (c) pursuant to the Model Code to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES
AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2019, so far as is known to the Directors, the
following persons (other than a Director or the chief executive of the
Company) and entities had interests or short positions in the Shares and
underlying Shares as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under section 336 of the SFO:

R-ZZE-NAF+_A=t—H BEFAH
RIFTAE TIALE(RBREARFESFTHE
ETBAE) RERBVRD KRGS %
EREESZMME ﬂﬂﬁ‘J%S%ﬂ%ﬁuEﬁEK
NAIGEEECMOERSIORE

Percentage of

Number of shareholding
Shares interest in the
Name of Shareholders Note  Capacity/Nature of interest interested Company
EEREEN FrAG 2= 2 =]
IR R & B fied B HEEME IR 5 2 B REBDL
TYJ 1 Beneficial owner 567,000,000 52.5%
v EREBA
Ms. Yeow Geok Tiang (“Ms. Yeow”) 1 Interest of spouse 567,000,000 52.5%
Yeow Geok Tiang Z &= ([ Yeow & =+ ) B 45 4 =
Trinity 2 Beneficial owner 243,000,000 22.5%
Trinity EnEEA A
Ms. Goh Soo Cheng (“Ms. Goh”) 2 Interest of spouse 243,000,000 22.5%
Goh Soo ChengZ £ ([GohZ £ ) fo B 4 =
Notes: HiaE -
1. TYJ was beneficially and wholly owned by Mr. Tang, the husband of Ms. Yeow. By virtue 1. TYJH YeowZ T KL K Tangk £ Bz 2 &

of the SFO, Ms. Yeow was deemed to be interested in the Shares held and deemed to
be held by Mr. Tang.

2. Trinity was beneficially and wholly owned by Mr. Lee, the husband of Ms. Goh. By virtue
of the SFO, Ms. Goh was deemed to be interested in the Shares held and deemed to be
held by Mr. Lee.

3. The percentages of shareholding interest in the Company shown in the table above are
calculated on the basis of 1,080,000,000 Shares in issue as at 31 December 2019.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, so far as the
Directors or chief executive of the Company are aware of, no other
persons (other than a Director or the chief executive of the Company) or
entities had any interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying
Shares, which would fall to be disclosed under the provisions of Divisions
2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were required, pursuant to
section 336 of the SFO, to be recorded in the register referred to therein.

A - R E SR D] Yoow X+
188 A Tang 5 2 4% St R B 45 0B 15
o A T

2. Trinity AGohZ T L Klee £ B & &
HA - BIRESFREEEM - Goh +#
BERLee T EFMPFABRABFANRH
hHEERER -

3. FRBEBIOAQRAREB S LTI IE =
E-—AF+-_A=+—BHE BT
1,080,000,000 8% f& 0 2 E %5 &

BREXHEEEN R-_F-NAF+_-A
=t—B REFHAQRATETHRAER
A BIEEMAL(EEHARAEET
BA BN HE BRI AE R B
ERBERESMMEGIFEXVEE2R3D |
BFEXEBETFTEENRDZIRBRXRERSF N
HA & 16k 1) 55 336 iR 7B I AN ¥ o5 42 A A A AC 8%
RECMOBRIOXE -
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

No equity-linked agreements were entered into by the Company during
the Year or subsisted at the end of the Year.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 23 June 2017 (the “Adoption Date”), the Shareholders approved
and conditionally adopted a share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) to enable the Company to grant options to eligible participants
as incentives and rewards for their contribution to the Group. The Share
Option Scheme became effective on the Listing Date and no options
have been granted since then. As at 31 December 2019, there were no
outstanding options and no options were exercised or cancelled or
lapsed during the Year.

The following is a summary of the principal terms of the Share Option
Scheme:

1. Purpose:

The Share Option Scheme is a share incentive scheme prepared in
accordance with Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules and is established
to recognise and acknowledge the contributions that the Eligible
Participants (as defined in paragraph 2 below) had or may have
made to the Group. The Share Option Scheme will provide the
Eligible Participants with an opportunity to have a personal stake in
the Company with the view to achieving the following objectives:

(i) motivate the Eligible Participants to optimise their
performance efficiency for the benefit of the Group; and

(i)  attract and retain or otherwise maintain an on-going business
relationship with the Eligible Participants whose contributions
are or will be beneficial to the long-term growth of the Group.
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Participants:

The Board may, at its discretion, offer to grant an option to the
following persons (collectively the “Eligible Participants”) to
subscribe for such number of new Shares as the Board may
determine at an exercise price as the Board may determine in
accordance with the rules of the Share Option Scheme:

(

) any full-time or part-time employees, executives or officers of
the Company or any of its subsidiaries;

(i)  any directors (including INEDs) of the Company or any of its
subsidiaries; and

(i)  any advisers, consultants, suppliers, customers, distributors
and such other persons who in the sole opinion of the Board
will contribute or have contributed to the Company or any of
its subsidiaries.

Total number of Shares available for issue:

The maximum number of Shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised
under the Share Option Scheme shall not in aggregate exceed
108,000,000 Shares, representing 10% of the total number of
issued Shares as at the Listing Date.

No option has been granted under the Share Option Scheme since
the Listing Date and up to 31 December 2019. Accordingly, the
number of Shares available for issue upon exercise of options that
may be granted under the Share Option Scheme is 108,000,000,
representing 10% of the total number of issued Shares as at the
date of this annual report.
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4. Maximum entitlement of each participant:

Subject to paragraph (i) below, the total number of Shares
issued and which may fall to be issued upon exercise of the
options granted under the Share Option Scheme and any
other share option schemes of the Company (including both
exercised and outstanding options) to each Eligible
Participant in any 12-month period up to the date of grant
shall not exceed 1% of the Shares in issue as at the date of
grant. Any further grant of options in excess of this 1% limit
shall be subject to:

(@ the issue of a circular by the Company containing the
identity of the Eligible Participant, the numbers of and
terms of the options to be granted (and the options
previously granted to such Eligible Participant), the
information as required under Rules 17.02(2)(d) and the
disclaimer required under 17.02(4) of the Listing Rules;
and

(b) the approval of the Shareholders in general meeting
and/or other requirements prescribed under the Listing
Rules from time to time with such Eligible Participant
and his/her close associates (as defined in the Listing
Rules) (or his/her associates if the Eligible Participant is
a connected person (as defined in the Listing Rules)) of
the Company abstaining from voting.

The maximum entitlement of each INED or substantial
shareholder (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the Company,
or any of their respective associates (as defined in the Listing
Rules) in the 12-month period up to and including such date
of grant shall not exceed:

— in aggregate over 0.1% (or such other percentage as
may from time to time provided under the Listing Rules)
of the number of the Shares in issue; and

— an aggregate value in excess of HK$5 million (or such
other sum as may from time to time provided under the
Listing Rules), where the value shall be based on the
official closing price of the Shares on the date of each
grant.
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If the Board proposes to grant options to any of the persons
or entities above-mentioned, which will result in the number
of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of options
granted and to be granted (including options exercised,
cancelled and outstanding) to such person or entity in excess
of the above limit(s), such further grant of options shall be
subject to the issue of a circular by the Company and the
approval of Shareholders in general meeting on a poll, at
which all core connected persons (as defined in the Listing
Rules) of the Company shall abstain from voting in favour,
and/or such other requirements as prescribed under the
Listing Rules from time to time.

Period during which the options must be
exercised to subscribe for Shares:

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the
Share Option Scheme at any time after the date on which the
option is deemed to be granted and accepted and prior to the
expiry of 10 years from that date or such shorter exercise period as
the Board may in its absolute discretion determine in relation to the
grant of such options. No option may be exercised more than 10
years after it has been granted.

Minimum period for which an option must be
held before it can be exercised:

There is no minimum period for which an option granted must be
held before it can be exercised except otherwise imposed by the
Board.

Amount payable on application or acceptance
of the option and the period within which
payments or calls must or may be made:

Options granted must be taken up within 21 days of the date of
offer, upon payment of HK$1 per grant.

Basis of determining the exercise price:

The exercise price for the options that may be granted under the
Share Option Scheme shall be determined by the Board in its
absolute discretion, save that such price must be at least the
highest of:

(i) the official closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheets on the date of grant, which
must be a day on which the Stock Exchange is open for the
business of dealing in securities;
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(i)  the average of the official closing prices of the Shares as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the
five business days immediately preceding the date of grant;
and

(i) the nominal value of a Share.

9. Remaining life of the Share Option Scheme:

The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period
commencing on 11 July 2017 and ending on the tenth anniversary
of the Adoption Date (both days inclusive), subject to earlier
termination by the Company in general meeting or by the Board.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
AND DEBENTURES

At no time during the Year were rights to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of Shares in or debentures of the Company granted to
any Director or their respective associates nor was the Company and any
of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the Year, to the best of the Directors’ knowledge, the Group did
not enter into any related party transaction that falls under the definition
of one-off connected transaction or continuing connected transaction as
defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

EMOLUMENT POLICY AND DIRECTORS’
REMUNERATION

The Group believes that the remuneration package to its employees is in
line with local industries. It offers its employees group hospitalisation and
personal accident insurance. The Group also offers its employees an
incentive bonus scheme which encourages their individual performance
and then to contribute to their departmental performance as well.
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The emoluments of the Directors are reviewed and approved by the
remuneration committee of the Board, having regard to factors, including
remuneration paid by comparable companies, time commitment, job
duties and responsibilities in respect of the relevant positions. The
Company has adopted the Share Option Scheme, details of which are
set out under the section headed “Share Option Scheme” in this report
above.

Details of the Directors’ remuneration and the five highest paid individuals
in the Group during the Year are set out in Notes 10 and 11 to the
Financial Statements.

During the Year, there was no arrangement under which any Director had
waived or agreed to waive any emoluments.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES

The Company did not redeem its Shares listed on the Stock Exchange
nor did the Company or any of its subsidiaries purchase or sell any of
such Shares during the Year.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the Year, the Group has not made any charitable donations in
excess of HK$10,000 (2018: HK$10,000).

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles or the
laws of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige the Company to offer
new Shares on a pro-rata basis to existing Shareholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Directors recognise the importance of incorporating elements of
good corporate governance in the management structures and internal
control procedures of the Company so as to achieve effective
accountability. The Company is committed to the view that the Board
should include a balanced composition of executive Directors and INEDs
so that there is a strong independent element on the Board which can
effectively exercise independent judgement.
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The Company has adopted the code provisions as set out in the
Corporate Governance Code as contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules (the “CG Code”) as its own code of corporate governance.

During the Year, the Company had complied with all of the applicable
code provisions of the CG Code. For details, please refer to the “Corporate
Governance Report” which is set out on pages 62 to 84 of this annual
report.

The audit committee of the Board (the “Audit Committee”), consisting
of all three INEDs, namely Mr. Fung (chairman of the Audit Committee),
Mr. Chong and Mr. Ng, is responsible for reviewing the Company’s
corporate governance policies and the Company’s compliance with the
CG Code and will make relevant recommendations to the Board as and
when required.

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules (the “Model Code”) as its code of conduct governing the
Directors’ transactions of listed securities of the Company. All of the
Directors has confirmed, upon a specific enquiry made by the Company,
that he/she had complied with the Model Code during the FY2019.

INDEPENDENCE OF INEDs

The Company has received from each of its INEDs a written annual
confirmation of independence, and the Company considers that each of
them is independent and has met the independence guidelines as set out
in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

INTEREST OF DIRECTORS IN A COMPETING
BUSINESS

For the Year and up to the date of this annual report, none of the
Directors or their respective close associates had interests in businesses
which compete or are likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with
the business of the Group.
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DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

Pursuant to a deed of non-competition dated 23 June 2017 and
executed by TYJ and Mr. Tang (the “Deed of Non-competition”), each
of TYJ and Mr. Tang has undertaken to the Company that it/he will not
engage in, and shall procure its/his close associates (other than members
of the Group) not to engage in, any business which competes or is likely
to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the Group.
Details of the Deed of Non-competition have been disclosed in the
section headed “Relationship with Controlling Shareholders — Deed of
Non-competition” of the Prospectus.

The Company has received from TYJ and Mr. Tang an annual
confirmation that it/he has fully complied with its/his obligations under the
Deed of Non-competition. The independent non-executive Directors have
reviewed the confirmation and not being aware of the occurrence of any
event which led to the non-compliance of the Deed of Non-competition,
they were satisfied that each of TYJ and Mr. Tang had complied with and
enforced the provisions of the Deed of Non-competition during the Year.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors, the Directors confirmed that the
Company has maintained a sufficient public float of the issued Shares (i.e.
at least 25% of the issued Shares being held by the public) as required
under the Listing Rules, throughout the Year and thereafter up to the
date of this annual report.

RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES,
CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group recognises that its employees are the valuable assets for the
Group’s continuous development. Thus, it provides medical insurance
coverage to employees who are retained after the probation period. In
order to enhance overall efficiency, employee loyalty and retention,
employees of the Group are required to attend orientation sessions when
they first join the Group and may attend other training courses held onsite
or externally.

The Company has adopted the Share Option Scheme to recognise and
motivate contributions of its employees. Further details regarding the
Share Option Scheme are set out in the paragraphs headed “Share
Option Scheme” above.
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The Group provides high quality coconut related products to its
customers from both private sector and public sector to fulfil their
immediate and long-term needs. The Group also communicates with its
customers regularly to maintain close relationship with them.

During the Year, there was no material or significant dispute between the
Group and its suppliers as the Group has been maintaining fair and
cooperative relationships with them.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLAN

As required by the Malaysian law, the Group makes contributions to the
state pension scheme, the Employees Provident Fund (the “EPF”), a
social security institution formed according to the Employees Provident
Fund Act 1991 which provides for the retirement benefits for all local
employees. Both the employer and employee are required to make
contributions into the employee’s individual account in the EPF at a
specified percentage of the employee’s monthly income. As at the date
of this annual report, the Group is in compliance with this requirement.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

Pursuant to the Articles and subject to the applicable laws and
regulations, every Director, the independent auditor, the company
secretary or other officers of the Company shall be indemnified and
secured harmless out of the assets and profits of the Company from and
against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which
they or any of them may sustain or incur by or by reason of any act done,
concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of their duty, or
supposed duty, in their respective offices.

The Company has taken appropriate insurance coverage in respect of
Directors’ and officers’ liability for the Year.

RELIEF OF TAXATION

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available to the
Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Shares. If the Shareholders
are unsure about the taxation implications of purchasing, holding,
disposing of, dealing in or exercising of any rights in relation to the
Shares, they are advised to consult their professional advisers.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (continued)
EEg®RE @

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

No contract (except for the service contracts of the executive Directors)
concerning the management or administration of the whole or any
substantial part of the business of the Company was entered into or
existed during the Year.

IMPORTANT EVENT AFTER THE END OF THE
YEAR

No important event affecting the Group has occurred since the end of the
Year and up to the date of this annual report.

REVIEW OF THE ANNUAL RESULTS

The Audit Committee had reviewed this annual report (including the
Financial Statements) and the annual results announcement of the
Company for the Year and had submitted the same to the Board for
approval. Members of the Audit Committee are of the opinion that the
Financial Statements, the results announcement and this annual report
have been prepared in compliance with the applicable accounting
standards, the Listing Rules and the relevant statutory provisions and that
adequate disclosure has been made.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

The Financial Statements have been audited by KPMG PLT, the
independent auditors of the Company (the “Independent Auditors”).
As disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 27 March 2020,
KPMG PLT will retire at the forthcoming 2020 AGM and will not be
seeking for re-appointment as the Independent Auditors thereat.

A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming 2020 AGM to appoint
Mazars PLT as the Independent Auditors, in place of KPMG PLT, until
the conclusion of the next AGM and to authorise the Board to fix their
remuneration.

On behalf of the Board

Tang Koon Fook
Chairman and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 27 March 2020

106

EEEXN

RAFEYEITUXTFEEBAARA LS
SEMERFOEBERKTREENS
HWEATEZORBE A DB

FHEBHREESER

BARAFERAREEARAFRA S - b H|HE
EREREBENEEER -

EHNEFXEAE

EZEeCEFHAFHR(BEMBHRK)
EARRBIMAEFENEEEAEAS LD
MEZFSRENHLE - B ZEEHOK
ERBUBRER RELAERLAFRNRE
HENAERAMWE LR EmARRRE
BERREYCIEH T O WE -

B2 BE

AN B) I8 3 % BEIKPMG PLT ([ 18 3 #% &
MDEHYBMERETEZ  HUKRA A
B AT _ZTF=A -+ tHMAEM
HFE KPMGPLTEHREE - _FTFRR
BFEREe L REBETESKEEBIZE
Bl
BREE-_ZS_EFREAFAE LR
R 5% % DA Z B2 Mazars PLT & 98 7 4 SAb - A
BARKPMGPLT EE NEREAF KRS
ROURBEEZFTSETESHE -

RREZS

Tang Koon Fook
FEFHNTEF

BEE —_E_TF=A_++H

S&P INTERNATIONAL HOLDING LIMITED =~ ANNUAL REPORT 2019



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF S&P INTERNATIONAL HOLDING LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of S&P
International Holding Limited and its subsidiaries (“the Group”), which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2019, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in
equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies, as set out on pages 113 to 204.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as
at 31 December 2019, and of its consolidated financial performance and
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on
Auditing. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described
in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our auditors’ report. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.

Independence and Other Ethical Responsibilities

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the International
Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (I[ESBA Code”), and we have fulfiled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT (Continued)
B A% B R ()

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements for the current year. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

FARFLER

AREZFHEIREES ZIBEHE 8
AERGEVBRRIBEGRR/REERLZSE
H-ZEFRNREBEEERERCEAMH
BEAEIHBEAERRETRE REF
TenZEETRREEFER

Valuation of inventories

FEZME

Refer to Note 3(g)— Significant accounting policies: Inventories; Note 17 — Inventories.

FSHMES) —EXEFHBEK: FE

The key audit matter
BREERER

MzE17 — 78

o

How the matter was addressed in our audit

ESHEBERPHNEERLE

The Group held inventories which comprises packaging
and raw materials, semi-finished goods and finished goods
with an aggregate carrying amount of RM 23,485,240 as
at the end of the reporting period.

EEERBRERRFAZFEREBERRME - ¥+
A fn R BLRK o - AR RRTEI (B /323,485,240 5 RA L 2 F o

The cost of inventories is calculated using the weighted
average method. The primary raw materials is coconuts,
which is a commodity, and its cost generally affected by
markets factors, such as price fluctuations, market supply
and demand, logistics and transportation costs. The cost
of coconuts is adjusted with anticipated wastages and
losses in the production process in order to derive the
inventory standard costs. The inventory standard costs are
affected by the extraction yield from the coconuts, which is
dependent on the maturity and quality of the coconuts. As
a result, the inventory standard costs used by the Group
may be incorrect.

FERRAEAMEFEEAE - FERME A/ T -
EAMG NABEXEEMSRETLE  MERKE
B mBEHELRTR OREERKAE - HF KA
TR RBERINAEERBERNIBRETHAE AU
EREERERNEA FEREXNAIBFRIEXNT
Z MEDMXRFRRBFzRAEREE A &
SEFER 2 FERERAA LI T ER

This assessment required significant judgement and
estimation by the Group. Accordingly, we identified the
valuation of inventories (other than packaging material) as a
key audit matter.

ULIARF A EHEBEELERAE KRG - Bt
EECREEZHEBREMBRIN B REREZ
FE-
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In this area, our audit procedures include:
EZIE BEEZ28%EFBE:

° Obtained an understanding of and assessed the
design and implementation of management’s key
internal controls over the processes of determining
the inventory standard costs.

e TEHREKIHEEEHECTTFERERARZER
Z BN BRG] 2 REF BRI

° Assessed the historical accuracy of arriving at the
inventory standard costs.
o HEEBRTFEREXNAZELIEHEIE -

o Agreed the cost of raw materials to third party
supplier invoices on a sampling basis.

e MBEZREMF="ITHEBRHZIBRZRZHER
MR ©

° Challenged the reasonableness of the key inputs
within the inventory standard costs and the evidence
supporting the underlying assumptions used by the
Group by comparing to the underlying records.

e HAEBTHETHH BN EEEEFER
ERARERzBRBABBLEXHEHERER
ZBEBEBZEEM -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT (Continued)

Information Other than the Consolidated Financial
Statements and Auditors’ Report Thereon

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the annual
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and
our auditors’ report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
annual report and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the annual report and, in doing so, consider
whether the annual report is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of the
annual report, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Directors for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. The
Directors are also responsible for such internal control as the Directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Directors are
responsible for assessing the ability of the Group to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT (Continued)
B A% B R ()

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with International Standards on Auditing will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with International Standards on
Auditing, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the internal control of the Group.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the

reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the Directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT (Continued)

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the
Group to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that gives a true
and fair view.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Directors regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide the Directors with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Directors, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements for the current year and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our auditors’ report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh
the public interest benefits of such communication.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT (Continued)
B A% B R ()

Other Matter

This report is made solely to the shareholders of the Company, as a
body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility to any
other person for the content of this report.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditors’ report is Sia Chin Hoe.

KPMG PLT

Chartered Accountants

Level 10, KPMG Tower

8 First Avenue, Bandar Utama
47800 Petaling Jaya

Selangor Darul Ehsan, Malaysia

Date : 27 March 2020

112

H =18

ABEER BERAREBRBBRRBRE  Kitz
Sh TRTREEMAE BEM IR ARSE
MATHIMEBALES -

HAXABYZHMBFEZEZEEAE A
/& Sia Chin Hoe °

KPMG PLT

R & 5T ED

Level 10, KPMG Tower

8 First Avenue, Bandar Utama
47800 Petaling Jaya

Selangor Darul Ehsan, Malaysia

Aff: T -_FF=A-++H

S&P INTERNATIONAL HOLDING LIMITED =~ ANNUAL REPORT 2019



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
RERERHEMEZERSER

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ = —NF+-_A=+—HILFE

Note
Bt &

Revenue U = 4
Cost of sales $HE KA
Gross profit EF
Other income E A A 5
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHATZ
Administrative expenses TR &
Other expenses HAb X
(Loss)/Profit from operations g (EBR) RF
Finance income B 75 U A 6
Finance costs B 75 B AR 7
Net finance (costs)/income B (BAR), WA F
(Loss)/Profit before taxation BRBLAT (B5]), SRR
Income tax credit/(expense) Frisfiie, (B ) 8
(Loss)/Profit for the year FR(EE),HER 9
Other comprehensive (expense)/income FREM2E (X))

for the year, net of tax WA (F0BrBiE)
Item that may be reclassified subsequently to H & A] ¢ @ B 45 2

profit or loss: BmoIEE -
Foreign currency translation differences for 84 % 7% ) 9N 8 i &

foreign operations ZH
Total comprehensive (expense)/income FR2E (BX) WA

for the year LR
(Loss)/Profit attributable to: UTALEMN(ER)

Al

Equity shareholders of the Company RARERBRE

Non-controlling interest FEIE R =
(Loss)/Profit for the year Fr (BB ER
Total comprehensive (expense)/income LT AT EGZE

attributable to: (X)) WA#E:
Equity shareholders of the Company KAF R R
Non-controlling interest FEIE R =
Total comprehensive (expense)/income F£R2HE (Bx) WA

for the year #zE
Basic and diluted (loss)/earnings per BREBREARET

ordinary share (expressed in Sen): (B18), B F (B

xR 12

The notes on pages 119 to 204 are an integral part of these financial
statements.

MEEEBRAT —Z-NFFRK

2019

—E-hEF

RM

BERADSE

68,327,729
(52,152,935)

16,174,794

870,524
(4,674,581)
(13,826,881)
(374,783)

(1,830,927)

579,444
(958,275)

(378,831)

(2,209,758)
345,590

(1,864,168)

(629,640)

(2,493,808)

(1,844,444)
(19,724)

(1,864,168)

(2,398,161)
(95,647)

(2,493,808)

2018

—E—N\F

RM

BRAZSH

79,989,035
(54,164,489)

25,824,546

490,483
(4,515,258)
(10,828,866)
(2,624,345)

8,346,560

832,224
(274,621)

557,603

8,904,163
(2,609,280)

6,294,883

889,813

7,184,696

6,295,729
(846)

6,294,883

7,185,725
(1,029)

7,184,696

0.58

FOE2UBE 2 EZETBEHRER 2B

B &R o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
mE BRI K

As at 31 December 2019 R=F—NEF+=-A=+—H

2019 2018
—2-nE —F)\4F
Note RM RM

K BRAZSE BRERSH

114

Assets BE
Non-current assets kREBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - WE NEKRE 13 90,918,093 49,839,306
Right-of-use assets HREEE 14 6,149,297 -
Goodwill P 16 - —
Deferred tax assets FEREFRIBEE 25 33,655 -
97,101,045 49,839,306
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 17 23,485,240 25,330,420
Current tax asset BNEARI IR B E 2,157,471 318,677
Trade and other receivables B 5 & H b e W R IE 18 13,670,848 20,235,346
Derivative financial asset MTHESREE 19 63,700 —
Pledged time deposits B E B FE S 20 5,000,000 —
Cash and cash equivalents RERREEEY 21 25,606,417 46,089,253
69,983,676 91,973,596
Total assets EE#E 167,084,721 141,812,902
Equity and liabilities EEREE
Equity xR
Share capital B& 2 22 5,941,706 5,941,706
Share premium f% 190 @ 22 58,707,916 58,707,916
Reserves i 55,599,273 58,012,702
Total equity attributable to equity AAFEZRRRESLER
shareholders of the Company e 120,248,895 122,662,324
Non-controlling interest IR R S (3,815) 91,832
Total equity A 120,245,080 122,754,156
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (Continued)
mEMBERR T @

As at 31 December 2019 R=Z—hF+=-A=+—H

Note
Bt aF
Liabilities 8%
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Loans and borrowings BERRER 23
Lease liabilities HEBE 24
Deferred tax liabilities R IE A G 25
Current liabilities RBaE
Loans and borrowings BERRER 23
Lease liabilities HEEE 24
Trade and other payables H 5 K H b FE T 3RIE 26
Contract liabilities aHaE 27
Current tax liabilities BIEAR IE & &
Total liabilities EEHAE
Total equity and liabilities ERRkEEEE
Total assets less current liabilities EEAERARBER

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 27
March 2020.

Tang Koon Fook
Director
Tang Koon Fook

EF

The notes on pages 119 to 204 are an integral part of these financial
statements.

MEEEBRAT —Z-NFFRK

2019
ZE-NF
RM

SRADSHE

28,300,928
171,549
966,377

29,438,854

5,312,827

314,510
11,542,434

213,115
17,901

17,400,787

46,839,641

167,084,721

149,683,934

2018
—2-NF
RM

BSRAEESH

2,906,435

1,487,541

4,393,976

463,261

13,774,954
392,000
34,555

14,664,770

141,812,902

127,148,132

EFEeN T _ZEF=ZF_t+tHIHLEK

T -

Lee Sieng Poon

Director

Lee Sieng Poon

EF

F19E204B 2 ENDREM BRI ZE

B &R o

115



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
RERER2BR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ =T —NF+=-A=+—HILFE

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

ADREERREN
Non-
Share Share Other  Translation controlling
capital premium reserve Note reserve  Retained interest Total
Note 220)) - (Note 22(c)f) 22)) - (Note 22(c)fij)) ~ eamings Total  Note 758) equity
BE  ROEE  HEREE BRERE FERER
(HiFoop) (Hazoze)) (Haozey) (Hazoec)ip) HRERFA @it (Witiow) wER
RM RM RM RM RM RM RM RM
SXRAE SRAEDR SRAD SREE BRE: FRER  SRAER  SREDR
A+ A+ A+ A+ A+ A+ A+ A+
~ A <A ~ A ~ A ~ A <A ~ A
At 1 January 2018 R-ZZ-N\§¥-F-H 5941706 58,707,916 150,200 (2,745,323) 53,422,100 115,476,599 — 115,476,599
Foreign currency translation BNEBRINERE
differences for foreign operations % &8 - - - 889,996 - 889,996 (183) 889,813
Other comprehensive income for & M E {2 E KA
the year - - - 889,996 - 889,996 (183) 889,813
Profit for the year FREF - - — — 6,295,729 6,295,729 (846) 6,294,883
Total comprehensive income ~ F£R2H KA BE
for the year - - - 889,996 6,295,729 7,185,725 (1,029) 7,184,696
Acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 33) 18 — I B 2 )
(Bf3£33) - - - - - - 9281 92861
At 31 December 2018 RZZ-N\&
+=B=+-H 5941706 58,707,916 150,200 (1,855,327) 59,717,829 122,662,324 91,832 122,754,156
At 1 January 2019, as previously R=Z—-h %
reported —-B-B RAZRK 5941706 58,707,916 150,200 (1,855,327) 59,717,829 122,662,324 91,832 122,754,156
Adjustment on initial application of ~ #1 [E B BB B 1 45
IFRS 16, net of tax EH E165R LM
% NBHE - - - - (15268 (15269 - (15269
At 1 January 2019, restated R-ZZE-h%E
-B-R- EJl 5,941,706 58,707,916 150,200 (1,855,327) 59,702,561 122,647,056 91,832 122,738,888
Foreign currency translation BNEBRINERE
differences for foreign operations %= %8 - - - (553,717) - (653,717) (75,9293) (629,640)
Other comprehensive expense for R H it 2 EH %
the year - - - (553,717) - (553,717) (75,923) (629,640)
Loss for the year ERER - - - —  (1,844,444)  (1,844,444) (19,724)  (1,864,169)
Total comprehensive expense A2 HEE X & H
for the year - - - (653,717) (1,844.444) (2398161)  (95,647) (2,493,808)
At 31 December 2019 RZB-N%
+=ZA=+-H 5,941,706 58,707,916 (2,409,044) 57,858,117 120,248,895 (3,815) 120,245,080

The notes on pages 119 to 204 are an integral part of these financial F119E204B 2 M= Va2 S0 Bk Kx 2 4
statements. KBRS o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
GREAERER

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ = —NF+-_A=+—HILFE

2019 2018
—E-hE —Z)N\F
Note RM RM

ffiz BREZSE SRAGSH

Cash flows from operating activities RETHMBEERE
(Loss)/Profit before tax MELAT (B1E), & (2,209,758) 8,904,163
Adjustments for: BU TN EEEH 7 -
Bad debts written off 152 BR 58 9 = 12,505
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME BELKREITE 13 2,534,910 2,172,761
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEERE 14 571,605 —
Deposit paid for a land acquisition written off B 1 b U B8 2 & s 9 — 196,020
Finance costs B 75 B AR 7 958,275 274,621
Finance income B U A 6 (579,444) (832,224)
Net (gains)/loss on unrealised foreign exchange REWHNEZE (W),

differences B EFEE 9 (309,866) 2,122,922
Impairment loss on goodwill AR EEER 9 = 515,513
Plant and equipment written off %5 K 5% 5 8 9 5,380 19,476
Operating profit before changes in working HESSEBHANKSERR

capital 971,102 13,385,757
Change in inventories 75 E 1,845,180 4,984,642
Change in trade and other receivables B 5 & H th & W FRIE 2 &) 6,029,159 (2,137,431)
Change in trade and other payables B REMBEMNRIBEZE (1,319,022) 2,224,847
Change in contract liabilities EHBEES) (178,885) 99,722
Cash generated from operations KETHMBRS 7,347,534 18,557,537
Tax refunded B 382,187 —
Income tax paid EENIZIE T (2,373,702) (4,681,040)
Net cash from operating activities RETHMBRLSFHE 5,356,019 13,876,497
Cash flows from investing activities REZHMEBEESRE
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment WEME  BENERE (i) (19,917,422) (27,285,010)
Acquisition of a subsidiary, net of cash and cash e g — MM B AR - kB U

equivalents acquired MWIRERBREEED 33 = 85,021
Interest received 2 W F & 579,444 832,224
Increase in pledged time deposits B 3K 1 F B 77 3 N (5,000,000) -
Net cash used in investing activities RETEHMARSFEHE (24,337,978) (26,367,765)
Cash flows from financing activities MEITBHMEREERE
Capital element of lease liabilities paid ENHEEEENELRT D (254,334) -
Drawdown from new borrowings REFTE R U] 1,174,562 -
Interest and other borrowing costs paid B FI) B R H B SR AR (935,609) (274,621)
Interest element of lease liabilities paid ENHEaENFEID (22,666) -
Repayments of loans and borrowings BRRETER (748,240) (1,430,983)
Net cash used in financing activities METHFFARESFEHE (786,287) (1,705,604)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents RERBRELEBYRL BHE (19,768,246) (14,196,872)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January R—A—HWBEERBESEEY 46,089,253 59,425,300
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes EREFHHTE (714,590) 860,825
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December RT+-ZB=+—HWEBELR

REZEEY 21 25,606,417 46,089,253
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)
REREREBR@

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ =T —NF+=-A=+—HILFE

(i) Acquisition of property, plant and equipment (i) WENE- - BERERE
During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group acquired property, plant and BE-_ZT—NhE+-_A=+—BILEE Xx&E
equipment with an aggregated cost of RM49,619,676 (2018: RM27,285,010) of which WY - BB &%) 8K AN R49,619,676 5
RM29,702,254 (2018: Nil) were financed by bank loans. KBS E(ZZT— )\ F :27,2850105F 2K 7 25

DE) HFR29702254 5 KA HLEHE(ZE— N\
F ) HBITERBEE -

(ii) Cash outflows for leases as a lessee (ii) EREABAANEERSR Y
2019 2018
—E-hEF —ZT—N\F
Note RM RM

B BREDSE BREGDLHE

Included in net cash from operating activities STAREEIHMEBRSFH
Payment relating to short-term leases SEGEEN-RiEl AN BN 9 (255,777) -

Included in net cash from financing activities SARETBMERSFHR

Interest paid in relation to lease liabilities ENEEEEEENR 7 (22,666) -
Payment of lease liabilities HEEEMNR (254,334) -
Total cash outflows for leases FRHEENRESRHEEAHE (532,777) -
Reconciliation of movement of liabilities to cash flows arising from financing activities BEEYHERETHMEESREYHE
Net changes Adjustment Net changes  Acquisition

At from At on initial At from  of property, Foreign At

1 January financing 31 December  recognition 1 January financing plantand  Acquisiton  exchange 31 December

2018  cash flows 2018  of IFRS 16 2019 cashflows equipment of newlease  movement 2019

S W1 15

R® ZB-0\F BEEY iy i

“E2-\F RERER t=h £16% —3-NF RERLR KEYNE K ZE2-nE

-B-B EBE#HEE =t-B HFLMNHE -A-B E2BEE ERRHE UWBFEE HEZH t-A=+-B

RM RM RM RM RM RM RM RM RM RM

SREGSE BABEST BREZSE FREZSE BREDSE RRBESE FAERSE BREESE BABISE  BABDSE

Loans and borrowings & 51 J2 f& 30 4800679 (1,430,983 3,369,696 - 3369696 426,322 29,702,254 - 115,483 33,613,756
Lease liabilties BERE - - - 412,384 412,384 (254,334) - 328,009 - 486,059

Total liabiities from ~ REFHEELE
financing activities 4800679 (1,430,983 3,369,696 412,384 3,782,080 171,988 29,702,254 328,009 115,483 34,009,814

The notes on pages 119 to 204 are an integral part of these financial $119F 2048 Z M I3 E 8 Gk 2 48
statements. KBRS o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION

S&P International Holding Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands under the Companies Law,
Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the
Cayman Islands as an exempted company with limited liability on
10 November 2016.

The Company is an investment holding company. The Company
and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) are principally engaged
in manufacturing and distribution of coconut cream powder, low fat
desiccated coconut and other related products. The Company’s
shares were listed on The Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) on 11 July 2017.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION

(a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable International Financial Reporting Standards
(“IFRSs”), which collective term includes all applicable
individual IFRSs, International Accounting Standards (“IASs”)
and Interpretations issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (“IASB”). These financial statements also
comply with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and the applicable disclosure
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Main Board of Stock Exchange. Significant accounting
policies adopted by the Group are set out in Note 3.

The IASB has issued a number of new and revised IFRSs. For
the purpose of preparing these financial statements, the
Group has adopted all applicable new and revised IFRSs for
the current and prior accounting periods, except for any new
standards or interpretations that will be effective for the
accounting period beginning on or after 1 January 2020. The
new and revised accounting standards, amendments and
interpretations issued that will be effective for the accounting
period beginning on or after 1 January 2020 are set out
below. Note 3 provides information on any changes in
accounting policies resulting from initial application of these
developments to the extent that they are relevant to the
Group for the current and prior accounting periods reflected
in these financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

RS 8 2% Y 5 ()

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

120

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance (continued)

Effective for annual periods beginning on or

after 1 January 2020

° Amendments to IFRS 3, Business Combinations —
Definition of a Business

° Amendments to IAS 1, Presentation of Financial
Statements and IAS 8, Accounting Policies, Changes in
Accounting Estimates and Errors — Definition of
Material

° Amendments to IFRS 9, Financial Instruments, 1AS 39,
Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement
and IFRS 7, Financial Instruments: Disclosures —
Interest Rate Benchmark Reform

Effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2021
o IFRS 17, Insurance Contracts

Effective for annual periods beginning on or

after 1 January 2022

° Amendments to |IAS 1, Presentation of Financial
Statements — Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current

Effective for annual periods beginning on or

after a date yet to be confirmed

° Amendments to IFRS 10, Consolidated Financial
Statements and IAS 28, Investments in Associates and
Joint Ventures — Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture

The Group will apply the abovementioned accounting
standards, amendments and interpretations that are
applicable to the Group when they become effective.

Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical
cost basis.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

(c)

(d)

HMEEBERLF

Functional and presentation currency

The Company and other investment holding subsidiaries
incorporated in the Cayman Islands, the British Virgin Islands
and Hong Kong have their functional currencies in Hong
Kong Dollar (‘HK$") and subsidiaries established in Malaysia
and Singapore have their functional currencies in Malaysian
Ringgit (‘RM”) and Singapore Dollar (“SGD”) respectively. As
the Group mainly operates in Malaysia, RM is used as the
presentation currency of the financial statements.

Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with
IFRSs requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of accounting
policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised
and in any future periods affected.

There are no significant areas of estimation uncertainty and
critical judgements in applying accounting policies that have
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial
statements other than as disclosed below:

(i) Valuation of inventories

The cost of inventories is calculated using the weighted
average method. The primary raw materials is coconuts,
which is a commodity, and its cost generally affected
by markets factors, such as price fluctuations, market
supply and demand, logistics and transportation costs.
The cost of coconuts is adjusted with anticipated
wastages and losses in the production process in order
to derive the inventory standard costs. The inventory
standard costs are affected by the extraction yield from
the coconuts, which is dependent on the maturity and
quality of the coconuts. This assessment required
significant judgement and estimation. The carrying
amount of the inventories is disclosed in Note 17.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
A% R M A ()

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

(d) Use of estimates and judgements (Continued)

(ii) Determining the lease term

The lease liability is initially recognised at the present
value of the lease payments payable over the lease
term. In determining the lease term at the
commencement date for leases that include renewal
options exercisable by the Group, the Group evaluates
the likelihood of exercising the renewal options taking
into account all relevant facts and circumstances that
create an economic incentive for the Group to exercise
the option, including favourable terms, leasehold
improvements undertaken and the importance of that
underlying asset to the Group’s operation. The lease
term is reassessed when there is a significant event or
significant change in circumstance that is within the
Group’s control. Any increase or decrease in the lease
term would affect the amount of lease liabilities and
right-of-use assets recognised in future years.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies set out below have been applied
consistently to the periods presented in these financial statements
and have been applied constantly by Group entities, unless
otherwise stated.

Arising from the adoption of IFRS 16, Leases, there are changes to
the accounting policies applied to lease contracts entered into by
the Group as compared to those applied in previous financial
statements. The impacts arising from the changes are disclosed in
Note 34.

(a) Basis of consolidation

() Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities, including structured entities,
controlled by the Company. The financial statements of
subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial
statements from the date that control commences until
the date that control ceases. Merger accounting is
adopted for common control combinations (see below)
in which all of the combining entities are ultimately
controlled by the same controlling shareholders both
before and after the business combination and that
control is not transitory.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(a) Basis of consolidation (continued)

(i)

HMEEBERLF

Subsidiaries (Continued)

The Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
entity and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the entity. Potential voting rights are
considered when assessing control only when such
rights are substantive. The Group also considers it has
de facto power over an investee when, despite not
having the majority of voting rights, it has the current
ability to direct the activities of the investee that
significantly affect the investee’s return.

Investments in subsidiaries are measured in the
Company’s statement of financial position at cost less
any impairment losses (see Note 3(j)(ii)). The cost of
investment includes transaction costs.

Business combinations

Business combinations arising from transfers of
interests in entities that are under the control of the
shareholders that control the Group are accounted for
as if the acquisition had occurred at the beginning of
the earliest comparative period presented or, if later, at
the date that common control was established; for this
purpose comparatives are restated. The assets and
liabilities acquired are recognised at the carrying
amounts recognised from the controlling shareholders’
perspective. All differences between the cost of
acquisition (fair value of consideration paid) and the
amounts at which the assets and liabilities are recorded
have been recognised directly in equity as part of the
other reserve.

Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method from the acquisition date, which is
the date on which control is transferred to the Group.

For new acquisitions, the Group measures the cost of
goodwill at the acquisition date as:

o the fair value of the consideration transferred; plus

° the recognised amount of any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree; plus
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

B 7 R & M & (%)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(a) Basis of consolidation (continued)

(i)

(iii)

124

Business combinations (Continued)

o if the business combination is achieved in stages,
the fair value of the existing equity interest in the
acquiree; less

o the net recognised amount (generally fair value) of
the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed.

When the excess is negative, a bargain purchase gain
is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

For each business combination, the Group elects
whether it measures the non-controlling interest in the
acquiree either at fair value or at the proportionate
share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets at the
acquisition date.

Transaction costs, other than those associated with the
issue of debt or equity securities, that the Group incurs
in connection with a business combination are
expensed as incurred.

Non-controlling interest

Non-controlling interest at the end of the reporting
period, being the equity in a subsidiary not attributable
directly or indirectly to the equity holders of the
Company, are presented in the consolidated statement
of financial position and statement of changes in equity
within equity, separately from equity attributable to the
owners of the Company. Non-controlling interest in the
results of the Group is presented in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income as an allocation of the profit or loss and the
comprehensive income for the year between non-
controlling interest and owners of the Company.

Losses applicable to the non-controlling interest in a
subsidiary are allocated to the non-controlling interest
even if doing so causes the non-controlling interest to
have a deficit balance.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(@)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

(iv) Transactions eliminated on consolidation
Intra-group balances and transactions, and any
unrealised income and expenses arising from intra-
group transactions, are eliminated in preparing the
consolidated financial statements.

(b) Goodwill

(c)

HMEEBERLF

Goodwill arises on business combinations and is measured
at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwiill is
not amortised but is tested for impairment annually and
whenever there is an indication that it may be impaired.

Foreign currency

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the
respective functional currencies of the entities comprising the
Group at exchange rates at the dates of the transactions.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies at the end of the reporting period are retranslated
to the functional currency at the exchange rate at that date.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are not retranslated at the end of the reporting
date, except for those that are measured at fair value are
retranslated to the functional currency at the exchange rate at
the date that the fair value was determined.

Foreign currency differences arising on retranslation are
recognised in profit or loss.

The results of foreign operations are translated into RM at the
exchange rates which approximate the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the dates of transactions. Statement of financial
position items, including goodwill arising on consolidations of
foreign operations acquired, are translated into RM at the
closing foreign exchange rates at the end of the reporting
period. The resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated separately in
equity in the translation reserve.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

B 7 R & M & (%)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

126

()

(d)

Foreign currency (continued)

However, if the operation is a non-wholly owned subsidiary,
then the relevant proportionate share of the exchange
differences is allocated to the non-controlling interest.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount of
the exchange differences relating to that foreign operation is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss when the profit or loss
on disposal is recognised.

In the consolidated financial statements, when settlement of a
monetary item receivable from or payable to a foreign
operation is neither planned nor likely to occur in the
foreseeable future, foreign exchange gains and losses arising
from such a monetary item are considered to form part of a
net investment in a foreign operation and are recognised in
other comprehensive income, and are presented in the
translation reserve within equity.

Financial instruments

() Recognition and initial measurement
A financial asset or a financial liability is recognised in
the statement of financial position when, and only
when, the Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without
significant financing component) or a financial liability is
initially measured at fair value plus or minus, for an item
not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs
that are directly attributable to its acquisition or
issuance. A trade receivable without a significant
financing component is initially measured at the
transaction price.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
B85 R M & ()

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(d) Financial instruments (Continued)

(ii)

HMEEBERLF

Financial instrument categories and
subsequent measurement

Financial assets

Categories of financial assets are determined on initial
recognition and are not reclassified subsequent to their
initial recognition unless the Group changes its business
model for managing financial assets in which case all
affected financial assets are reclassified on the first day
of the first reporting period following the change of the
business model.

Amortised cost

Amortised cost category comprises financial assets that
are held within a business model whose objective is to
hold assets to collect contractual cash flows and its
contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding. The financial
assets are not designated as fair value through profit or
loss. Subsequent to initial recognition, these financial
assets are measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. The amortised cost is
reduced by impairment losses. Interest income, foreign
exchange gains and losses and impairment are
recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on
derecognition is recognised in profit or loss.

Interest income is recognised by applying effective
interest rate to the gross carrying amount except for
credit impaired financial assets (see Note 3(j)(i)) where
the effective interest rate is applied to the amortised
cost.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

RS 8 2% Y 5 ()

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

128

(d) Financial instruments (Continued)

(i)

Financial instrument categories and
subsequent measurement (Continued)
Amortised cost (Continued)

Fair value through profit or loss

All financial assets not measured at amortised cost as
described above are measured at fair value through
profit or loss. This includes derivative financial assets
(except for a derivative that is a designated and effective
hedging instrument). On initial recognition, the Group
may irrevocably designate a financial asset that
otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at
amortised cost or at fair value through other
comprehensive income as at fair value through profit or
loss if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an
accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

Financial assets categorised as fair value through profit
or loss are subsequently measured at their fair value.
Net gains or losses, including any interest or dividend
income, are recognised in the profit or loss.

All financial assets, except for those measured at fair
value through profit or loss are subject to impairment
assessment (see Note 3())(i).

Financial liabilities

Amortised cost

Other financial liabilities not categorised as fair value
through profit or loss are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and
losses are recognised in the profit or loss. Any gains or
losses on derecognition are also recognised in the profit
or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(d) Financial instruments (Continued)

(iii)

Derecognition

A financial asset or part of it is derecognised when, and
only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from
the financial asset expire or transferred, or control of the
asset is not retained or substantially all of the risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial asset are
transferred to another party. On derecognition of a
financial asset, the difference between the carrying
amount of the financial asset and the sum of
consideration received (including any new asset
obtained less any new liability assumed) is recognised
in profit or loss.

A financial liability or a part of it is derecognised when,
and only when, the obligation specified in the contract
is discharged, cancelled or expires. A financial liability is
also derecognised when its terms are modified and the
cash flows of the modified liability are substantially
different, in which case, a new financial liability based
on modified terms is recognised at fair value. On
derecognition of a financial liability, the difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability
extinguished or transferred to another party and the
consideration paid, including any non-cash assets
transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit
or loss.

Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the
net amount presented in the statement of financial
position when, and only when, the Group or the
Company currently has a legally enforceable right to set
off the amounts and it intends either to settle them on a
net basis or to realise the asset and liability
simultaneously.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

B 7 R & M & (%)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

130

(e) Property, plant and equipment

(i)

Recognition and measurement

Freehold land and property under construction are
measured at cost less any accumulated impairment
losses (see Note 3(j)(ii). Other items of property, plant
and equipment are measured at cost less any
accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses (see Note 3(j)(ii)).

Cost includes expenditures that are directly attributable
to the acquisition of the asset and any other costs
directly attributable to bringing the asset to working
condition for its intended use, and the costs of
dismantling and removing the items and restoring the
site on which they are located. The cost of self-
constructed assets also includes the cost of materials
and direct labour. For qualifying assets, borrowing
costs are capitalised in accordance with the accounting
policy on borrowing costs.

Purchased software that is integral to the functionality
of the related equipment is capitalised as part of that
equipment.

When significant parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, they are
accounted for as separate items (major components) of
property, plant and equipment.

The gain or loss on disposal of an item of property,
plant and equipment is determined by comparing the
proceeds from disposal with the carrying amount of
property, plant and equipment and is recognised in
profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(e) Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

HMEEBERLF

Subsequent costs

The cost of replacing a component of an item of
property, plant and equipment is recognised in the
carrying amount of the item if it is probable that the
future economic benefits embodied within the
component will flow to the Group or the Company, and
its cost can be measured reliably. The carrying amount
of the replaced component is derecognised to profit or
loss. The costs of the day-to-day servicing of property,
plant and equipment are recognised in profit or loss as
incurred.

Depreciation

Depreciation is based on the cost of an asset less its
residual value. Significant components of individual
assets are assessed, and if a component has a useful
life that is different from the remainder of that asset,
then that component is depreciated separately.

Depreciation is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-
line basis over the estimated useful lives of each
component of an item of property, plant and equipment
from the date that they are available for use.
Depreciation does not cease when the asset becomes
idle or is retired from active use unless the asset is fully
depreciated.

Freehold land is not depreciated. Property, plant and

equipment under construction are not depreciated until
the assets are ready for their intended use.

Buildings are depreciated over their useful lives or over
the remaining land lease period, whichever is shorter.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

RS 8 2% Y 5 ()

3.

132

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
(e) Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

(iii) Depreciation (Continued)
The principal annual rates of depreciation are as

follows:

Factory buildings and other buildings 3%—4%
Plant and machinery 7%-20%
Motor vehicles 20%
Furniture, fittings and equipment 10%-15%

The right-of-use assets is subsequently depreciated
using the straight-line method from the commencement
date to the earlier of the end of useful life of the right-of-
use assets or the end of lease term.

Depreciation methods and useful lives are reviewed at
end of the reporting period, and adjusted as
appropriate.

() Leases

The Group has applied IFRS 16 using the modified
retrospective approach, under which the cumulative effect of
initial application is recognised as an adjustment to retained
earnings at 1 January 2019. Accordingly, the comparative
information presented for 2018 has not been restated — i.e.
it is presented, as previously reported under IAS 17, Leases
and related interpretations.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

() Leases (Continued)

Current financial year

(i)

HMEEBERLF

Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys a right to control the use of an identified asset
for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To
assess whether a contract conveys the right to control
the use of an identified asset, the Group assesses
whether:

° the contract involves the use of an identified asset
— this may be specified explicitly or implicitly, and
should be physically distinct or represent
substantially all of the capacity of a physically
distinct asset. If the supplier has a substantive
substitution right, then the asset is not identified;

o the customer has the right to obtain substantially
all of the economic benefits from use of the asset
throughout the period of use; and

o the customer has the right to direct the use of the
asset. The customer has this right when it has the
decision-making rights that are most relevant to
changing how and for what purpose the asset is
used. In rare cases where the decision about how
and for what purpose the asset is used is
predetermined, the customer has the right to
direct the use of the asset if either the customer
has the right to operate the asset; or the
customer designed the asset in a way that
predetermines how and for what purpose it will
be used.

At inception or on reassessment of a contract that
contains a lease component, the Group allocates the
consideration in the contract to each lease and non-
lease component on the basis of their relative stand-
alone prices. However, for leases of properties in which
the Group is a lessee, it has elected not to separate
non-lease components and will instead account for the
lease and non-lease components as a single lease
component.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
RS R Y (o

)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

() Leases (Continued)

Current financial year (Continued)
(i) Recognition and initial measurement

@)

134

As a lessee

The Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a
lease liability at the lease commencement date.
The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost,
which comprises the initial amount of the lease
liability adjusted for any lease payments made at
or before the commencement date, plus any initial
direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to
dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to
restore the underlying asset or the site on which it
is located, less any lease incentives received.

The lease liability is initially measured at the
present value of the lease payments that are not
paid at the commencement date, discounted
using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if
that rate cannot be readily determined, the
respective Group entities’ incremental borrowing
rate. Generally, the Group entities use their
incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of
the lease liability comprise the following:

° fixed payments, including in-substance
fixed payments less any incentives
receivable;

° variable lease payments that depend on an
index or a rate, initially measured using the
index or rate as at the commencement
date;

° amounts expected to be payable under a
residual value guarantee;
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(f)

Leases (Continued)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

H BE @

lease inception whether each lease is a finance

lease or an operating lease.

To classify each lease, the Group makes an
overall assessment of whether the lease transfers
substantially all of the risks and rewards incidental
to ownership of the underlying asset. If this is the
case, then the lease is a finance lease; if not, then

it is an operating lease.

If an arrangement contains lease and non-lease
the Group applies IFRS 15 to
allocate the consideration in the contract based

components,

on the stand-alone selling prices.
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Current financial year (Continued) 7R B B E ()
(i) Recognition and initial measurement (Continued) (i) HERREE (F)
(@ As a lessee (Continued) (@) /’F RAEMEA f%")
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
RS R Y (o

)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

() Leases (Continued)

Current financial year (Continued)
(i) Recognition and initial measurement (Continued)

(b)

AS a lessor (Continued)

When the Group is an intermediate lessor, it
accounts for its interests in the head lease and
the sublease separately. It assesses the lease
classification of a sublease with reference to the
right-of-use asset arising from the head lease, not
with reference to the underlying asset. If a head
lease is a short-term lease to which the Group
applies the exemption described above, then it
classifies the sublease as an operating lease.

(i) Subsequent measurement

(@)

136

As a lessee

The right-of-use asset is subsequently
depreciated using the straight-line method from
the commencement date to the earlier of the end
of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the
end of the lease term. The estimated useful lives
of right-of-use assets are determined on the
same basis as those of property, plant and
equipment. In addition, the right-of-use asset is
periodically reduced by impairment losses, if any,
and adjusted for certain remeasurements of the
lease liability.

The lease liability is measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method. It is
remeasured when there is a change in future
lease payments arising from a change in an index
or rate, if there is a revision of in-substance fixed
lease payments, or if there is a change in the
Group’s estimate of the amount expected to be
payable under a residual value guarantee, or if the
Group changes its assessment of whether it will
exercise a purchase, extension or termination
option.

When the lease liability is remeasured, a
corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying
amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in
profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-
use asset has been reduced to zero.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(f) Leases (continued)
Current financial year (Continued)

(i)

Subsequent measurement (Continued)

(b) As alessor
The Group recognises lease payments received
under operating leases as income on a straight-
line basis over the lease term as part of “other
income”.

The Group recognises finance income over the
lease term, based on a pattern reflecting a
constant periodic rate of return on the Group’s
net investment in the lease. The Group aims to
allocate finance income over the lease term on a
systematic and rational basis. The Group applies
the lease payments relating to the period against
the gross investment in the lease to reduce both
the principal and the unearned finance income.
The net investment in the lease is subject to
impairment requirements in IFRS 9, Financial
Instruments (see note 3(j)(i)).

Previous financial year
As a lessee

U

Finance lease

Leases in terms of which the Group assumed
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
were classified as finance leases. Upon initial
recognition, the leased asset was measured at an
amount equal to the lower of its fair value and the
present value of the minimum lease payments.
Subsequent to initial recognition, the asset was
accounted for in accordance with the accounting policy
applicable to that asset.

Minimum lease payments made under finance leases
were apportioned between the finance expense and the
reduction of the outstanding liability. The finance
expense was allocated to each period during the lease
term so as to produce a constant periodic rate of
interest on the remaining balance of the liability.
Contingent lease payments were accounted for by
revising the minimum lease payments over the
remaining term of the lease when the lease adjustment
was confirmed.

Leasehold land which in substance was a finance lease
was classified as property, plant and equipment, or as
investment property if held to earn rental income or for
capital appreciation or for both.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

B 7 R & M & (%)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(f)

Leases (Continued)

Previous financial year (Continued)

AS a lessee (Continued)

(i) Operating lease
Leases, where the Group did not assume substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership were classified
as operating leases and, except for property interest
held under operating lease, the leased assets were not
recognised on the statement of financial position.
Property interest held under an operating lease, which
was held to earn rental income or for capital
appreciation or both, was classified as investment
property and measured using fair value model.

Payments made under operating leases were
recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over
the term of the lease. Lease incentives received were
recognised in profit or loss as an integral part of the
total lease expense, over the term of the lease.
Contingent rentals were charged to profit or loss in the
reporting period in which they were incurred.

Leasehold land which in substance was an operating
lease was classified as prepaid lease payments.

(9) Inventories

138

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

The cost of inventories is calculated using the weighted
average and includes expenditure incurred in acquiring the
inventories, production or conversion costs and other costs
incurred in bringing them to their existing location and
condition. In the case of work-in-progress and finished
goods, cost includes an appropriate share of production
overheads based on normal operating capacity.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the
sale.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(h) Contract assets and contract liabilities

(i)

()

HMEEBERLF

A contract asset is recognised when the Group’s right to
consideration is conditional on something other than the
passage of time. A contract asset is subject to impairment in
accordance to IFRS 9, Financial Instruments (see Note 3())(i)).

A contract liability is stated at cost and represents the
obligation of the Group and the Company to transfer goods
or services to a customer for which consideration has been
received (or the amount is due) from the customers.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand, balances
and deposits with banks and highly liquid investments which
have an insignificant risk of changes in fair value with original
maturities of three months or less, and are used by the Group
and the Company in the management of their short term
commitments.

Impairment

() Financial assets
The Group recognises loss allowances for expected
credit losses on financial assets measured at amortised
cost. Expected credit losses are a probability-weighted
estimate of credit losses.

The Group measures loss allowances at an amount
equal to lifetime expected credit loss, except for debt
securities that are determined to have low credit risk at
the reporting date, cash and bank balance and other
debt securities for which credit risk has not increased
significantly since initial recognition, which are measured
at 12-month expected credit loss. Loss allowances for
trade receivables are always measured at an amount
equal to lifetime expected credit loss.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial
asset has increased significantly since initial recognition
and when estimating expected credit loss, the Group
considers reasonable and supportable information that
is relevant and available without undue cost or effort.
This includes both quantitative and qualitative
information and analysis, based on the Group’s
historical experience and informed credit assessment
and including forward-looking information, where
available.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

B 7 R & M & (%)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

()

140

Impairment (Continued)

(i)

Financial assets (Continued)

Lifetime expected credit losses are the expected credit
losses that result from all possible default events over
the expected life of the asset, while 12-month expected
credit losses are the portion of expected credit losses
that result from default events that are possible within
the 12 months after the reporting date. The maximum
period considered when estimating expected credit
losses is the maximum contractual period over which
the Group is exposed to credit risk.

The Group estimates the expected credit losses on
trade receivables using a provision matrix with reference
to historical credit loss experience.

An impairment loss in respect of financial assets
measured at amortised cost is recognised in profit or
loss and the carrying amount of the asset is reduced
through the use of an allowance account.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether
financial assets carried at amortised cost are credit-
impaired. A financial asset is credit impaired when one
or more events that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have
occurred.

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written
off (either partially or full) to the extent that there is no
realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case
when the Group determines that the debtor does not
have assets or sources of income that could generate
sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject to
the write-off. However, financial assets that are written
off could still be subject to enforcement activities in
order to comply with the Group’s procedures for
recovery amounts due.

3. FESHHEXw

0

B (a0

(i)

SREE@m)
PHEHRERELADESR
EZHEGEHRAERZF
EBEENSEHIIZzE
HiERE\E% M2 A8 &
HiERIEL RS Q%
REARNLRZEERLY
EMSIBTEAREREE
2EH o HETESMEREAEL
BEEZHEAHNRBARNE
EEHMZTHEAZE*X/\
VAR o

AEBE2EREEAE
AR BEERE G
BHRWHRZERER
BK o

BBHEKAFEZERE
EZREBEREDST®
R MZBEEZIRAESB
155 ) 485 48 B FTOAK

REBRSBEH  NEEFG
BBHEKAIN R 2 RE
ERCCBRLEEERE -F
ﬂ%ﬂéﬁm%ﬁixﬁ
EREEABITNEZEN—
R ZHRFEMHRLER &
MEEFHEFEERE-

A BERER LA KRE R
B REEMNAEKEEA
A“(ﬁB’\TiééﬁB)ﬁﬂfﬁ %8
ERABESEAKRBEETE
BEHALEEEH MR
BRAUELERHRERERE
EAMHN S REEELE - R
- B EmEEDA
%ﬁﬂ%ﬂﬁﬁ%@%%
2 DETAKEKE SR
R

S&P INTERNATIONAL HOLDING LIMITED =~ ANNUAL REPORT 2019



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

() Impairment continued)

(ii)

HMEEBERLF

Other assets

The carrying amounts of other assets (except for
inventories and deferred tax assets) are reviewed at the
end of each reporting period to determine whether
there is any indication of impairment. If any such
indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount
is estimated. For goodwill, the recoverable amount is
estimated each period at the same time.

For the purpose of impairment testing, assets are
grouped together into the smallest group of assets that
generates cash inflows from continuing use that are
largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets
or cash-generating units. The goodwill acquired in a
business combination, for the purpose of impairment
testing, is allocated to a cash-generating unit or a group
of cash-generating units that are expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination.

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating
unit is the greater of its value in use and its fair value
less costs of disposal. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset or cash-generating
unit.

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount
of an asset or its related cash-generating unit exceeds
its estimated recoverable amount.

Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss.
Impairment losses recognised in respect of cash-
generating units are allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the cash-
generating unit (group of cash-generating units) and
then to reduce the carrying amounts of the other assets
in the cash-generating unit (groups of cash-generating
units) on a pro rata basis.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
A% R M A ()

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

() Impairment continued)

(ii) Other assets (Continued)

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not
reversed. In respect of other assets, impairment losses
recognised in prior periods are assessed at the end of
each reporting period for any indications that the loss
has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss
is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount since the
last impairment loss was recognised. An impairment
loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined, net of depreciation
or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been
recognised. Reversals of impairment losses are credited
to profit or loss in the financial year in which the
reversals are recognised.

(k) Equity instruments

Instruments classified as equity are measured at cost on initial
recognition and are not remeasured subsequently.

(i) Issue expenses
Costs directly attributable to the issue of instruments
classified as equity are recognised as a deduction from
equity.

(ii) Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

() Employee benefits

() Short term employee benefits
Short-term employee benefit obligations in respect of
salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave and other
benefits are measured on an undiscounted basis and
are expensed as the related service is provided.

A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be
paid if the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service
provided by the employee and the obligation can be
estimated reliably.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

()

(m)

BREBERAT

Employee benefits (continued)
(ii) Contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans

The Group’s contributions to statutory pension funds,
which are defined contribution retirement plans, are
charged to profit or loss in the financial year to which
they relate. Contributions are made based on a
percentage of the employees’ basic salaries. Prepaid
contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent
that a cash refund or a reduction in future payments is
available.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of
when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of
those benefits and when it recognises restructuring
costs involving the payment of termination benefits.

(iii)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made.
Where the time value of money is material, provisions are
stated at the present value of the expenditure expected to
settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events
are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

B 7 R & M & (%)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(n) Revenue and other income

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

144

Revenue

Revenue is measured based on the consideration
specified in a contract with a customer in exchange for
transferring goods or services to a customer, excluding
amounts collected on behalf of third parties. The Group
recognises revenue when (or as) it transfers control over
a product or service to customer. An asset is
transferred when (or as) the customer obtains control of
the asset.

The Group transfers control of a good or service at a
point in time unless one of the following overtime criteria
is met:

(@ the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided as the Group
performs;

(b)  the Group’s performance creates or enhances an
asset that the customer controls as the asset is
created or enhanced; or

(c) the Group’s performance does not create an
asset with an alternative use and the Group has
an enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.

Rental income

Rental income from investment property is recognised
in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of
the lease. Lease incentives granted are recognised as
an integral part of the total rental income, over the term
of the lease. Rental income from sub-leased property is
recognised as other income.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method in profit or loss except for
interest income arising from temporary investment of
borrowings taken specifically for the purpose of
obtaining a qualifying asset which is accounted for in
accordance with the accounting policy on borrowing
costs.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(0)

(p)

HMEEBERLF

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are not directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset
are recognised in profit or loss using the effective interest
method.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of
the cost of those assets.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of a
qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the asset
is being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred and
activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for its
intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation of
borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when substantially
all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for
its intended use or sale are interrupted or completed.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

Income tax

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax.
Current tax and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss
except to the extent that it relates to a business combination
or items recognised directly in equity or other comprehensive
income.

Current tax is the expected tax payable or receivable on the
taxable income or loss for the year, using tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period,
and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous
financial years.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

B 7 R & M & (%)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

146

(Continued)

(p) Income tax (continued)
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Deferred tax is recognised using the liability method, providing
for temporary differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities in these consolidated statements of
financial position and their tax bases. Deferred tax is not
recognised for the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a
transaction that is not a business combination and that
affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred
tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be
applied to the temporary differences when they reverse,
based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based
on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the
carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally
enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities and assets,
and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax
authority on the same taxable entity, or on different tax
entities, but they intend to settle current tax assets and
liabilities on a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities will be
realised simultaneously.

A deferred tax asset is recognised to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which the temporary difference can be utilised. Deferred tax
assets are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the
related tax benefit will be realised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(q) Earnings per ordinary share

(r)

(s)

HMEEBERLF

The Group presents basic and diluted earnings per share
data for its ordinary shares (“EPS”).

Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss
attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding
during the year, adjusted for own shares held.

Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or loss
attributable to ordinary shareholders and the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding, adjusted for
own shares held, for the effects of all dilutive potential
ordinary shares, which comprise convertible notes and share
options granted to employees.

Operating segment

An operating segment is a component of the Group that
engages in business activities from which it may earn revenue
and incur expenses, including revenue and expenses that
relate to transactions with any of the Group’s other
components. Operating segments’ results are reviewed
regularly by the chief operating decision maker to make
decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment
and to assess its performance, and for which discrete
financial information is available.

Related parties

(i) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is
related to the Group if that person:
(@ has control or joint control over the Group;

(b)  has significant influence over the Group; or

(c) is amember of the key management personnel of
the Group or the Group’s parent.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
A% R M A ()

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(s) Related parties (continued)

(i) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

(@ The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

(b)  One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

(c) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

(d) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity.

(e) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group.

()  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (i).

(@ A person identified in (i)(a) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).

(h)  The entity, or any member of a group of which it
is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced
by, that person in their dealings with the entity.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(t)

HMEEBERLF

Fair value measurements

Fair value of an asset or a liability, except for lease
transactions, is determined as the price that would be
received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The measurement assumes that the
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place
either in the principal market or in the absence of a principal
market, in the most advantageous market.

For non-financial asset, the fair value measurement takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use.

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the
Group uses observable market data as far as possible. Fair
value are categorised into different levels in a fair value
hierarchy based on the input used in the valuation technique
as follows:

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2.  inputs other than quoted prices included within
Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly or indirectly.

Level 3:  unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The Group recognises transfers between levels of the fair
value hierarchy as of the date of the event or change in
circumstances that caused the transfers.

—Z-hEEH

1% 8 5% Y 5 ()

3. FESHHEw
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
A% R M A ()

4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. &R o ER

The principal activities of the Group are the manufacturing and AREBNTEBEK SR E R D HEERE
distribution of coconut cream powder, low fat desiccated coconut, W EPEEE - M M E AR E M o

coconut milk and other related products.

Revenue represented the sales value of coconut cream powder, WHERMBTEHEEMEYN K
low fat desiccated coconut, coconut milk and other related R - WO LRHEMHBERNEEEE
products to customers net of trade discounts, rebate and returns. (MBS B MEE) -
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
RM RM

EREDSE SARARTH

Revenue from contracts with REFEFAHNKE

customers

— Coconut related products — H-F 4B B & @ 78,729,819

— Others — Hip 1,259,216

79,989,035

The chief operating decision maker of the Group assesses the AR AEENEEBHBEAETERK
performance and allocates the resources of the Group as a whole, FBELE T S AR - (K PE A - P
as all of the Group’s activities are considered to be primarily MEHMEBER NEEBFELE
dependent on the manufacturing and distribution of coconut cream REEITIGAREFNEREXRELER
powder, low fat desiccated coconut, coconut milk and other related S A I 0 R B R B S R &
products. Therefore, management considers there is only one 8 AL NERTE BEBRAARE
operating segment under the requirements of IFRS 8, Operating BE—RARESEMo-gtikm=s - HES
Segments. In this regard, no segment information is presented. 5| E8E R} o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
15 3R R B A ()

4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. W% KR 9 38 E @)

(Continued)

Geographical information b 35 & B

The following table sets out information on the geographical T R &Y 32 w18, o 6 AN & E 3R 8 S B
locations of the Group’s revenue from external customers. The BREWHER - EE AL S M T
geographical location of customers is based on the location at BEWEEMmE

which the goods are delivered.

2019 2018
—2-7F =2 )\F
RM RM

SREDSE SARAZRTH

West Indies AHOERS 17,687,124 24,310,019
South East Asia HEgas 15,841,160 17,930,899
Middle East R 17,213,660 16,995,650
North America it 4,763,894 5,208,574
East Asia ) 3,627,724 3,193,807

Other regions H fihih & 9,194,167 12,350,086

68,327,729 79,989,035

The following table sets out information on the geographical TR E 5O ANEEIERE
locations of the Group’s non-current assets. BEWER -
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
RM RM

BREZSE FRAZSH

Malaysia 552k F s 97,078,806 49,813,814
Singapore Hhnig 22,239 25,492

97,101,045 49,839,306
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

RS 8 2% Y 5 ()

4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 4,

(Continued)

Major customer

Company A is the only major customer with revenue equal or more

than 10% (2018: 10%) of the Group’s total revenue:

Wz ko IBER @

FEEF

NAABE——BWFSERHBBAR
EBEAWZEI0%(ZFE— )\F : 10%)

MEZERF:
2019 2018
—®¥-nE =T-NF
RM RM
BREZSE BRAZSE
Company A (including all common control 23 ] A (‘8 45 2 &B £ [7] 1% 4
companies) AA]) 20,582,069 28,897,334

Nature of goods

The following information reflects the typical transactions of the

BmiEE
MTERRBRARE Y ABZS

Group:
Timing of recognition Obligations
Nature of goods or or method used to Significant Variable element for returns or
services recognise revenue payment terms in consideration refunds
BED
BmARBME Uk 25 78 52 0 B R =K 7 O BEEXHRE TERERD BRER
Coconut related products ~ Revenue is recognised at point ~ Credit period of 7 to  Sales incentive are given Not applicable
in time when the customer 120 days from to customers when
obtains control of goods invoice date specific criteria are
met
BFHEEER WanEPESHREGE FEDHARERN RETEEREEXRE TER
) B ] B e 2R BE7E120H EESSEENEC=$3)
Others — Freight and Revenue for freight and Credit period of 7 to  Not applicable Not applicable
shipping charges shipping charges is 120 days from
recognised over time invoice date
Hit —EERERE EEREBENNZERE FEHERZEAH TEA ¥l
R EE 721208
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

B 7% R & M & )
5. OTHER INCOME 5. Hlr A
2019 2018
—B-hF —E-N\F
RM RM
BRAZSE HSRARSH
Rental income e WA 204,000 204,000
Others HAth 666,524 286,483
870,524 490,483
6. FINANCE INCOME 6. BBUKWA
2019 2018
—E-NF —EB-N\F
RM RM
BRAGZSE BRAESH
Interest income of financial assets RABRMNEEFTELIR
calculated using the effective interest B A ENSmEE
method at amortised cost B A 579,444 832,224
7. FINANCE COSTS 7. MBRAE
2019 2018
—E-h#F —E-N\F
RM RM
ERXRATESE SRARSH
Interest expense of financial liabilities that I 3EIE A H BEFT AEZRH
are not at fair value through profit or loss @ gt & E & F 25 = 935,609 274,621
Interest expense on lease liabilities HEBBENNERX 22,666 -
958,275 274,621
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

RS 8 2% Y 5 ()

8.

154

INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE

(@)

Income tax (credit)/expense in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income represents:

8. Fi8Bi(E%) FxX

(@)

REBRakEMEEEERAM
BRER) FXRE :

Current tax — Malaysian Income Tax

BB — SARA A

BH
Current year KEE
Under provision in respect of prior years — BF FEBE T L
Deferred tax ELESE
Origination and reversal of temporary EANEOERE%
differences
Over provision in respect of prior years BAEFERBESG

The Group is not subject to any income tax in the Cayman
Islands and the British Virgin Islands.

Hong Kong Profits Tax rate was 8.25% on estimated
assessable profits up to HK$2 million and 16.5% on any part
of the estimated assessable profits over HK$2 million for the
years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018, respectively. The
Group is not subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax as it had no
assessable income arising in and derived from Hong Kong for
the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018.

Malaysian Income Tax has been provided at the statutory tax
rate of 24% (2018: 24%) on the estimated chargeable income
arising in Malaysia for the year ended 31 December 2019.

2019 2018
—E-NF —EB-N\F
RM RM
BRAZSE [SRAZRSH
177,828 3,168,831
26,579 165,896
204,407 3,334,727
(162,904) (525,232)
(387,093) (200,215)
(549,997) (725,447)
(345,590) 2,609,280

AEBBEBMRSEE REE
BREZEESEMMFR -

HE_Z-—NFER_ZE—N\F+
—A=+—BIEFE 2BEH
TLA ARG ERTUE N BB
TSR A825%  MiBiB2H
BA TG RS R & F M
B AE165% HE-_T—h
FRZE-NF+=ZA=+—H
IEFE BARTEREREES
BEEMERBTIWA - AR EE
BEBHNESFEH -

BHE-_ZT—NLEF+=A=1+—
HIEFE EEKRATELENDG
R AIR24% (= F — )\
F 1 24%) AT EFTEF K
PR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

8. INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE (continued) 8.

(b)  Reconciliation between income tax (credit)/expense and
accounting (loss)/profit at an applicable tax rate:

1% 8 5% Y 5 ()

Fres &) BXwm

b RERABREIAENMEH(E
%)/ A et (EBR), 22
e O 4 B

2019 2018
—EB-hF —E-N\F
RM RM

BRAEZSTE [FRAZSH

(Loss)/Profit before tax BR i AT (B 18), i F (2,209,758) 8,904,163
Income tax calculated using Malaysian RASRAEEAT

statutory tax rate of 24% (2018: 24%) THE24% (ZF— )\ F :
24%)FFE R T (530,342) 2,136,999

Effect of a reduction in tax rate by stages Rt 4 32 A 124 U U A 322 B BR
on incremental chargeable income* VR = 0h -2 - (24,418)
Effect of non-deductible expenses LEMN b0 545,266 531,018
Over provision in respect of prior years BEFEBBEREME (360,514) (34,319)
(345,590) 2,609,280

According to Malaysian Budget 2018, there is a reduction of tax rate by
stages based on the percentage of increase in chargeable income as
compared to the immediate preceding year of assessment as follows
(provided that the resident company is incorporated under Companies

Act 2016):

. One percentage point for increase in chargeable income
between 5% to 9.99%;

. Two percentage point for increase in chargeable income

between 10% to 14.99%;

. Three percentage point for increase in chargeable income
between 15% to 19.99%; and

o Four percentage point for increase in chargeable income of 20%
and above.

LEBMERRET —ZE—NFER

* RE-F-NFEREZEES
BORBRE-FHEFENORRD
WAERBA DL REBRR DX
MT(ARERERAARE - —
NERAREEMAKL) :

. A O A 8 09T F5% B
9.99% KR > — BB 2%

. A B A Y F10% =
14.99% R 2 M BB 2 &

. A B A I F15% B
19.99% K g > = B & £ B
®

. A B A 3 1120% K& A
BRI E S 5 2 o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
15 R R B A ()

o.

156

(LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

9. FR(ER) EF

2019
—E-hF
Note RM
Wi BREZESLEH
(Loss)/Profit for the year is arrived S} (E518) B SIR
at after charging/(crediting): (7t A) T 5EHE :
Auditors’ remunerations: ZEE B &
— Audit fees —B%ZER
KPMG KPMG 399,000
Other auditors H b iz EhED 17,689
— Non-audit fees —FEZER
Local affiliate of KPMG KPMG & i 5 A A
Material expenses/(income) EPNEIAU PN
Bad debts written off 12 BR H 85
Depreciation of property, plant and M- -BMENEEBITE
equipment 13 2,534,910
Deposit paid for a land acquisition B AT o b U5 B 4R 8
written off
Impairment loss on goodwill R EREE 16
Net loss/(gain) on foreign exchange SNIE ZEEE 1A, (U as)
differences b=
— Realised —B25 347,783
— Unrealised —RER (309,866)
Personnel expenses (including Directors’ A E & (BIEEEH0):
emoluments):
— Wages, salaries and other benefits ~ — L& « #4 M H M
& ¥ 12,485,733
— Contributions to Employees’ —EERESMHEK
Provident Fund 944,485
Plant and equipment written off ik 55 T 5% 1 i 5H 5,380
Expenses/(income) arising from HEELEMNEZ (BA)
leases
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FEREEEITE 14 571,605
Expenses relating to short-term leases 48 H370 & #8795 =2 255,777
Income from subleasing of right-of-use 78 {F FAE & E kA
assets 5 (204,000)

Rental expense in accordance to IAS 17

RIZBEIR &5t ERIE175R
ERANEEFX

2018
—E—N\F
RM
BRAGRSE

399,000
8,032

50,000

12,505
2,172,761
196,020

515,613

(231,992)
2,122,922

11,670,737

862,499
19,476

(204,000)

441,397
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

10. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

Mr. Tang Koon Fook and Mr. Lee Sieng Poon were appointed as
Directors of the Company on 10 November 2016 (date of
incorporation) and were re-designated as Executive Directors on 22
March 2017. Mr. Yap Boon Teong and Ms. Wong Yuen Lee were
appointed as Executive Directors of the Company on 22 March
2017. Mr. Fung Che Wai Anthony, Mr. Chong Yew Hoong and Mr.
Ng Hock Boon were appointed as independent Non-executive
Directors of the Company on 8 June 2017.

Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation

1% 8 5% Y 5 ()

10. = = Hr

Tang Koon Fook 5t 4 K Lee Sieng Poon
EERZZT—R"EF+—ATHGMH
KB EZEAEARRESTR
TE—+F=ZA-F+-_HAFTAR
1T E 5 ° Yap Boon Teong 5t 4 & Wong
Yuenlee X+ R —_ZE—+F=H -+
—REZERARRRMITEE - BE
f& % 4 » Chong Yew Hoong %t £ & Ng
Hock Boont A — & —+F X AN
BEZEAARAIBLIFNTES -

RIBCE B 2 ARG 5 383(1) ff R(A
AI(RBESNDER) RODF28BH
BONEEFMOT

are as follows:

Year ended 31 December 2019
BE-E-hF+-A=+t—HLEE

Salaries, Contributions

allowances to Employees’

Directors’ and benefits  Discretionary Provident
fees in kind bonuses Fund Total

e EER (-]
Exwme BRI & BMEEA DAEESHF st
RM RM RM RM RM

BRAEDSE BRAEDSE BREDZSE BREZSE BRAEZSH

Chairman and Executive *E##TESE
Director

Tang Koon Fook Tang Koon Fook 406,349 608,749 72,954 1,088,052

Executive Directors HTEE

Lee Sieng Poon Lee Sieng Poon 266,666 483,709 57,951 808,326
Yap Boon Teong Yap Boon Teong 71,958 273,229 32,688 377,875
Wong Yuen Lee Wong Yuen Lee 82,540 205,229 24,528 312,297
Independent Non- BIYKHTES
executive Directors

Fung Che Wai Anthony &5 (& 63,492 63,492
Chong Yew Hoong Chong Yew Hoong 63,492 63,492
Ng Hock Boon Ng Hock Boon 63,492 63,492

1,017,989 1,570,916 2,777,026
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
A% R M A ()

10. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued) 10. EEH M w0

Year ended 31 December 2018
HE-_ZT-N\E+_A=+—HILtEE

Salaries, Contributions

allowances to Employees’

Directors’ and benefits Discretionary Provident
fees in kind bonuses Fund Total

e RAMK ==
ik Rk BB TEAT DB MHR st
RM RM RM RM RM

FRATCE BHRAXSE HSRERSE FRAZSE SRARSHE

Chairman and Executive XERHTEE
Director
Tang Koon Fook Tang Koon Fook 49,426 770,225 - 92,328 911,979

Executive Directors HITEE

Lee Sieng Poon Lee Sieng Poon 49,426 575,705 — 68,986 694,117
Yap Boon Teong Yap Boon Teong 49,426 269,399 — 32,230 351,055
Wong Yuen Lee Wong Yuen Lee 49,426 184,229 - 22,008 255,663
Independent Non- BUkHTES
executive Directors
Fung Che Wai Anthony ~ JE 512 61,783 - - - 61,783
Chong Yew Hoong Chong Yew Hoong 61,783 — — — 61,783
Ng Hock Boon Ng Hock Boon 61,783 - - - 61,783
383,053 1,799,558 — 215,552 2,398,163
During the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018, no HE2_ZE— W Frk-_E—N\F+=A
emoluments have been paid to the Directors as inducement upon =t+t—HLEFE AEBTERES
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office. No Y AHER B - BB EH DA K E B B
Directors waived or had agreed to waive any emoluments. MBS IEABEBmE BEEE N

RACREBEREETMFHH -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
15 3R R B A ()

11. INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST
EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, three (2018:
three) are Directors whose emoluments are as disclosed in Note
10. The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the other two
(2018: two) individuals are as follows:

M. BEESHFMAL

ERE&aHFMALH =2(ZF—
NEZZ)AIREE RENFH M
WERKZE10 ZOME(ZE—-N
FMBA)ATHFMERNT

2019
—E-hE
RM
ERETSE

Salaries and other benefits e kHEMEF
Discretionary bonuses [SE=ReEAN
Contributions to Employees’ Provident EEAESHR

Fund

604,537

72,372

676,909

The emoluments of the above individuals with the highest
emoluments are within the following band:

2018
—F-N\F
RM
BRAZSLT

496,154

59,376

555,530

FRESFMALTOFHERNIATE

:
2019
—E-NF
Number of
individuals
A

Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 (equivalent to
RM529,000)

Z % 1,000,000 7T (#H & H
529,000 5 kAT S

During the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018, no

emoluments have been paid to these highest paid individuals as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation
for loss of office.

LEBMERRET —ZE—NFER

2018
—E-N\F
Number of
individuals

AR

HE_Z—NFk=FT—N\F+=A
=t+—HLEFE AKETERARES
FMA L HEMER EAENA
PiNE=SE 1 ) 1N NS 2= 32 I

AR -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

I E BT )
12. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER ORDINARY 12. BREER(BR) &F
SHARE
The calculation of basic (loss)/earnings per ordinary share was AR EBAREA(EEE) BF TR &
based on the loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of = 3F PR AR B FE (L B 381,844,444 5 R 7Y
RM1,844,444 (2018: profit attributable to ordinary shareholders of SE(-T—N\F: T@EBAEEE
RM6,295,729) and the weighted average number of ordinary s F6,205,720F KA r & & ) R B &
shares outstanding of 1,080,000,000 (2018: 1,080,000,000) 77 % 8 B% 0 #E Y- 15 #01,080,000,000 %
ordinary shares. —Z — J\# :1,080,000,000f% ) & &
BRETE o
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
Sen Sen
il il
Basic (loss)/earnings per ordinary share B E AR EA (EBR), AT 0.58
The diluted (loss)/earnings per ordinary share is similar to the basic A A 7N £2 B NF 48 {a] BV fE S8 e
(loss)/earnings per ordinary share as the Group does not have any MERTET AR WERTEKE S
potential dilutive ordinary shares in issuance. (B8R) BNESREEBRERNE

18),/ BB -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
15 3R R B A ()

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

13. % RBERSKHE

Leasehold
land with
unexpired
lease period Factory Furniture,
Freehold  of more than buildings and Plant and Motor  fittingsand  Construction
land 50 years other buildings ~ machinery vehicles  equipment in progress Total
Bzl
BHSEH IHEFR BE-
ARERLH HELH HitEF BERES RE  RERRE ERIR st
RM RM RM RM RM RM RM RM
BRAELE SRARSE SREECE SRAZSE SRADCE SRAZSE BRARSE ARARSH
Cost RA
At 1 January 2018 RZZ-\§-A-H 3,797,046 415170 19,078690 21,629,522 677,720 2,284,712 317424 48,200,284
Additions "E - - 902,010 1,200,073 - 467,984 24714943 27,285,010
Written-offs i 38 - - - (91,458) - (56,166) - (147,624)
At 31 December 2018, as previously 7= F—\E
reported TZRAZT-HB AHEH 3797046 415,170 19,980,700 22,738,137 677,720 2696530 25032367 75,337,670
Adjustment on initial application of 4% & B EI PR Bf 5 SR 5 £ 8
IFRS 16 FI6FELNAE - (415,170) (9,938,478 - - - - (10,353,648
At 1 January 2019, as restated WZZ-NE-F-A"
w55 3,797,046 - 10,042,222 22,738,137 677,720 2696530 25032367 64,984,022
Additions "E 5,200,782 - 237,535 834,690 - 673,738 42,672,931 49,619,676
Disposals HE - - - (57,879) - - - (57,879
Written-offs g - - - - - (61) (5,380) (5,441)
Reclassifications BHAE - - 15,528,908 1,800 - 801,725 (16,332,433 -

At 31 December 2019 R-E-NE+-A=t-H 8,997,828 25,808,665 23,516,748 677,720 4,171,932 51,367,485 114,540,378
Accumulated depreciation RiHE
At 1 January 2018 RZE-N§-f—-A - 160,528 6,585,295 14,181,691 632,494 1,898,743 - 23,453,751
Charge for the year FRHE - 8,303 601,825 1,360,150 18,144 184,339 - 2,172,761
Written-offs Hsk - - - (77,709) - (50,439) - (128,148)
At 31 December 2018, as previously H=Z—\F

reported +ZA=+-RA %HEH - 168,831 7,187,120 15,464,132 650,638 2,027,643 - 25,498,364
Adjustment on initial application of 2 76 FR B I Bt T SR 5 E B

IFRS 16 FI6FELHHE - (168,831)  (4,184218) - - - - (4353049
At1 January 2019, as restated RZE-nE-A-8"

HEF - - 3,002,902 15,464,132 650,638 2,027,643 - 21,145,315

Charge for the year FRME - - 591,624 1,486,269 18,144 438,873 - 2,534,910
Disposals HE - - - (57,879) - - - (57,879)
Written-offs i 38 - - - - - (61) - (61)
At 31 December 2019 RZE-hE+-F=1+-H - - 3504506 16,892,522 668,782 2,466,455 - 23622285
Carrying amounts RHE
At 31 December 2018 RZE-\E+ZA=1t-H 3,797,046 246,339 12,793,580 7,274,005 27,082 668,887 25,032,367 49,839,306

At 31 December 2019

RZZ-AF+-A=1-H

MEEEBRAF

—E-hEEH

8,997,828

22,214,139

6,624,226

1,705,477

90,918,093
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Bt % R 3R B = ()
13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. % BERRHEm
(Continued)
Security K 7 @
As of the end of the reporting period, the carrying amounts of RNIFEIHR AEFHERORITR
assets pledged to licensed banks for banking facilities granted to B(E2E W E23) MK T iF 28R 1T
the Group (see Note 23) are as follows: MEERBMEBENT :
2019 2018
—E-hEF S AN-S
RM RM
BRAGZSE BRAGESH
Leasehold land HE L - 246,339
Freehold land KAFERE T M 1,227,196 97,046
Factory buildings and other buildings ITHREFRAEMET 21,374,138 8,026,943
Plant and machinery within construction in  #£ & T 2 (N & = K # 25
progress 48,126,469 —

70,727,803 8,370,328
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

14. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

1% 8 5% Y 5 ()

14. FHAEEE

Land Buildings Others Total
it BF H At et
RM RM RM RM
Group rEE BRARSE BXERSE BRXAELSET BRAESH
At 1 January 2019 RZE—hF—A—H 456,836 5,848,362 87,695 6,392,893
Additions NE — 237,060 90,949 328,009
Depreciation e (63,215) (424,250) (84,140) (571,605)
At 31 December 2019 N-—E—hE
+ZR=+—H 393,621 5,661,172 94,504 6,149,297
The Group leases a number of warehouses and land that run rEEHEZREE K iﬂﬂ B Hm
between 2 years and 3 years, with an option to renew the lease Fr=—4F BRHEAEEER-
after that date.
(a) Extension options (a) EHIZEER
Some leases of buildings contain extension options ETEFZ2HEABEREB A E
exercisable by the Group up to one year before the end of ETHEENHBERAT—
the non-cancellable contract period. Where practicable, the FITHEHEERE - £ 1THIE
Group seeks to include extension options in new leases to AT REENKRNFHEEFR B
provide operational flexibility. The extension options held are FRIC R R - A INEE &)
exercisable only by the Group and not by the lessors. The o i B R B RE(E 0] A
Group assesses at lease commencement whether it is SEMmMIELBEATE - REER
reasonably certain to exercise the extension options. The HERBEEIGRGAERTS®
Group reassesses whether it is reasonably certain to exercise 17158 7 HE & 12 4 o w328 ) &0 & Pq
the options if there is a significant event or significant change BHEBAEHNBERBELEEKRE
in circumstances within its control. bt AIAEBEEHTEETA
BRETEEHEEE-
(b) Ownership interests in leasehold land and b) REEERANEE it

buildings held for own use

The Group holds several industrial buildings for its business,
where its manufacturing facilities are primarily located. The
Group is the registered owner of these property interests,
including the whole or part of undivided share in the
underlying land. Lump sum payments were made upfront to
acquire these property interests from their previous registered
owners, and there are no ongoing payments to be made
under the terms of the land lease, other than payments based
on rateable values set by the relevant government authorities.
These payments vary from time to time and are payable to
the relevant government authorities.

REFHNREREER

AEEREXBRHAETLES
FOAERBEBZMRUER - A
SENVZEME a2 EMER
A BREEHELMz2EHXBS

ADEDE - AKEERAE
ﬁ*xﬁﬁmuﬁﬁm%%%ﬁ
ANBBZEMEEr BRIRER
AT EERY < EREMAE
T 2 340 I IR AR £ 1
HMEZGERELBENK - ZF
NRTBHELERE RENTE
FAR T H 4R o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Bt % R 3R B = ()
14. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued) 14. FAEEE @
(c) Property subjects to operating leases c) BREHEE Y=

The Group subleases a portion of its right-of-use assets for a REEBRE-—MHEEHOEHE
building under an operating lease. The lease typically runs for FEHOFEREEE - 24—
an initial period of three years, with an option to renew the RE=F nEEEHE—F-H
lease for one year. Lease payments are agreed at a fixed LEWEAST HEENRIE - %A
monthly amount. The lease does not include any residual KW B IEEM R EER -

value guarantee.

The operating lease payment to be received is as follows: HTRERNEERENTAT
2019 2018

—B-hF —E-NF

RM RM

BREZSE FRAZSH

Within 1 year 1FE R 170,000
(d) Security (d) E#H @
As of the end of the reporting period, the carrying amounts of REHR AEBREFEY
a building pledged to a licensed bank for banking facilities RITEE(F2BEWE23) MK
granted to the Group (see Note 23) is RM1,981,000 (2018: WMIEFERBTOEFEDES
RM2,065,000). 1,981,000 REGFTSCH(ZF —

J\EE : 2,065,000 Ko< E) °
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Details of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2019 are as follows:

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

15. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

1% 8 5% Y 5 ()

15. RNB AT HNIRE

R-F—NE+-A=+—BHBEA
TMBEEDT -

Place and
date of incorporation/ Issued and fully paid
Name of entity establishment share capital
ERER MRS B B R A EROTRAERAE
Directly held
EERE
SP Coco Limited* The British Virgin Islands United States Dollar
11 November 2016 (‘usDb”) 1
EERUEHS 1Ex(Ex))
—2-RE+-At-H
Indirectly held
MRS
S&P (Hong Kong) Holding Limited* Hong Kong HK$1
25 November 2017
0 18T
—T—+E+—-A=+EH
Edaran Bermutu Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia RM100
(“Edaran”) 29 November 2001
BRAD 100
—EZ-f+-A=TANR BRALELE
Radiant Span Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia RM100
(“Radiant”) 11 July 1998
FRAED 100
—AWN\ELA+—H BRAETLH
S & P Industries Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia RM5,000,000
20 December 2004
BRAED 5,000,000
—ZEMET-A=TH BRAETLH
Rasa Mulia Sdn. Bhd. (“Rasa Malaysia RM50,000
Mulia”) 20 October 1999
BRAD 50,000
—AAAFE+AZTHE BRALESE
Shifu Ingredients Sdn. Bhd.(“Shifu”) Malaysia RM100,000
4 July 1996
BRAED 100,000
—AARELARA BRAETSH
Stancodex Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia RM2,400,004
4 March 1998
BHRADR 2,400,004
—“AWN\EZAREA BRATLE
MEEBERLE —ZB-NFFR

Proportion of
ownership interest
P Ll
2019 2018
—E-nE ZT-N\&F

Principal activities

TEEH

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

Investment holding

RERR

Investment holding

R

Investment holding

REZR

Investment holding

RAZR

Manufacturing and distribution of coconut
cream powder, low fat desiccated coconut,
coconut milk and related products

BERHEMER ERTE - B RIE
HEM

Trading of coconut cream powder, low fat
desiccated coconut, coconut milk, ketupat,
kerisik and related products

BEMEH  EREMBE B ketupat »
kerisik & A8 B E f

Manufacturing of ketupat and kerisik

£ 4 ketupat I kerisik

Trading of coconut cream powder, low fat
desiccated coconut and related products

BERSY EESELARER
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
15 R R B A ()

15. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)  15. A Ki B A T MR E @)

Place and
date of incorporation/ Issued and fully paid Proportion of
Name of entity establishment share capital ownership interest Principal activities
ERER MRS E R A EROTRAERAE P fE Ll TEEH
2019 2018
—E-hE ZT-N\F
Meridian Ace Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia RM100,000 100%  Inactive
13 November 1996
BRAT 100,000 LEXY
—ANWAE+—A+Z=H BRATLE
S&P Foods Pte. Ltd.* Singapore Singapore Dollars 100%  Inactive
16 November 2015 (“SGD”) 50,000
% 50,0005 M3 7T LEET
—Z-af+-fF+XA (Mg Tl)
M. Ace (Thailand) Co., Ltd.* Thailand Thailand Baht 90.57% 90.57%  Inactive
(‘M. Ace”) 28 June 2011 (“THB”) 2,500,000
S 2,500,000 # 90.57% 9057% EEXE
—E-—FXAZTNH (E33)
* Companies not audited by KPMG. * RIEKPMGEIZ B A A ©
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15. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(@) Non-controlling interest in a subsidiary

A subsidiary that has material non-controlling interest (“NCI”)
are as follows:

(@

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

1% 8 5% Y 5 ()

15. RMTB A AR E @

TR B 2 B BY FE 42 IR M 2

—HENREAREAATERIEE
Prergas ([JEERER D) -

NCI percentage of ownership interest and

. Ace (Thailand) Co., Ltd.

voting interest

Carrying amount of NCI

M. Ace (Thailand) Co., Ltd.

FEBRESEHBRER
REENBE DL
IR ERREE

LLoss attributable to NCI

R EmELER

Summarised financial information EERA T E M
before intra-group elimination MHEERBE

As at 31 December R+=-—BA=+—H

Current assets MENEE

Current liabilities mE A G

Net liabilities BEFH

Year ended 31 December

BE+=A=+-8

LtFE
Revenue &
Loss for the year FAEE
Total comprehensive expense 2HERL 858
Cash flows used in operating activities RETHRARSRE

Cash flows from investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities

RERYMBRERE
MERHBABRERE

=

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash

equivalents

ReMRSFED
OBt ), /38 hn % 88

MEEEBRAF

—E-hEEH

2019
—E-hEF
RM
BREZSHE

9.43%
(3,815)

(19,724)

85,945
(782,911)

(696,966)

(209,160)
(263,196)

(209,160)

(209,160)

2018

—E-N\F

RM

SRAELHE

9.43%
91,832

(846)

232,216
(665,980)

(433,770)

(48,681)
(50,620)

(91,928)
2,542
175,139

85,753
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

I E BT )
16. GOODWILL 16. B &
Note RM
et BRARSE
Cost 2
At 1 January 2018 RZZE—NF—A—H -
Acquisition through business combination %5 i ¥ 7% & U B8 33 515,513
At 31 December 2018, 1 January 2019 A—E—-NE+_HA=+—8 "
and 31 December 2019 —ET-NF—H—B8kK
—E-hF+=ZA=+—H 515,513
Accumulated impairment loss Rt BEEIE
At 1 January 2018 RZZE-NF—H—H —
Impairment loss for the year FARERIE (515,513)
At 31 December 2018, 1 January 2019 RZZE—NF+=-—A=+—H"
and 31 December 2019 —E-NAF-A-BR
—E-hFF+ZA=+—H (515,513)

168

Carrying amount
At 31 December 2018 and
31 December 2019

BREE
RZE—NF+ZA=+—HK
—E-hF+-_A=+—H

In 2018, an impairment loss on goodwill of RM515,513 was
recognised in profit or loss due to the shortfall of recoverable
amount and the carrying value of the subsidiary acquired.

—+=

5 °

R-ZT—N\F - AREENE QA
MAKEERELREERESNE KRB
R ERERES15513FRKAES
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

B85 R M & ()
17. INVENTORIES 17. 78
2019 2018
—B-hF —E-N\F
RM RM

BREZSE FRAZSH

Packaging and raw materials B8 N R R 6,528,830 5,357,262
Semi-finished goods * Bk S 15,104,539 18,231,429
Finished goods BIRK T 1,851,871 1,741,729

23,485,240 25,330,420

The amount of inventories recognised as MR AR XN FEFRIENT :
an expense is as follows:
Carrying amount of inventories sold BEETFENEREE 52,152,935 54,164,489

18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 18. EZ R EMEWRE
2019 2018
—B-nE —ZT-N\F
Note RM RM

K SBREZSE SRAGRSH

Trade receivables H 5 IR 18(a) 11,945,659 14,243,657
Deposits, prepayments and other Be FENFKEBERAM

receivables JFE W 5k 18 1,725,189 5,991,689

13,670,848 20,235,346

All trade and other receivables are expected to be recovered or FrBE 5 & Eith fE I8 78 B i X —
recognised as expense within one year. FAKESERBFAE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
15 R R B A ()

18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued) 18. B 5 & H fth F& Ut 2 18 ()

(@ EZEWRIER

BERSHR ENERAHHN
B 5 RYGKARRR DT

(@) Trade receivables

As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of
trade receivables based on the invoice date is as follows:

2019 2018

—ZE—-hEF —E-N\EFE

RM RM

BRAGRSE FRAGRSHE

Within 1 month 118 AN 4,508,410 6,361,134
1 to 2 months 12218 A 4,327,892 3,979,570
2 to 3 months 2%& 318 A 2,719,850 2,045,243
Over 3 months 31 A+ 389,507 1,857,710
11,945,659 14,243,657

The following table provides information about the exposure
to credit risk and expected credit losses (“‘ECLs”) for trade
receivables as at 31 December 2019 which are grouped
together as they are expected to have similar risk nature.

TREJBEAR_Z-NF+=
A=+—-RES5RBRKRKEBE(ER
HEAGBEORREEMESE—
B)EBNEERRREHRER
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Gross
carrying Loss Net
amount allowances balance
BERTEE EBEEE HEeREE
RM RM RM
BERAESE BRAZSE BREAZSEH
2019 —E-NF
Group rE
Current (not past due) B (R#EE) 7,053,294 7,053,294
1-30 days past due BHEI1Z=30H 4,074,729 4,074,729
31-60 days past due B HI31 =60 H 575,343 575,343
61-90 days past due B HI61 £ 90 H 36,446 36,446
More than 90 days 90H M £ 205,847 205,847
11,945,659 11,945,659
Credit impaired FERE
More than 90 days past due #HIO0H M £
Individually impaired EREIDERE
Trade receivables B 5 W EIE 11,945,659 11,945,659




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

(@) Trade receivables (Continued)

1% 8 5% Y 5 ()

1. EZ REMEWRRE @
(@ EZEWREm@m

Gross carrying Net
amount Loss allowances balance
HARRTE B BB EE EERIFER
RM RM RM

BRALTSE [BROADSTEHE FSAAESH

2018 —E_N\fF
Group rE
Current (not past due) TmE(RBEE) 10,271,863 — 10,271,863
1-30 days past due #HI1Z230H 3,221,402 — 3,221,402
31-60 days past due ®HIZ1£60H 213,704 — 213,704
61-90 days past due #HI61 290 H 536,688 — 536,688
14,243,657 — 14,243,657
Credit impaired FERE
More than 90 days past due #HIO0 H M £ - - -
Individually impaired 18 Bk & - - -
Trade receivables B S5 EW R IE 14,243,657 — 14,243,657

19. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL ASSET

19. TEESREE

2019
ZE-hEF
Nominal value Assets Liabilities
HE BE =R
RM RM RM

FRAEGTSE BRAZSE HFRAZSE

Group KE

Derivatives at fair value through % A 72 BB A
profit or loss BaMiTETA
— Forward exchange contract ~ — & Hi S\ fE & 49

Forward exchange contract is used to manage the foreign currency
exposures arising from the Group’s receivables denominated in
currencies other than the functional currencies of Group’s entities.
The forward exchange contract has maturity of less than one year
after the end of the reporting period.

LEBMERRET —ZE—NFER

4,156,700

EMIERORARERAEENLE
BERBNEEEUIINEEHENEK
RBEEENIINERR - EHIMNEEH
RBEHRE—FRRH -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

B 7% 8 3% B 5 )
20. PLEDGED TIME DEPOSITS 20. BB EHEFER
2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-)N\F
RM RM

BREZSE FRAZSH

Time deposits pledged with a licensed 18 F 5 2B 1T7H E TR

bank 5,000,000 —
The current time deposits are pledged to a bank to secure a loan of BRINEHERERF —MIET
a subsidiary for a tenure of 5 years with effective interest rates LEAE—HNBAREREFNENT
range from 3.30% to 3.65% per annum. The maturities of these 3.30% £3.65% % Bl A F M E FK A #&
time deposits are 6 months and/or 12 months. ReZEFEHMERNEEA R6MEA

RS2 AT o

21. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS N.BERREZEY
2019 2018
ZEB-hEF —ZE-N\F
RM RM

BRAZSE [SRAZRSH

Cash on hand FEHES 28,113 131,662
Bank balances in licensed banks REFRBRIBITHRITHE R 25,578,304 45,957,591
Cash and cash equivalents in the RiFEHReRERNRE R

consolidated statement of cash flows REEED 25,606,417 46,089,253
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LEEARAF

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

22. SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES

(@) Movement in components of equity

The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances
of each component of the Group’s consolidated equity is set
out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.
Details of the changes in the Company’s individual
components of equity at the end of the year are set out

1% 8 5% Y 5 ()

22 AR % fE

() EZEHEBEE5

AEEFNRFERETHEBNES
RAENHESRIINGAREES
R ARBBIUEDARRFER
VEBFIRHINNT

below:
Share Other Translation (Accumulated
Share premium reserves reserve losses)/
capital (Note (Note (Note Retained
(Note 22(b)) 22(c)(i)) 22(c)(ii)) 22(c)(iii)) earnings Total
R A& R 135 B Hitw e RERE (RAER)/
(Hit22m)  (HizE22(c)i) (HiE22(c)i)  (HfE22(c)fiii) REEF @zt
RM RM RM RM RM RM
EXAESE BRADSE FREZSE BREZSE BXRALSE BRAILSHE
At 1 January 2018 R-ZB-N\E-A-H 5,941,706 58,707,916 49,144,626 (2,746,220)  (15,658,648) 95,389,380
Loss for the year FRBE - - - - (451,582) (451,582)
Other comprehensive FREMAZERA
income for the year — — - 899,303 - 899,303
Profit and total FRRMEEEKE
comprehensive income  #8%8
for the year - - - 899,303 (451,582) 447,721
At 31 December 2018/ R=-F-N\&
1 January 2019 tZA=+-R/
—E-h%¥-A-H 5,941,706 58,707,916 49,144,626 (1,846,917) (16,110,230) 95,837,101
Profit for the year FEREF - - - - 17981312 17981312
Other comprehensive FREMZARY
expense for the year — — — (343,374) — (343,374)
Profit and total ERENR2E R
comprehensive income HnE
for the year — — — (343,374 17,981,312 17,637,938

At 31 December 2019

RZB-hE
+=A=+-8

—E-NEER

5,941,706

58,707,916

49,144,626

(2,190,291)

1,871,082 113,475,039
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

RS 8 2% Y 5 ()

22. SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued) 22, % A X 3% 8 (@)

(b) Share capital (b) A&7
The Company was incorporated on 10 November 2016 as an AKRNBIR—_ZEE—XRFE+—A+H
exempted company with limited liability in the Cayman Islands EHEBREFTMRKIAER
with authorised share capital of HK$380,000 divided into BR A A A E KA /380,000
38,000,000 shares of HK$0.01 each. On 8 June 2018, the B JT 0 9 £38,000,000 A% & B& E
authorised share capital of the Company has increased to BOO1IEB LM R —
HK$50,000,000, divided into 5,000,000,000 ordinary shares NERNANB KABFETER
of HK$0.01 each. Details of the Company’s equity for the 7K ¥ H0 & 50,000,000 T 0 0 5

year are set out below:

5,000,000,000 % & A% ™ 120.01%5
JCH)E AR o AR A F NS

BHEHI AT :
2019 2018
—E-NF —T-N\F
No. of shares HK$  No. of shares HK$
RHEE BT R m & B BT
Authorised: EE
Ordinary shares of FREE0.01E TR
HK$0.01 each LER 5,000,000,000 shplealnel s 5,000,000,000 50,000,000
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
No. of shares RM No. of shares RM
BRHOEBE BRATSE BHEHEE BRARSH
Ordinary shares, ZER BRTR
issued and fully Fo G
paid off:
At 1 January/ W—A—-8/

31 December

+-H=+—-H 1,080,000,000 <k 1,080,000,000 5,941,706
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

22. SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)

(c) Nature and purposes of reserves

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Share premium

The share premium represents the difference between
the nominal value of the shares of the Company and
proceeds received from the issuance of shares of the
Company. Under the Cayman Companies Law, the
share premium account of the Company is distributable
to the shareholders of the Company provided that
immediately following the date on which the dividend is
proposed to be distributed, the Company would be in a
position to pay off its debts as they fall due in the
ordinary course of the business.

Other reserve

Other reserve of the Group represents the difference
between the par value of the Company’s shares issued
and the aggregate amount of paid-up capital of Edaran,
Radiant, Rasa Mulia and Shifu acquired from the
controlling shareholders on 29 December 2016
pursuant to the share swap as if the current group
structure and share swap had been occurred on 1
January 2016.

Other reserve of the Company represents the difference
between the par value of the Company’s shares issued
and the equity in Edaran, Radiant, Rasa Mulia and Shifu
acquired from the controlling shareholders on 29
December 2016.

Translation reserve

The reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences
arising from the translation of the financial statements of
foreign operations. The reserve is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policies set out in Note
3(c).

(d) Dividend

The board has resolved not to recommend the payment of
any final dividend for the current financial year.

HMEEBERLF

—Z-hEEH

1% 8 5% Y 5 ()

22, B} A K &% 8 )
(c) EEMHERAE

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

IR 17 7% B

B 10 it (B 45 A B B 17 Bk
[ETR =R NN Sl S v
BfSRECHNEZE - R
BEREQENE ARARD
HERAHD KT AR A
PR - HEZREEE D IR R
ZB® RNABBABEIX
NRAEBXHERESIH
B 2EHE-

H th % 5

AN B H AR EERERK
MEBRETHARDR KD
HEER - NF+=
A=+ B miERKREREK
8% B Edaran - Radiant - Rasa
Mulia 52 Shifu# & I 78 42 %8
ZHEMERE  BNRTEE
RELBRNDERER_-Z
—RNE—RA—B¥%&E-

KRR EMBEEEARAD G
EETKRMEEER-F
—RNE+-_A-t+thBEA
P& % A% 3 U B8 /9 Edaran
Radiant + Rasa Mulia & Shifu
fetE s ERZE%E ©

mERE
ZHEEBERREBINRD
MBEBRRELENZIERL
Z R o AR R FE3()
PR et MREE

d) BRE

EXECRETEBRMN AN K
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

RS 8 2% Y 5 ()

23. LOANS AND BORROWINGS

176

23. ERMRMERK

2019
—
RM
EREZSHE

Non-current
Bank loans — secured

Current
Bank loans — secured

FEEN A
RITER — BEMA

28,300,928

5,312,827

33,613,755

(a) Bank loans

As of the end of the reporting period, the bank loans were

(@) |ITER

2018
—EFE—N\EFE
RM
ERARSH

2,906,435

463,261

3,369,696

repayable as follows: TS =
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-NF
RM RM
BRAZSE BRAGRSH
Within one year —F R 5,312,827 463,261
After one year but within two years —FEMENRN 9,797,447 484,796
After two years but within five years MEERAFAN 18,217,354 1,593,837
After five years hF1& 286,127 827,802
28,300,928 2,906,435
33,613,755 3,369,696
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

23. LOANS AND BORROWINGS (continued)

(b) Security

The bank loans are secured by freehold land, factory
buildings and other buildings and specific debentures by a
subsidiary incorporating specific charge over the plant and
machinery financed by the bank, with an aggregate carrying
amount of RM70,727,803 (2018: RM8,123,989) (see Note
13).

The bank loans are also secured by right-of-use assets for a
building (see Note 14) with carrying amount of RM1,981,000
(2018: RM2,065,000), time deposits pledged (see Note 20) of
RM5,000,000 (2018: Nil) and the corporate guarantees given
by the Company (see Note 32(b)).

During the financial year ended 31 December 2018, the bank
loan was also secured by a leasehold land with carrying
amount of RM246,339.

—Z-hEEH

1% 8 5% Y 5 ()

23. EXRRER@m

(b)

A m

ZERTERTIAKAEREL
e ITHEFREMEF F R
MZBITRENBE &S5
ERLHMBAR B TEESR
{EIK 4 - B m {8 A70,727,803
ERARSEH(ZZE— )\ F:
8,123,980 R i = &) (B2 H
BfsE13) °

ZERTERNUERES
1,981,005 KA RS HF(ZF —
J\E 120650005 K\ ESE
ZEFHFERAEEE(FEL2HME
14) ~ 5,000,000 5 K 78 58 & &
I 1 F BB 17 3k (58 2 B B 7% 20)
—E2E-N\F:B)UKERARQARE
HOSEERERR(GEL2EMH
F32(b)) °

BEz_Z—-—\F+=-A=+—H
IEHEBREE  SBITERNAER
B 5246,330F KA < T MM
B e -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Bt 7% 8k 3R Y & (@)
24. LEASE LIABILITIES 24. HEEE
The following table shows the remaining contractual maturities of TREWWANEFHEEERER TS
the Group's lease liabilities at the end of the current reporting HAR RN BRI B REER S 16515
periods and at the date of transition of IFRS 16: BEEHNBTEOEMA :
31 December 2019 1 January 2019
—E-hAFE+=ZA=+—H —E-NAF—-—A—H
Present value Total Present value Total
of minimum minimum  of minimum minimum
lease lease lease lease
payments payments payments payments
REHEE BEHEE BREHAE BREHEE
NRBRE TREE HRRE RG]
RM RM RM RM
ExARSE ERARSE BERAARSE BERARSE
Within 1 year 1FR 314,510 329,796 152,025 167,560
After 1 year but within 1F%2F R
2 years 110,592 115,425 120,101 129,180
After 2 years but within 2FE5FNR
5 years 60,957 62,200 140,258 145,500
171,549 177,625 260,359 274,680
486,059 507,421 412,384 442,240
Less: total future interest & : 7k & ¥ 2. 5
expenses ¥ #a %8 (21,362) (29,856)
Present value of lease HEaERE

liabilities 486,059 412,384
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
15 3R R B A ()

25. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) 25 EEMRIEBEE (BFE)

Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) are attributable to the following: EEHRBEAE/(AE)BBRUTAH
m :
2019 2018
—E-NF —EB-N\F
RM RM

EREDSE SRARSH

Property, plant and equipment ME - WE MR E (1,996,134) (2,182,813)
Right-of-use assets FRAEEE (492,525) =
Unrealised foreign exchange differences & & IR 9M & = %8 350,355 462,952
Tax loss carry-forwards HIEBESE 120,830 =
Provisions B 175,036 138,240
Lease liabilities HEalE 116,655 =
Contract liabilities e ON=N 51,147 94,080

Unabsorbed capital allowances RN A E A B R 741,914 —

(932,722) (1,487,541)

Representing: LU PR -
— Deferred tax assets —REHIBEEE 33,655 -
— Deferred tax liabilities —ELERBRIE (966,377) (1,487,541)
(932,722) (1,487,541)
Movements in temporary differences during the year: FRNERFZ2E28)
Adjustment on
At At initial At At
1January Recognisedin 31 December application of 1January Recognisedin 31 December
2018  profit or loss 2018 IFRS 16 2019  profit or loss 2019
NSERER
® R BBREER ® ®
—E2-N\F “E-NE  F16HfEE =B-hF “E-hF
—-A-H REZEE +=A=+-8H HAE -A-H REZERE t=A=+-H
(Note 8) (Note &)
(Hiixs) (Htixs)
RM RM RM RM RM RM RM

BRALCE BARELSE BRARSE BRARCE BRAELSE BRELSE FRELSH

Property, plant and equipment 1% - BiE k& & (1,799,069) (383,744) (2,182,813) 191,011 (1,991,802) (4,332) (1,996,134)
Right-of-use assets FREEE - - - (285,162) (285,162) (207,363) (492,525)

Unrealised foreign exchange KB IMNE =5
differences (524,740) 987,692 462,952 - 462,952 (112,597) 350,355
Tax loss carry-forwards REBELSE 40,674 (40,674) - - - 120,830 120,830
Provisions B - 138,240 138,240 - 138,240 36,796 175,036
Lease liabilities HEAE - - - 98,973 98,973 17,682 116,655
Contract liabilties AHBE 70,147 23,933 94,080 - 94,080 (42,933) 51,147
Unabsorbed capital allowances R4 & A £ 1 48 - - - - - 741,914 741,914
(2,212,988) 725,447 (1,487 541) 4822 (1482,719) 549,997 (932,722)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

RS 8 2% Y 5 ()

26. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

26. E 5 Rk H At B (Y FIH

2019
ZE-NF
RM
EREDRSH

Trade payables

Prepayment received from customers
Other payables and accruals

P RN A
EREPFEMNKE

3,364,807
821,640

HEibE AR ERTE A 7,355,987

11,542,434

All of the trade and other payables are expected to be settled within
one year or are repayable on demand.

As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of trade

payables based on the invoice date is as follows:

B8 S NEMEN:

N EEB RN B REEE

2018
-2 N\%F
RM

FSARAESH

3,501,209
584,608
9,689,137

13,774,954

BERSHR ENBZHHNES
FEN RIERRE DT -

2019 2018

—B-hF —E-N\F

RM RM

EXRA ERAGSE

Within 1 month 1@ A A 2,299,520 2,195,529
1 to 3 months 1Z23f@ A 864,951 1,155,955
3to 6 months 3z=6fEA 156,165 147,300
Over 6 months 61& A A+ 44,171 2,425
3,364,807 3,501,209

27. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 27. G EE

2019 2018

—B-hF —E-N\F

RM RM

EXATESE BSRARSH

Contract liabilities AHBEE l!l! 392,000

The contract liabilities represent the sales incentives to customers
as at the end of the reporting period. The contract liabilities are

expected to be recognised as revenue within a year.

The contract liabilities at the beginning of the reporting period of
RM392,000 (2018: RM292,278) has been recognised as revenue
during the financial year

180
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a) Categories of financial instruments

@i

1% 8 5% Y 5 ()

28. T A
(@ €I AEEHR

The table below provides an analysis of financial instruments TRIEESBEAUTRENS R
categorised as follows: TESH:

Fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”) () BAoAEBEFAER
&rAEBESTAR
=)

— Mandatorily required by IFRS 9 — BRI R &5 2E R E 9
5% o | 2K

(i) Amortised costs (“AC”) (i) WA (TSR]
Carrying Mandatorily

amount AC at FVTPL

BEEAR

IREE B A EESABR

Note RM RM RM

KizF BRAESE FSRAESEH BRALSH

MEEEBRAF

2019 —E-NEF

Financial assets SREE

Trade and other receivables* B 5 K EMEKHE 12,466,566 12,466,566

Derivatives financial asset TESMEE 19 63,700 -

Pledged time deposits B E BTE R 20 5,000,000 5,000,000

Cash and cash equivalents RENIRESEEY 21 25,606,417 25,606,417
43,136,683 43,072,983

Financial liabilities cHmEE

Loans and borrowings ERRER 23 (33,613,755)  (33,613,755)

Trade and other payables** B 5 & H fth & R IE (11,507,842)  (11,507,842)
(45,121,597) (45,121,597)

2018 —E-N\E

Financial assets SEEE

Trade and other receivables* B 5 & H fth fE U kI8 15,454,269 15,454,269 —

Cash and cash equivalents RekBHEEEY 21 46,089,253 46,089,253 —
61,543,522 61,543,522 —

Financial liabilities sHmEE

Loans and borrowings ERRER 23 (3,369,696) (3,369,696) —

Trade and other payables B REMEMNRIE 26 (18,774,954)  (13,774,954) —
(17,144,650) (17,144,650) —

*  excluding prepayments and goods and services tax receivable.

**  excluding sales and service tax payable.

—E-hEEH

TEEBENRARE SRS
FE g B IR -

o NEIEHE MR E N HIA -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Bt % R 3R B = ()
28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 28. £ T H )
(b) Net gains and losses arising from financial b)) TRIEELENKRER
instruments BEESE
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
RM RM
BEREEZESE BRARSE
Net (losses)/gains on: LT&EW(EE) W
FE
Financial asset at fair value through QA AEBHETABENS
profit or loss MEE
— Foreign exchange differences — HMNEEEE —

Financial assets at amortised cost REBERATENSH

BE
— Bad debts written off — AR = (12,509)
— Foreign exchange differences — SNEZEFE (1,058,937) 193,309
— Finance income — BB A 579,444 832,224

(479,493) 1,013,028

Financial liabilities at amortised cost Rt AT EN S @

=R
— Foreign exchange differences — SNEEEE 957,320 (2,084,239)
— Finance costs — B AR AR (935,609) (274,621)
21,711 (2,358,860)
(394,082) (1,345,832)
(c) Financial risk management (c) £rtEMKEE
The Group has exposure to the following risks from its use of AEBRFERAS T E MmN
financial instruments: TR :
e Credit risk e [FERR
e Liquidity risk e RBEZEAR
e Market risk s  TiZRAR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(d) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of a financial loss if a customer or
counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its
contractual obligations. The Group’s exposure to credit risk
arises principally from the individual characteristics of each
customers. There are no significant changes as compared to
prior periods.

Trade receivables

Risk management objectives, policies and processes
for managing the risk

Management has a credit policy in place and the exposure to
credit risk is monitored on an ongoing basis. Credit
evaluations are performed on all customers requiring credit
facilities.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether any of
the trade receivables are credit impaired.

The gross carrying amounts of credit impaired trade
receivables are written off (either partially or full) when there is
no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case
when the Group determines that the debtor does not have
assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient
cash flows to repay the amounts subject to the write-off.
Nevertheless, trade receivables that are written off could still
be subject to enforcement activities.

There are no significant changes as compared to previous
year.

1% 8 5% Y 5 ()

28. £ @l T B )
d) EERK

FERAREEFPXERTAHTF
EY EHA:@%%%ﬁW%
zgma%zﬁWMA%ﬁoﬁ
38 7 B R L 2 30 4 B A

B % RWRE

RBREEZERE HRRKEE
B B2 891 7

EEFEEMET I 5 4B &

REERR EE%H%%%%
ﬁxiﬁmﬂ§%£ﬁ°

RERE BB NREBFGEM
B2RUABARELREER

Tt

firl B 1% BB £ AT E 58 - K
SEASHME(BrHEH)EE
WEESERFIBENEREE-
ZEABTHREEASERER
%A E E S U A SRR A & A&
EHECRENEEEMBENS
Bomm  EMBENE S ERNK
TE 13 7] 8¢ B 1B 58 il AT ©
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

RS 8 2% Y 5 ()

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(d) Credit risk (continued)

28. £ @l T A )
(d) 15 E & B o)

Trade receivables (Continued)

Exposure to credit risk, credit quality and collateral

As at the end of the reporting period, the maximum exposure
to credit risk arising from trade receivables are represented
by the carrying amounts in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by
the individual characteristics of each customer rather than the
industry or country in which the customers operate and
therefore significant concentrations of credit risk primarily
arise when the Group has significant exposure to individual
customers. As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, 55% and
59% of the total trade receivables was due from the Group’s
largest customer and 59% and 71% of the total trade
receivables was due from the five largest customers of the
Group respectively.

Concentration of credit risk
The exposure of credit risk for trade receivables as at the end
of the reporting period by geographic region was:

g 5 EWRE @)

EERER EEEZREAY
RBEBAR REEHEKRE
N AEERRELRE MR
REEEHEME -

AEBERENEERREFERS
AREPFPHERNFBEMIETEFEL
FIBTRSIBERNFE  AltE
AEESHRBREZHNETEE
ELE R % P F R EAEA X E AR
BRI -RZE—NFRZZF—
NF+_A=+—H BEF5EWK
X TH 48 58 19 55% M 59% & FE Uk Ax
SESARFPHRE MESEWK
7} TE 4B BB Y 59% 2 71% 75 JFE U AR
EEAKREFIEA -

E B & A a5
RBEHMR BHREFENE
ERBRMEE DR :

West Indies TEERS
South East Asia HEdn
Middle East PR

North America it %

East Asia W

Other regions Hfhip[@

2019 2018
—2-nF —E2-)\F
RM RM

SREDSE SARAZSH

4,968,784 6,970,903
3,423,391 2,035,807
926,215 2,784,555
783,346 1,422,510
194,411 45,243
1,649,512 984,639

11,945,659

14,243,657
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(d) Credit risk (continued)

Trade receivables (Continued)

Recognition and measurement of impairment losses

In managing credit risk of trade receivables, the Group
manages its debtors and takes appropriate actions (including
but not limited to legal actions) to recover long overdue
balances. Generally, trade receivables will pay within 60 days.

The Group’s debt recovery process is as follows:

(@ Above 90 days past due after credit term, the Group
will start to initiate a structured debt recovery process
which is monitored by the sales management team;

and

(b)  Above 120 days past due, the Group will commence a

legal proceeding against the customer.

The Group uses an allowance matrix to measure ECLs of all
trade receivables. Consistent with the debt recovery process,
invoices which are past due 90 days will be considered as

credit impaired.

Loss rates are calculated using a “roll rate” method based on
the probability of a receivable progressing through successive

stages of delinquency to 90 days past due.

Loss rates are based on actual credit loss experience over
the past three years. The Group also considers differences
between (a) economic conditions during the period over
which the historic data has been collected, (b) current
conditions and (c) the Group’s view of economic conditions
over the expected lives of the receivables. Nevertheless, the
Group believes that these factors are immaterial for the

purpose of impairment calculation for the year.

The Group assessed that there is no significant loss
allowance recognised in accordance with IFRS 9 as at 31

December 2019 and 31 December 2018.

The Group does not provide any guarantees which would

expose the Group to credit risk.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from trade and other

receivables are set out in Note 18.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

RS 8 2% Y 5 ()

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(d) Credit risk (continued)

28. £ @l T A )
(d) =55 = k)

186

Cash and cash equivalents

The cash and cash equivalents are held with banks. As at the
end of the reporting period, the maximum exposure to credit
risk is represented by their carrying amounts in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

These banks have low credit risks. The Group is of the view
that the loss allowance is not material and hence, it is not
provided for.

Other receivables

Credit risks on other receivables are mainly arising from
deposits paid for office buildings and fixtures rented. These
deposits will be received at the end of each lease terms. The
Group manages the credit risk together with the leasing
arrangement.

As at the end of the reporting period, the maximum exposure
to credit risk is represented by their carrying amounts in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

As at the end of the reporting period, the Group did not
recognise any allowance for impairment losses.

Inter-company loans and advances

Risk management objectives, policies and processes
for managing the risk

The Company provides unsecured loans and advances to
subsidiaries. The Company monitors the ability of the
subsidiaries to repay the loans and advances on an individual
basis.

Exposure to credit risk, credit quality and collateral

As at the end of the reporting period, the maximum exposure
to credit risk is represented by their carrying amounts in the
Company’s statement of financial position.

Loans and advances provided are not secured by any
collateral or supported by any other credit enhancements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(d) Credit risk (continued)

Inter-company loans and advances (Continued)
Recognition and measurement of impairment loss
Generally, the Company considers loans and advances to
subsidiaries have low credit risk. The Company assumes that
there is a significant increase in credit risk when a subsidiary’s
financial position deteriorates significantly. As the Company is
able to determine the timing of payments of the subsidiaries’
loans and advances when they are payable, the Company
considers the loans and advances to be in default when the
subsidiaries are not able to pay when demanded. The
Company considers a subsidiary’s loan or advance to be

credit impaired when:

° The subsidiary is unlikely to repay its loan or advance to

the Company in full;

° The subsidiary’s loan or advance is overdue for more

than 365 days; or

° The subsidiary is continuously loss making and is

having a deficit shareholders’ fund.

The Company determines the probability of default for these
loans and advances individually using internal information

available.

As at the end of the reporting period, the Company did not

recognise any allowance for impairment losses.

(e) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet
its financial obligations as they fall due. The Group’s exposure
to liquidity risk arises principally from its trade and other
payables, loans and borrowings and lease liabilities.

The Group maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents
and adequate banking facilities by the management to
ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to

meset its liabilities as and when they fall due.

It is not expected that the cash flows included in the maturity
analysis could occur significantly earlier, or at significantly

different amounts.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
15 R R B A ()

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 28. €@l T B )

(e) Liquidity risk (continued)

Maturity analysis
The table below summarises the maturity profile of the
Group’s financial liabilities as at the end of the reporting

(e) REBE R @
B HA B o
TEBERBERRAERS T
BENIS A BN (ERKED

period based on undiscounted contractual payments: AN :
Contractual
interest
Carrying rate per  Contractual Under More than
amount annum cash flows 1year 1-2 years 2-5 years 5years
BEE AHFENE SHEERE 1E LR 1528 2Z5% 564 L
RM % RM RM RM RM RM
BREATLE % BRALLE BRARSE FRAERE BFRAZLE BRARSE
2019 ZE-NF
Loans and borrowings BEXRER
— Bank loans —HITER 33,613,755 3.46%-5.32% 36,540,712 6,532,632 10,729,931 18,022,022 1,256,127
Lease liabilties HEERE 486,059 4.52% 507,421 329,796 115,425 62,200 -
Trade and other payables & 5 [ £ i fi
FE 11,507,842 11,507,842 11,507,842
45,607,656 48,555,975 18,370,270 10,845,356 18,084,222 1,256,127
2018 —EB-N\F
Loans and borrowings ERRER
— Bank loans —H#ITER 3,369,696  4.02%-4.65% 3,765,470 602,280 602,280 1,806,840 744,070
Trade and other payables & 5 & £ it &
WA 13,774,954 - 18,774,954 13,774,954 - - —
17,144,650 17,530,424 14,377,234 602,280 1,806,840 744,070
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

() Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as
interest rates, foreign exchange rates and commodity prices
that will affect the Group’s financial position or cash flows.

(i)

LEEARAF

Interest rate risk

The Group’s fixed rate borrowings are exposed to a risk
of change in fair value due to changes in interest rates.
The Group’s floating rate borrowings are exposed to a
risk of change in cash flows due to changes in interest
rates. Short term receivables and payables are not
significantly exposed to interest rate risk.

Risk management objectives, policies and
processes for managing the risk

The Group utilises long and short term borrowings for
funding its capital expenditure and working capital
purposes. The Group manages its interest rate
exposure by maintaining a mix of fixed and floating
rates borrowings.

1% 8 5% Y 5 ()

28. €@t T A @)

(f)

$%@@

[ B - m%—f’?%’ﬂﬁﬂi’ré%; $
SEMBARARLBE S RENH
R HNEER N EmER -

(i) R=RREAK
AEBEWETMEEZT
HEFESHERRQ B
ERBOER - A EE T
B) F) & {2 2 Y E I &
BHERHE S RELHHA
B o %G HA FE e K E & R A 3K
TE N 4% T ¥ B A K R @R o
B EERZE KHRK

= 1P 7 [ B AR S

AEBRAE RN LIRE

EeReEEHRYA

EHREHER - AEEB

ﬂ%ﬁliﬂwﬁﬁﬁﬂ

EEZIEATEAEFEME

Bﬁ
Exposure to interest rate risk [E] 1 7 3 )& e
The interest rate profile of the Group’s significant RBERRANEERE Bt
interest-bearing financial instruments, based on carrying B4 T ENFRIZR(E
amounts as at the end of the reporting period are as REREBE) AT
follows:
2019 2018
—E-hEF —ZE—N\F
RM RM
BERAZESE SRARSH
Fixed rate instruments EERERTEAE
Bank loans IRITE K 1,174,562 —
Lease liabilities HEaE 486,059 -
1,660,621 —
Floating rate instruments FHFEXT A
Bank loans |ITE K 32,439,193 3,369,696
—E—NEFER 189



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
15 R R B A ()

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

() Market risk (continued)

() Interest rate risk (Continued)
Interest rate risk sensitivity analysis
Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments

The Group does not account for its fixed rate financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. Therefore, a
change in interest rates at the respective reporting
dates would not affect profit or loss.

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for floating rate
instruments

A change of 100 basis points (“bp”) in interest rates at
the end of the reporting period would have increased/
(decreased) post-tax profit by the amounts shown
below. This analysis assumes that all other variables
remain constant.

28. €@t T B @)

(f)

™ 5 & B ()
(i) F=E @

) 3 [ B 0 B 0 4T

BIEMETABANAEE
AEBLEARRAAE
Bt ABRZNEENE S
BEE- Bt SBESAH

MANXEH I EFEIES -

JEE)FI X T A/IE T
EHREE S

R & BB R - I K B 100
MEZTEZ]D BFE
st F) 8 3R DA N BT R & 58 0
S CR ) o b5 47 R T A
FHMBERFTE -

2019 ZE-hEF
Floating rate instruments EEBANEIA
Financial liabilities tRAE
2018 —E-N\F
Floating rate instruments SFEBANRTHE
Financial liabilities SRAE

Increased/(Decreased)

post-tax profit

@, 4) BR Bt 1% 2% F

100 bp 100 bp
increase decrease

¥ hn1001E & 210018
HE 2

RM RM

FRATSE BFRAZLTH

(246,538) 246,538

(25,610) 25,610
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

() Market risk (continued)

(i)

LEEARAF

Currency risk

The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk on sales
and purchases that are denominated in a currency
other than the respective functional currencies of Group
entities. The currency giving rise to this risk is primarily
USD.

Exposure to currency risk

The following table details the Group’s exposure to
foreign currency (a currency which is other than the
functional currency of the Group entities) risk, based on
carrying amounts as at the end of the reporting period.
For presentation purpose, the amounts of the exposure
are expressed in RM, translating using the spot rate at
end of the reporting period.

1% 8 5% Y 5 ()

28. €@t T A @)

(H ™5 R B @)
(i) E¥ER

AREBRAREEERA
FAThRE & 1 LASN B B B 5t
BENEE@HINERR - 5
BHUEBROEBITERE
5T o

[ %1 & 15 3 2

TERANAEBERRE
HIK 1 BR B NS OR
SEERNEEE NI
ER)NER - -LEHRE W
mE - BREBEVRREH
REBVHIE R H B R 5B R
PELHIR e

Denominated in USD

L TEHE

2019 2018

—®-hE —T-N\&

RM RM

BERAZSE SRARSH

Trade and other receivables Z 5 N E i pE R IE 8,525,625 12,888,159
Cash and cash equivalents B2 RIREEBY 3,600,692 10,939,964
Trade and other payables B 5 NEMENZE (777,820) (523,586)
Loans and borrowings B R AE R (21,639,562) —
Forward exchange contract 5 Hi J[N[E & 49 4,156,700 —
Net exposure = E b (6,134,365) 23,304,537
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

RS 8 2% Y 5 ()

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

() Market risk (continued)

(i)

(iii)

192

Currency risk (Continued)

Currency risk sensitivity analysis

A 10% strengthening of RM against USD at the end of
each reporting period would have increased/(decreased)
post-tax profit by the amounts shown below. This
analysis is based on foreign currency exchange rate
variances that the Group considered to be reasonably
possible at the end of each reporting period. This
analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular
interest rates, remained constant.

28. €@t T B @)

(H ™5 R B )
(i) E¥EREE
B f 0 R E 5T
MBRERE RS S

& HETEF10% - BB
35 46 42 A T B R & 48 08
o0/ G o BT T ER
76 B R R B W 5 R
BABTHMNEESES
BT (L - D BEH A
K% 8 (EHRAE)R
SEL X

Increased/(Decreased)
post-tax profit for the

year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=t-HLHFE
A R B 1% 0% R 38 0 Rl 2)
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E—-N\F
RM RM
BRAGZSE BRAZSH
usD x5 (1,771,145)

A 10% weakening of RM against USD at the end of
each reporting period would have had equal but
opposite effect on USD to the amounts shown above,
on the basis that all other variables remained constant.

Commodity price risk

Raw materials such as coconuts are major components
of cost of inventories. Exposure to fluctuations in the
commodity prices of such raw materials is closely
monitored by management and managed through
adjusting the selling prices.

(iii)

fE R E A B B AR T R
MERT R B S8R
FRETESERETTR
10%% ¥ % T E £ B &
FReBEASERY AR

By 48R
RIS & o

7 an B 1% L B

¥ E RN D EEKAE
MEZMEKES - HRRM
1O 7 & B A8 K B AL R e
ERERYEE WEBSE
EEETE-
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(9) Fair value information

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, short
term receivables and payables and short term borrowings
reasonably approximate their fair values due to the relatively
short term nature of these financial instruments.

The table below analyses other financial instruments carried
at fair value.

1% 8 5% Y 5 ()

28. €@t T A @)

(09 2REEESR

RekReEEY BHEKK
TR Ko AN SR IR A B RS R AR R0 R
HEREAABEAGEMRE R
AAZEem T AYBHEYER
HE -

TRAMZEAREBES R H A
SR IA-

Fair value of financial instruments

carried at fair value

BARBEIGNERIAAAGE

Level 1 Level 2
E—EH BB
RM RM

BRALESE BRETSE

Carrying

Level 3 Total amount
E=EBR At fREE
RM RM RM

BRATSE BRADSE HFRAGLE

2019 —E-NE
Financial asset SREE
Forward exchange EHIMES B

contract —

63,700

- 63,700 63,700

During the year ended 31 December 2018, there was no
financial instruments carried at fair value.

The fair value of forward exchange contracts is estimated by
discounting the differences between the contractual forward
price and the current forward price for the residual maturity of
the contract using a risk-free interest rate.

LEBMERRET —ZE—NFER

NRE-F-N\F+ZA=+-
AT BESBIARAR
BB -

EHINESHNN AR BESBEBK
PR L B ) 3R BE 3R A KO T BRF 1
MAaMPEERERFNEER
M EREETTIEET °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(g) Fair value information (continued)

The table below analyses other financial instruments not
carried at fair value.

28. €@t T B @)

(9 2REEEHm

TROTL TR DR BEETIRDY
Hitbe®mITA-

Fair value of financial instruments
not carried at fair value

YREAABEIRNERIANAEE

Level 1 Level 2
E—EH BB

RM

SRATLE BRALSHE

Carrying

Level 3 Total amount
BE=ER &t IR E B
RM RM RM

SRATSE BRALZSE SRADSE

2019 —E-hE
Financial liability SRER

Loans and borrowings & 3t R &5k -

(32,488,567) (32,488,567) (33,613,755)

2018 —E-N\f§
Financial liability tREE

Loans and borrowings B H R B -

(2405762)  (2405762)  (3,369,69%)

29. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Group’s objectives when managing capital is to maintain a
strong capital base and safeguard the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern, so as to maintain investors, creditors and
market confidence and to sustain future development of the
business.

There were no changes in the Group’s approach to capital
management during the financial year.

20. EAREE

AEERNEREARN B R EHITHE
ENEAEREREAEEFELSE
EBWEN UWERREE EEA
RWIgED A RRE R H R K&
BER-

KU RERR AEEHEREER
EA BB -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

B 75 3R 3% MY aE ()
30. COMMITMENTS 30. #&1iE
(a) Capital commitments (a) EAREIE
Capital commitments outstanding at the end of the reporting RBEHARNGEESTERR S A
period not provided for in the consolidated financial SARBENREREENAEN
statements are as follows: T

2019 2018

—E-NF —E-NF

RM RM

BREZSE SRAZSH

Property, plant and equipment ME BERRE

Authorised but not contracted for EREERETLH 24,540,251 33,164,728
Contracted but not provided for ERTABERETIRE® 577,871 35,022,792
(b) Operating lease commitments (b) REHEAIE
At 31 December 2018, non-cancellable operating lease R-_E—NF+-_A=+—8"
rentals were payable as follows: R REECEHER WM
™
2018
—E-NF
RM
BRAESTH
Within one year —F R 172,310
After one year but within five years —FUFEREFR 87,680
259,990
The Group was the lessee in respect of a number of AREBABERE ST E8]E17
properties held under operating leases under IAS 17. The SIENKEHEREZEYERD
leases typically run for an initial period of one to three years, AEA-BH—BULEEE—=
with an option to renew the lease when all terms are =FE - EHEEA RSB E
renegotiated. None of the leases included contingent rentals. BEEEN - HEHALHBIEXR
e e
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

B 7 R & M & (%)

31.

32.

196

CONTINGENCY

In 2018, a lawsuit was filed by a third party against the Group in a
dispute of sale and purchase of a plot of land. The plaintiff claimed
the balance deposit of RM784,080 with interest and costs, whereas
the Group filed a counterclaim for a refund of deposit paid
previously amounting to RM196,020. This lawsuit was settled out
of court during the year ended 31 December 2019. The third party
refunded a sum of RM60,000 to the Group. Accordingly, both the
claim and counterclaim were withdrawn.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Identity of related parties

For the purposes of the financial statements, parties are considered
to be related to the Group if the Group has the ability, directly or
indirectly, to control or jointly control the party or exercise significant
influence over the party in making financial and operating decisions,
or vice versa, or where the Group and the party are subject to
common control. Related parties may be individuals or other
entities.

Related parties also include key management personnel defined as
those persons having authority and responsibility for planning,
directing and controlling the activities of the Group either directly or
indirectly. The key management personnel include all the Directors
of the Group, and certain members of senior management of the
Group.

(a) Key management personnel remuneration
Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group,
including amounts paid to the Company’s Directors as
disclosed in Note 10 and certain of the highest paid

31.

32.

HAREE

RZE—N\F —ZE=ZFALHE
BUDYHAEBERBFAR REHE
# T 1% $ 784,080 5 K o 28 £ & & [ 7
BERERA MASECRHKRAF
KR BLRAIZ A E £ 196,020 55 2K
AESE RNBE-_ZT—-NAE+-A
=+—HLEFE ZFABEEIN
fif - 3% % = 75 B A A~ & & iR % 60,000
ERADSHF - Bt HERRBER
BB RS -

B S RS

B Bt 75 B9 & 43

WM BEHREAME  MAKERENE
Bk R RS R % T &
TR BERREERRBEEERYE
HIRZHR) IAEERZATEZH
[ 422 i) - BRI 5% 05 AR 7 7K & [ Y B B
MBI REAXEMERE -

MO TRRIEZEETERARE TEF
BABARAERERXMEHAEEE
BHRE ERREHEEENRE
EFOAL - TR2ERABEHRAKH
MEEEURAERETERERE
A8 e

TEEEASHMH

AEBMEEEBRABHM(RE
S FARAEE (KM 108
B)RETRSHMESR (M E

(a

employees as disclosed in Note 11, is as follows: MRBE)NSE)WOT :

2019 2018

—B-hF —E-NF

RM RM

EXAESE SRADSH

Salaries and other benefits FehEMETR 2,726,664

Discretionary bonuses [ EREEAN -
Contributions to Employees’ Provident BEEATBEHER

Fund 302,828

3,029,492
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Identity of related parties (continued)

(a)

MEEEBRAF

Key management personnel remuneration
(Continued)

The above remuneration for key management personnel is
included in personnel expenses as disclosed in Note 9.

Corporate guarantees by the Company

The Company entered into corporate guarantees in favour of
the banks, in respect of the banking facilities of
RM76,072,600 (2018: RM46,228,100) granted to a
subsidiary, S&P Industries.

Applicability of the Listing Rules relating to
connected transactions

Subsequent to the listing of the Company’s shares on the
Stock Exchange on 11 July 2017, the Group did not enter
into any related party transaction that falls under the definition
of connected transaction or continuing connected transaction
as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

—E-hEEH

1% 8 5% Y 5 ()

2. BHERZ @
Ny RO R R iRt )

(a)

(b)

FTEEBAEHFM @
P EEEIE A S H A
I HEM AR -

AKATHEEER

K 7 55 MY B A 7] S&P Industries
B B & iR 17 B & 76,072,600
ERADSEHFE(ZDE— NF:
46,228,100 F R < &) LARTT
BRI AR EER-

EREXZFMEBHNLTR
RIAYE A %
ERARBROR-_Z—tFLtA+
—BHEBIMALEMER AREYL
B EMRAUNFHAZE R
MEBEXZAFEBREISHNE
BT X5 °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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33. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY 33. WEE—RIME QT
W iE — B KB A 8 —M. Ace
(Thailand) Co., Ltd. ([ M. Ace ])

RZZE-NF+A+HEB AEEN
B00F #k (HE NIBFRA TR EH) W
88 M. Ace (Thailand) Co., Ltd. #790.57% A%
7 WEAR & X fF o M. Ace B3 TTEY =
EEBREOREAOMPER -

Acquisition of a subsidiary — M. Ace (Thailand)
Co., Ltd. (“M. Ace”)

On 15 October 2018, the Group acquired 90.57% shares in M. Ace
(Thailand) Co., Ltd. for THB 300 (equivalent to RM38), satisfied in
cash. The intended principal activity of M. Ace is to import and
export coconut milk products.

The following summarises the major classes of consideration
transferred, and the recognised amounts of assets acquired and

AT prEERENEEZRR - U
KU R B HR e AR B P UK R B Mo PR

liabilities assumed at the acquisition date: EEBGBENESEE
RM
BRAESEH
Fair value of consideration transferred FFEERENIAEE
Cash and cash equivalents HekBeSEY 38
Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed Frik BB mT s Bl & = &R Fr i
81&
Trade and other receivables B 5 K& H b e U GRIE 26,981
Cash and cash equivalents RekReZEED 85,059
Trade and other payables B 5 N H b 5IE (534,654)
Total identifiable net liabilities AHEAFEEARE (422,614)
Net cash inflow arising from acquisition of a subsidiary WE—RBHBATELEMN
BERAFE
Purchase consideration settled in cash and cash equivalents R4 ERESEEBMIZHH
EERE (38)
Cash and cash equivalents acquired FTEER SRS EEY 85,059
85,021
Goodwill mE
Goodwill was recognised as a result of the acquisition as WEEERNEENT
follows:
Total consideration transferred FreEEeRE 38
Fair value of identifiable net liabilities A#MNFEENAAEBE 422,614
Non-controlling interest, based on proportionate interest BIERFTWER S FEE
in the net identifiable liabilities acquired O #E Z L ) AT H B JEIE AR
M= 92,861
Goodwill (Note 16) A (E16) 515,513

The goodwill in relation to the acquisition of M. Ace was fully

impaired in 2018.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

34. SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING

POLICIES

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group adopted
IFRS 16.

Definition of a lease

On transition to IFRS 16, the Group elected to apply the practical
expedient to grandfather the assessment of which transactions are
leased. It applied IFRS 16 only to contracts that were previously
identified as leases. Contracts that were not identified as leases
under IAS 17 and IFRIC 4, Determining whether an Arrangement
contains a Lease were not reassessed. Therefore, the definition of
a lease under IFRS 16 has been applied only to contracts entered
into or changed on or after 1 January 2019.

As a lessee

Where the Group is a lessee, the Group applied the requirements
of IFRS 16 retrospectively with the cumulative effect of initial
application as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained
earnings at 1 January 2019.

At 1 January 2019, for leases that were classified as operating
lease under IAS 17, lease liabilities were measured at the present
value of the remaining lease payments, discounted at the Group
entities’ incremental borrowing rate as at 1 January 2019. The
weighted-average rate applied is 4.52%. Right-of-use assets are
measured at either:

—  their carrying amount as if IFRS 16 had been applied since
the commencement date, discounted using the lessee’s
incremental borrowing rate at 1 January 2019; or

— an amount equal to the lease liability, adjusted by the amount
of any prepaid or accrued lease payments.

1% 8 5% Y 5 ()

B BENERED

REEZE-_FE—NF+-_A=+—HL
FE - AEEFERNBRERYBREER
F£1655 ©

HENESR

BEZ BB R s E R E165%
51 CAEBEBERAITRETENAD
XEEXFFEE RS - BRI &R
EEBFEICHEFEANTHNEERAE
HEWNEH BREBEE G ERFET7
HRERMBEREZREZE 45
EF—HZHEEZEEHE N R#
AIRHEENGHN AN TUAEFRTMG - B
It BIER B S RIS 1658 1 T
ENEREERRE_ZE—NLF—A
— BB IHEERNEHL -

EREBEA

WMAEBIEAERBA  AEBBHE
F I P B 7 S 5 ZE B SR 1658 HY AR 5E -
ﬁﬁ%%ﬂﬁ;&ﬁﬁumiﬁr%%fﬁ%:
z n¢ A — BHYRE B F & &
) 5
RZE—NF—A—B #®HoEAERH
Kﬂi@ + EREA7RBEBTNKEHENH
EmE HEAGEERBEENREEN
fﬁfﬁ;ﬁrg WAAEEETEREBR_-F —
NE—R—BMEESERFRET
o ER 2 MEFIIEEIE XK F4.52% o
FRAEEESRUNTEFR —EHAG

= .
£ -

— ?ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁfﬁﬁ% M a0 B R B 7
:‘E/’iﬁ'l%wﬂ‘;ﬁﬁaﬂﬁ“ﬁﬁﬁia
&E% WEAERBEARZ
NE—H— Elﬂﬁia;hm%'ﬂ‘zﬂﬁ
] sk

- ZRHEFNHEEREMNESEIE

I AR I AE ] A S R AT A & 5 K
MESBETHAE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

B 7 R & M & (%)

34.

200

SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

As a lessee (Continued)

The Group used the following practical expedients when applying
IFRS 16 to leases previously classified as operating lease under IAS
17:

— applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases with
similar characteristics;

— applied the exemption not to recognise right-to-use assets
and liabilities for leases with less than 12 months of lease
term as at 1 January 2019;

—  excluded initial direct costs from measuring the right-to-use
asset at the date of initial application; and

— used hindsight when determining the lease term if the
contract contains options to extend or terminate the lease.

For the leases that were classified as finance lease under IAS 17,
the carrying amounts of the right-of-use asset and lease liability at
1 January 2019 are determined to be the same as the carrying
amount of the leased asset and liability under IAS 17 immediately
before that date.

As a lessor

Group entities who is an intermediate lessor reassessed the
classification of a sublease previously classified as an operating
lease under IAS 17 and concluded that the sublease is an operating
lease under IFRS 16.

SHBEENEKRES w

EREE A @

RNEEER BB REERE165%
RBERBER G ERFEI7TR SR
RCEHENHERERATERE
BAHE:

— HARFPUBHMNEEEAER
ERREHE

— ER#RRBARR_-_FT-NF—
H— Efﬂ,ﬁﬁéﬁ’ﬁmlﬂ RN
RERBEENAR:

- RERERBHAEXREEE
mELN T ZERKARRIN - &

— REEHNESEHRKLEEED
BEREBEERERIAEEH
/HHO

EJE’\*E%IW\E.quE@E'J%W%}EIETEA*A
EHENAEE TRIE-NF—

—EI@E?H%,QF&TH Jéffﬁ’]ﬁﬁﬁ
BEETAREERZBEHMER S E
AIFE17TRETHEEERBENKRE
BRE -

EREHBEA

FERBESATRGOBEA) EFFGE
%ﬁﬁ’“*ﬁﬁlﬁf%aa++ﬂlJ%175ﬁIET
REMENEHEER XRSEHETY
BIFR B 75 s E R 165 T E
HE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

34. SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Impact on financial statements

Since the Group applied the requirement IFRS 16 retrospectively
with the cumulative effect of initial application at 1 January 2019,
there are no adjustments made to the prior period presented.

The following table explains the difference between operating lease
commitments disclosed applying IAS 17 at 31 December 2018,
and lease liabilities recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 1 January 2019.

1% 8 5% Y 5 ()

SHBEENEKRES w

BBRRNTE

P AN £R A ) AR B R B A o o
AFE1RNRE R NLF—H
—HEREREANRFATE  RL
BERBEZSRREIELEMAE -

TRBER-_Z-NF+_A=+—
REAEREFENFI7TREENL
MTH‘*EKFEEE’\:%*AE*E —H

REEMBRARRTHEANEERR
ZERER -

RM
BRALRSE
Operating lease commitments at 31 December 2018 as MAEE 4 S HBIHRERBEED
disclosed in the Group’s consolidated financial —E-NF+ZA=+—H
statements B 45 2 T & A I 259,990
Discounted using the incremental borrowing rate FTRAZZE-NAF-—A—AwE:s
at 1 January 2019 fﬁﬁkﬂi,ﬁﬁfﬁ 250,117
Recognition exemption for short-term leases HEHHEENERAR (15,750)
Extension and termination options reasonably certain AEEFEBAITENEE MK
to be exercised B 178,017
Lease liabilities recognised at 1 January 2019 RZE-NF—A—BBERL
HERE 412,384
LEBMERAT —ET—NEER 201



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
A% R M A ()

34. SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING 34. €3 BENEXE T @)
POLICIES (Continued)
HUBEBRRNEEm@m

TR B BRI R B 15 RS RS 16
BMUAKEGEMBRRARNTE

Impact on financial statements (continued)

The following table summarises the impacts of the adoption of IFRS
16 on the Group’s consolidated statement of financial position:

Carrying amount Impact from Carrying
at initial amount at
31 December application of 1 January
2018 IFRS 16 2019
»n AL ER i
—E2-)N\F EBERBBERE —E-NEF
+t=A=+—8H Z B %1655 —A—H®
Y R 2 WEE IR B
RM RM RM
SREARcE BRAZRTE FSRADRSH
Line items in the consolidated % & Bf I 4k R &k P =
statement of financial RMBEBR MRS
position impacted by the ERAFE1ETEN
adoption of IFRS 16: b= =
Property, plant and equipment  ¥1% « B K& & 49,839,306 (6,000,599) 43,838,707
Right-of-use assets TREEE — 6,392,893 6,392,893
Total assets EEHE 141,812,902 392,294 142,205,196
Reserves EE 58,012,702 (15,268) 57,997,434
Total equity R 122,754,156 (15,268) 122,738,888
Lease liabilities (non-current) HE&EGERH) — 260,359 260,359
Deferred tax liabilities REFRIEEE 1,487,541 (4,822) 1,482,719
Lease liabilities (current) HEBEGIE) — 152,025 152,025
Total liabilities EEHE 19,058,746 407,562 19,466,308
Total equity and liabilities EERAaEHEE 141,812,902 392,294 142,205,196
Total assets less current EEHERABERE
liabilities 127,148,132 240,269 127,388,401

The impacts of the adoption of IFRS 16 on the Group’s financial
results and cash flows for the year ended 31 December 2019 have
not been presented on the basis that the impacts are not material.

8 0 PR 4 BRI B B s Sl 5 E RSB 1657
AEEBE_FT-NAF+_A=1+—
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

B 7 3R 3% M & (®)
35. COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF 35. A 7] /B | B B # AR R 3R
FINANCIAL POSITION
2019 2018
—E—-h#F —E-N\F
Note RM RM
Wit BREESE BERARSE
Assets BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RETBRRNKE 49,144,630 49,144,630
Loan to a subsidiary BT -—HWBARMER 63,032,200 45,496,000
112,176,830 94,640,630
Current assets REEE
Other receivables Hiib ek k18 1,433,784 1,023,617
Cash and bank balances He RiBITHEE 330,956 674,512
1,764,740 1,698,129
Total assets EEHAE 113,941,570 96,338,759
Equity and liability EERAE
Equity =
Share capital &N 22 5,941,706 5,941,706
Share premium f& 15 @ B 58,707,916 58,707,916
Reserves ERE] 48,825,417 31,187,479
113,475,039 95,837,101
Current liability REBEE
Other payables H b e B 466,531 501,658
Total equity and liability ERLEEHAE 113,941,570 96,338,759
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
A% R M A ()

36. IMMEDIATE HOLDING COMPANY AND 36. EEERATGIRGARERS
ULTIMATE CONTROLLING PARTY

The Company is a subsidiary of TYJ Holding Limited, which was ARBBRAEBERESEMAILD
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and regarded by the TYJ Holding Limited 2 ffi & 2 7] » % =
Directors as the Company’s immediate holding company as at 31 E—NEER_E—"NF+—ZB=1+—
December 2019 and 2018. The ultimate controlling party of the BERESERALRAQANNEEERA
Group is Mr. Tang Koon Fook. None of these parties produces Al o ZN 5 B M) &% 4 i 5 & Tang Koon
financial statements available for public use. Fookft £ - ZE X AW ER I T HA

FERWHEHE
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